Vol.229 No. 19



Thursday
5 September, 2013
14 Bhadra, 1935 (Saka)

# PARLIAMENTARY DEBATES RAJYA SABHA

### OFFICIAL REPORT

### **CONTENTS**

Reference by the Chair-

Birth Anniversary of Dr. S. Radhakrishnan (pages 1-2)

Papers Laid on the Table (page 2)

Petition praying to take immediate steps to control increasing Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) in the Banking Sector-*Presented* (pages 2-3)

Demand to discuss situation in Gujarat (pages 3-5)

Matters raised with permission-

Problems being faced by people due to overflowing of river Ganga in Bihar (pages 5-8)

Foreign Exchange Amnesty Scheme to improve inward capital flow (page 8-9)

Plight of nurses working in the Private Hospitals (pages 9-11)

Release of funds for branch of Aligarh Muslim University in Kishanganj, Bihar (pages 11-12)

Request for stopping telecast of serial of Jodha Akbar on Zee T.V. (pages 12-15)

[P.T.O.

©
RAJYA SABHA SECRETARIAT
NEW DELHI

PRICE: Rs. 50.00

Recent move of the Government to hand over fifteen airports and Airports Authority of India in private hands through PPP route (pages 15-17)

Demand to give status of IIT to the Indian School of Mines, Dhanbad in Jharkhand (page 18)

Increasing activities of terrorists trained in neighbouring countries (pages 18-20)

Concern for low significance given to the life and contribution of national heroes like Chhatrapati Shivaji Maharaj, Maharana Pratap and Hindu saints in CBSE History syllabus for High Schools (pages 21-24)

Situation in Andhra Pradesh on account of proposed division (pages 24-28)

#### Special Mentions-

Demand to frame a legislation to deliver justice to victims of rape and acid attacks in a time bound manner in the country- *Laid on the Table* (pages 28-29)

Demand for early construction of the building of the Central Institute for Classical Tamil in Tamil Nadu-*Laid on the Table* (pages 29-30)

Demand to start construction work on sanctioned railway projects in Kumaon region and other parts of Uttarakhand - Laid on the Table (page 30)

Demand to introduce special trains and increase number of coaches in trains from metro cities to Kerala during festival of Onam in the State - *Laid on the Table* (page 31)

Demand to include Pali language in Eighth Schedule of the Constitution- *Laid* on the Table (pages 31-32)

Demand to take strict measures to check the smuggling of narcotics in the country, particularly in Punjab - *Laid on the Table* (pages 32-33)

Demand to lift ban on development activities beyond 100 metres of archaeological sites - *Laid on the Table* (page 33)

Demand to expedite the process of rehabilitation of released bonded labourers of Jharbandh Block of Bargarh district in Odisha- *Laid on the Table* (page 34)

Demand to handover the case of murder of Dr. Dabholkar to National Investigation Agency (NIA) - *Laid on the Table* (pages 34-35)

Demand to shift the artillery firing range of Tosamaidan Meadows to an uninhabited area- *Laid on the Table* (pages 35-36)

Web site Address: http://rajyasabha.nic.in

http://parliamentofindia.nic.in

E-mail Address: rsedit-e@sansad.nic.in

Demand to take steps for early release of Gujarati fishermen captured by Pakistani Coast Guards - *Laid on the Table* (page 36)

Demand to take urgent steps for repair and reconstruction of National Highway No.98 - *Laid on the Table* (pages 36-37)

Demand to accord agriculture the status of Industry - Laid on the Table (pages 37-38)

Demand to give approval for setting up of a Central University at Hetampur in Bhojpur District of Bihar (pages 190-91)

Demand to give reasonable amount of salary to the Imam of Masjid-e-Taj (pages 191-92)

Demand to amend the rules pertaining to cut off date for registration of names in electoral rolls (pages 192-93)

Demand for proper evaluation of the implementation of welfare schemes in tribal areas of Andhra Pradesh (pages 193-94)

Demand to take steps for promotion of Tamil language in schools and offices in North India and declare it the second official language of the country (pages 195-96)

### Government Bills-

The Constitution (One Hundred and Twentieth Amendment) Bill, 2013- *Passed* (pages 38-181)

The Representation of the People (Second Amendment and Validation) Bill, 2013- *Under Consideration* (pages 181-87)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Amendment) Bill, 2013-Passed (pages 188-89)

### Messages from Lok Sabha-

The Appropriation (No.4) Bill, 2013- Laid on the Table (pages 189-90)



### RAJYA SABHA

Thursday, the 5th September, 2013/14th Bhadra, 1935 (Saka)

The House met at eleven of the clock,

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN in the Chair.

### REFERENCE BY THE CHAIR

### Birth anniversary of Dr. S. Radhakrishnan

- श्री नरेश अग्रवाल (उत्तर प्रदेश): उपसभापति जी, ...(व्यवधान)...
- श्री पुरुषोत्तम खोडाभाई रूपाला (गुजरात): सर, ...(व्यवधान)...
- श्री शिवानन्द तिवारी (बिहार): महोदय, ...(व्यवधान)... बंजारा वाले मामले पर ...(व्यवधान)...
- MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, please. ...(Interruptions)... Hon. Members, there is a reference. ...(Interruptions)... Please allow the reference... ...(व्यवधान)... बैठिए, बैठिएं ...(व्यवधान)... मेरी बात स्निए। ...(व्यवधान)...

Hon. Members, today, the 5th September, marks the Birth Anniversary of Dr. Sarvepalli Radhakrishnan, the first Chairman of the Rajya Sabha and former President of India. He was a renowned philosopher, statesman, an educationist and a humanist par excellence. His birthday is also observed as the 'Teacher's Day' and is commemorated for his significant contribution in the field of education in India and abroad.

On this occasion, we pay our glowing tributes to Dr. Sarvepalli Radhakrishnan and also express our profound appreciation and gratitude to the teachers of our country for their selfless effort in enriching our education system and moulding the younger generation of society about values and ways of life.

SHRI M. VENKAIAH NAIDU (Karnataka): Our Greetings to all teachers, including Prof. Kurien.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Thank you. ...(Interruptions)... Papers to be laid on the Table. ...(Interruptions)...

### PAPERS LAID ON THE TABLE

- I. Report (2006-07) of the Office of the Chief Commissioner for Persons with Disabilities, New Delhi and related papers.
- II. Memorandum of Understanding between Government of India and NHFDC.

THE MINISTER OF STATE IN THE MINISTRY OF SOCIAL JUSTICE AND EMPOWERMENT (SHRI PORIKA BALRAM NAIK): Sir, I lay on the Table—

- I. A copy each (in English and Hindi) of the following papers, under subsection (2) of Section 64 of the Persons with Disabilities (Equal Opportunities, Protection of Rights and Full Participation) Act, 1995:—
  - Annual Report of the Office of the Chief Commissioner for Persons with Disabilities, New Delhi, for the year 2006-07.
  - Explanatory Memorandum on the above Annual Report.

[Placed in Library. See No. L.T. 9689/15/13]

II. A copy (in English and Hindi) of the Memorandum of Understanding between the Government of India (Department of Disability Affairs, Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment) and the National Handicapped Finance and Development Corporation (NHFDC), for the year 2013-14.

[Placed in Library. See No. L.T. 9712/15/13] ...(Interruptions)...

PETITION PRAYING TO TAKE IMMEDIATE STEPS TO CONTROL INCREASING NON-PERFORMING ASSETS (NPAs) IN THE BANKING SECTOR

SHRI AVINASH PANDE (Maharashtra): Sir, I present to the House the receipt

Papers Laid [5 SEPT., 2013] on the Table 3

of a petition signed by him, praying to take immediate steps to control the increasing Non Performing Assets (NPAs) in the Banking Sector.

...(Interruptions)...

### DEMAND TO DISCUSS SITUATION IN GUJARAT

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, I take up Matters to be raised with Permission of the Chair; Zero Hour. Shri D.P. Tripathi; not present. ...(Interruptions)... Shri V. Hanumantha Rao; not present. ...(Interruptions)... Shri Sanjiv Kumar; not present. ...(Interruptions)... Shri Ram Kripal Yadav; not present. ...(Interruptions)... Shri N.K. Singh. ...(Interruptions)... What do you want? ...(Interruptions)... If one of you would speak, I will understand. ...(Interruptions)... I am not able to understand when all of you are speaking together. ...(Interruptions)... I don't know what is Vanjara. ...(Interruptions)... You go and speak from your seat. ...(Interruptions)... Go to your seats. ...(Interruptions)... Please go to your seats. ...(Interruptions)... No, no; it is not permitted. ...(Interruptions)... This is not permitted. This is indiscipline. ...(Interruptions)... The House is adjourned for fifteen minutes. ...(Interruptions)...

The House then adjourned at four minutes past eleven of the clock.

The House re-assembled at

nineteen minutes past eleven of the clock.

[MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN in the Chair].

- MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Zero Hour. Shri N.K. Singh. ...(Interruptions)...
- श्री शिवानन्द तिवारी (बिहार): सर, गुजरात में 35 पुलिस ऑफिसर्स ...(व्यवधान)... जिनमें 6 आईएएस ऑफिसर्स हैं।...(व्यवधान)...
- MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: If all of you stand up at once, what do I do? ...(Interruptions)...
- श्री शिवानन्द तिवारी: सर वहां कानून का राज नहीं चल रहा है। ...(व्यवधान)... सर, वहां कानून के रक्षक ..(व्यवधान).. वहां कानून का राज़ नहीं चल रहा है। ..(व्यवधान)..

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Let me finish the Zero Hour. Then, I will allow one of you to say what you want. ...(Interruptions)...

श्री शिवानन्द तिवारी: सर वहां 35 पुलिस अफसर जेल में बंद हैं, जिनमें से 6 आई.पी.एस. अफसर हैं..(व्यवधान)..

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Tiwari*ji*, if all of you shout, what do I do?. ...(*Interruptions*)...

श्री शिवानन्द तिवारी: उसने आरोप लगाया है..(व्यवधान)..

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: One of you should speak. ...(Interruptions)... Let me finish it. ...(Interruptions)... See, let me finish the Zero Hour. Then, I will allow one of you. Then, I can listen to what you have to say. ...(Interruptions)... Let me finish the Zero Hour. Allow me to finish the Zero Hour. ...(Interruptions)... We can first take up the admitted Zero Hour mentions.

श्री शिवानन्द तिवारी: सर, इसके विरोध में हम लोग सदन से बहिर्गमन करते हैं। ..(व्यवधान)...

### (इस समय कुछ माननीय सदस्य सदन से बाहर चले गए)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: What is your problem? ...(Interruptions)... I am not able to hear. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY (West Bengal): Sir, we want to raise a very serious issue, which has been raised by one of the IPS officers in the country, about the State of terrorism in Gujarat. Now, terrorism is not a State subject. Terrorism is a subject...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, no...(Interruptions)... That is not a subject to be raised here because...(Interruptions)...whether an IPS officer or any other person, it is the statement of an undertrial. How can the Chair take cognisance of the statement of an undertrial? ...(Interruptions)... See, it is the statement of an undertrial. Chair cannot take cognisance of the statement of an undertrial. So, I cannot allow that. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY: It is a very serious issue. ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No,...(Interruptions)... What do you want? ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI P. RAJEEVE (Kerala): The Chair should be impartial. ...(Interruptions)...

Matter raised [5 SEPT., 2013] with permission 5

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Chair is impartial. That is why, the Chair says that. ...(Interruptions)... Yesterday, I said that ruling would be given. I did not say that I would allow it. I only said that ruling would be given. I only said that. ...(Interruptions)... Mr. Rajeeve, Mr. Balagopal, Mr. Yechury, please listen to me. I only said that ruling would be given. ...(Interruptions)... I did not say that Vanjara issue would be allowed to be raised. Now, I am not allowing it. After sufficient consideration, a decision has been taken not to allow it. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY: I am requesting you to please reconsider it. This is in the interest of the country's security and our national interest. That is why, if you are not going to reconsider it, then, we have to walk out in protest.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Walking out is your right. ...(Interruptions)...
Walking out is your right. I have no problem. ...(Interruptions)...

(At this stage, some hon. Members left the Chamber)

SHRI M. VENKAIAH NAIDU (Karnataka): There should not be double standards in the House. If you are discussing one State, you should discuss other State. ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I have not allowed that. ...(Interruptions)... I did not allow that. I am not allowing any State subject.

SHRI M. VENKAIAH NAIDU: Then, let us go ahead with the business. ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, please. You said that you were walking out. Then, why do you make a noise? Those who walk out will not make a noise; walking out means walking out.

Now, Zero Hour - Kripal Yadav.

#### MATTERS RAISED WITH PERMISSION

### Problems being faced by people due to overflowing of river Ganga in Bihar

श्री राम कृपाल यादव (बिहार): सर, मैं आपके माध्यम से केन्द्र सरकार का ध्यान आकृष्ट करना चाहता हूं। पूरे बिहार में लगभग 20 जिले बाढ़ से प्रभावित हो गये हैं तथा इनमें ही 12 जिलों में अत्यन्त बाढ़ आ गई है, जिनमें मुख्य रूप से पटना है, बक्सर है, बेगूसराय है, भागलपुर है, मुंगेर इत्यादि है, जहां लोग बहुत बुरी अवस्था में हैं, परेशान हैं। इससे लगभग 54 लाख आबादी प्रभावित है। इस बाढ़ में 160 लोगों की जानें चली गई हैं। वहां पूरी अव्यवस्था

फैली हुई है। लोगों के लिए रहने की जगह नहीं है, जानवरों को चारा उपलब्ध नहीं हो पा रहा है, खाने की कोई व्यवस्था नहीं है, बाढ़ से कहीं लोग सड़क पर हैं, कहीं स्कूल में आश्रय लिए हुए हैं। मगर अभी तक राज्य सरकार ने अपने स्तर पर कोई भी विशेष व्यवस्था नहीं की है, जिससे बाढ़ से प्रभावित लोगों की परेशानी कम हो। सर, मैं समझता हूं कि रोज लोग पलायन कर रहे हैं, कटाव भी बड़े पैमाने पर हो रहा है, गंगा के आसपास रहने वाले जो लोग हैं, जो उससे लगे डिस्ट्रिक्ट हैं, वे ज्यादातर प्रभावित हैं। सर, मैं आपको यह बताऊं कि पिछले 20-25 दिनों से लोग भूखे तरस रहे हैं। वहां नावों की भी व्यवस्था नहीं है, ताकि उनको वहां से निकाल कर सुरक्षित स्थानों पर ले जाया जा सके। मगर अभी तक राज्य सरकार कोई स्टेप नहीं उठा रही है, उन लोगों को पर्याप्त ढंग से मुआवजा नहीं मिल रहा है, लोगों के खाने की व्यवस्था नहीं की जा रही है, जानवरों के भी खाने की व्यवस्था नहीं की जा रही है। मैं माननीय मंत्री जी से निवेदन करूंगा कि बिहार में बाढ़ की स्थिति को देखते हुए आप अविलम्ब वहां एक दल भेजिए। वहां बहुत क्षति हुई है, लाखों-लाख रूपाए की फसल नष्ट हो गई है, किसान लोग बर्बाद हो गये हैं। इसके अलावा दूसरे कुछ इलाकों में सुखाड़ भी है। बड़ी विडम्बना है कि बाढ़ और सुखाड़ से आज पूरा बिहार परेशानी की हालत में है। कई-कई जिलों में तो रोपनी तक नहीं हुई है। इस बार लोग कैसे खा पाएंगे, यह एक महत्वपूर्ण सवाल है। मै माननीय मंत्री जी से निवेदन करना चाहूंगा कि अविलम्ब वहां एक जांच दल भेजिए, वहां केन्द्र की सहायता की आवश्यकता है। लोगों को जान बचाने के लिए, लोगों के खाने के लिए और जानवरों के चारे के लिए व्यवस्था करना बहुत आवश्यक है। अभी तक वहां कोई ऐसी व्यवस्था नहीं हो पाई है। मैं पुन: आपके माध्यम से निवेदन करुंगा कि बाढ़ और सुखाड़ से प्रभावित लोगों पर आप ध्यान देने का काम कीजिए और अविलम्ब कोई स्टेप उठाइए, वहां केन्द्रीय दल भेजिए, ताकि वहां पर्याप्त मात्रा में लोगों को सह्लियत मिल सके और बाढ़ से प्रभावित लोगों की जान बचाई जा सके। बहुत-बहुत धन्यवाद।

श्री रिव शंकर प्रसाद (बिहार): मैं इसके साथ एसोसिएट करता हूं। बाढ़ के कारण बिहार की हालत बहुत ही खराब है। सर, उन्होंने अच्छा विषय उठाया है। मैं चाहूंगा कि भारत सरकार को इस मामले में सहायता और सहयोग करना चाहिए।

**डा**. सी.पी. **टाकुर** (बिहार): महोदय, में भी इसके साथ सम्बद्ध करता हूं।

श्री अली अनवर अंसारी (बिहार): सर, मैं भी इससे अपने आपको जोड़ना चाहता हूं।

SHRI VIVEK GUPTA (West Bengal): Sir, I associate myself with the Zero Hour mention raised by the hon. Member.

SHRIMATI SMRITI ZUBIN IRANI (Gujarat): Sir, I also associate myself with the Zero Hour mention raised by the hon. Member.

श्री नतुजी हालाजी ठाकोर (गुजरात): महोदय, मैं भी इसके साथ समर्थन करता हूं।

श्री भरतिसंह प्रभातिसंह परमार (गुजरात): महोदय, मैं भी इसके साथ अपने आपको सम्बद्ध करना चाहता हूं।

श्री अविनाश राय खन्ना (पंजाब): महोदय, मैं भी इनके साथ सम्बद्ध करता हूं।

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: He crossed the floor for a few minutes.

श्री रिव शंकर प्रसाद: माननीय मंत्री जी, आप आश्वस्त करिए कि केन्द्र सरकार पूरा सहयोग करेगी......(व्यवधान)

श्री नरेश अग्रवाल (उत्तर प्रदेश): खाली बिहार ही नहीं, ऐसी स्थिति उत्तर प्रदेश में भी है। क्योंकि गंगा नदी उत्तर प्रदेश से ही बिहार की ओर गई है।.....(व्यवधान)

श्री रिव शंकर प्रसाद: हां, ठीक है, agreed

**श्री अविनाश राय खन्ना**: पंजाब में भी इस वजह से बहुत बुरा हाल है।

संसदीय कार्य मंत्रालय में राज्य मंत्री तथा योजना मंत्रालय में राज्य मंत्री (श्री राजीव शुक्ल): सम्मानित राम कृपाल जी, रवि शंकर प्रसाद जी और नरेश अग्रवाल जी ने यह बाढ़ के मुताल्लिक मुद्दा उठाया है और पंजाब का खन्ना जी ने उठाया है। केन्द्र सरकार खास तौर से योजना मंत्रालय जो मेरे अधीन है, और कृषि मंत्रालय तीनों इस मामले में बराबर चिंतित हैं और हम जितनी मदद हो सकती है, इन राज्यों की करेंगे। बिहार को हम अलग से बैकवॉर्ड रीजनल ग्रांट फंड से पैसा अलग से दे रहे हैं और हम पूरी कोशिश करेंगे कि इन राज्यों की भी मदद हो।

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, Shri N.K. Singh. ..(Interruptions)..

SHRI BIRENDRA PRASAD BAISHYA (Assam): Assam is also suffering from flood. When you are mentioning about Uttar Pradesh, Bihar and Punjab, please take our case also.. ..(Interruptions)...

SHRI AVINASH RAI KHANNA: Sir, he is raising a genuine problem. Kindly listen to him. ..(*Interruptions*)..

SHRI BIRENDRA PRASAD BAISHYA: So, please consider the case of Assam also. ..(*Interruptions*)..

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Yes, yes. I know. Mr. Minister, please include Assam also.

श्री राजीव शुक्ल: हां, इसमें असम भी है।

- श्री धर्मेन्द्र प्रधान (बिहार): सर, मैं स्वयं को इस विषय से साथ सम्बद्ध करता हूं।
- श्री भरतसिंह प्रभातसिंह परमार: उपसभापति महोदय, गुजरात में नर्मदा में भी बाढ़ आई है।

श्री उपसभापति: ठीक है। ..(व्यवधान).. Now, Shri N.K. Singh.

### Foreign Exchange Amnesty Scheme to improve inward capital flow

SHRI N.K. SINGH (Bihar): Sir, the other day, the Prime Minister, while speaking on the economic situation in the country, mentioned that there was a need to adopt innovative measures for encouraging inward capital flows. In this context, I wish to make two proposals for the consideration of the Government. First, when the hon. Prime Minister was the Finance Minister in 1991, he had taken an innovative step of what was called the "Foreign Exchange Remittance Scheme." That Scheme, which was introduced in 1991, gave two kinds of immunities—the immunity against the tax and the immunity against the application of the Foreign Exchange Management Act. I think the time is appropriate to consider an innovative step of this kind in which it would encourage NRIs and Indians to be able to bring inward capital flows based on the same kind of a Scheme which we had in 1991. I would like to recall that at that time the Scheme, which continued for about eight months or so, did manage to receive close to 800 million dollars which really, at that particular point of time, was rather a substantial sum of money.

In this connection, Sir, the second kind of a proposal which has been under consideration of the Government is a Gold Amnesty Scheme. Everybody knows that India is a repository of vast sums of gold which are here. Different Governments have tried to have a gold scheme. The Reserve Bank of India had given a report long ago on what they wanted. They wanted a Gold Statutory Board. I think that the Government, along with the Foreign Exchange Remittance Scheme, can consider some innovative measures for a gold scheme which can harness the locked-up, enormous amount of gold which is in this country. At the same time, this will really also prevent the large amount of gold which is coming in, if the gold within the country can be harnessed really in an imaginative way. So, I think, a combination of both the Foreign Exchange Remittance Scheme and a gold scheme will help us tide over the growing Current Account Deficit and help us buttress Government's effort to improve inward capital flows. Thank you.

SHRI ANANDA BHASKAR RAPOLU (Andhra Pradesh): Sir, I associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. Member.

DR. YOGENDRA P. TRIVEDI (Maharashtra): Sir, I associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. Member.

SHRI DEREK O'BRIEN (West Bengal): Sir, I associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. Member.

SHRI DEVENDER GOUD T. (Andhra Pradesh): Sir, I associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. Member.

### Plight of nurses working in private hospitals

DR. T.N. SEEMA (Kerala): Thank you, Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir. I would like to draw the attention of this House towards the sorry plight of thousands of nurses working in private hospitals in various parts of the country. This issue has been raised in this House many times by many Members, including the hon. Deputy Chairman. Sir, the largest number among these nurses is from Kerala. We know that nurses are not being paid minimum wages in most of the private hospitals. They are compelled to sign vouchers for an inflated amount but are paid a very meagre amount and exploited continuously. Many private hospitals are exploiting patients with huge fees and, at the same time, they are treating nurses as slaves.

Sir, there are no guidelines to protect and safeguard the interests of nurses in different States. Difficult working conditions, low salary, slow promotion, lack of job security and related benefits, increased risk of sexual harassment at the workplace are some of the problems.

The nurses are unable to repay the huge loans taken from banks and private agencies at the time of joining the colleges. There is a report that more than 40,000 nurses in Kerala are facing confiscation from banks. As hon. Members are aware, there are many instances of suicides by nurses and their family members.

Sir, the nurses' associations had approached the Union Government and the courts to give direction to all the States to ensure that hospitals did not resort to these practices in future. Even though some directions were given, these are not followed. Now, the hon. Supreme Court, three days back, sent notice to the Centre and State Governments on a petition regarding this.

Sir, the only remedy is to bring a Central legislation to prevent the exploitation of nurses and protect their working conditions. I urge upon the hon. Union Health Minister and the hon. Labour Minister to take urgent steps in this regard so that we can save lives of thousands of nurses who are saving our lives. Thank you, Sir.

SHRIMATI SMRITI ZUBIN IRANI (Gujarat): Sir, I associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. Member.

श्रीमती माया सिंह (मध्य प्रदेश): सर, मैं स्वयं को इस विषय के साथ सम्बद्ध करती हूं।

श्री अवतार सिंह करीमपुरी (उत्तर प्रदेश): मैं भी स्वयं को इस विषय के साथ सम्बद्ध करता हूं।

श्री नतुजी हालाजी ठाकोर (गुजरात): सर, मैं भी स्वयं को इस विषय के साथ सम्बद्ध करता हूं।

SHRI TAPAN KUMAR SEN (West Bengal): Sir, I associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. Member.

SHRIMATI KANIMOZHI (Tamil Nadu): Sir, I associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. Member.

SHRI ANANDA BHASKAR RAPOLU (Andhra Pradesh): Sir, I associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. Member.

SHRI DEVENDER GOUD T. (Andhra Pradesh): Sir, I associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. Member.

SHRIMATI VASANTHI STANLEY (Tamil Nadu): Sir, I associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. Member.

SHRI D. BANDYOPADHYAY (West Bengal): Sir, I associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. Member.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Yes, names of all those who are associating may be added. I think this is our sisters' problem.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD (Bihar): Sir, allow me to say that we need to place on record our deep appreciation of the nurses from Kerala who have really been doing great work all over the country for the last so many years. We need to appreciate that.

Matter raised [5 SEPT., 2013] with permission 11

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I think this is the sense of the House that the Government should take some action on that.

THE MINISTER OF STATE IN THE MINISTRY OF PARLIAMENTARY AFFAIRS AND THE MINISTER OF STATE IN THE MINISTRY OF PLANNING (SHRI RAJEEV SHUKLA): Sir, they are the most hardworking people in the country. Their concerns, their problems must be addressed.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: But they are underpaid. Some of them are working like bonded labourers.

SHRI RAJEEV SHUKLA: I will convey it to the hon. Health Minister.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please take some action. Now, Shri Ali Anwar Ansari.

### Release of funds for branch of Aligarh Muslim University in Kishanganj, Bihar

श्री अली अनवर अंसारी (बिहार): उपसभापित महोदय, यूपीए वन की सरकार ने अलीगढ़ मुस्लिम यूनिवर्सिटी के पांच कैम्पस, एक बिहार में, एक मध्य प्रदेश में, एक महाराष्ट्र में, एक केरल में और एक पश्चिम बंगाल में खोलने की घोषणा की थी। यह खुशी की बात है कि पश्चिम बंगाल के मुर्शिदाबाद में काम शुरू हो गया है और उसके लिए सरकार ने फंड दिया है, इसी तरह केरल के मल्लापुरम में भी काम शुरू हो गया। बिहार के किशनगंज में इसका कैम्पस खुलना है, इसके लिए अलीगढ़ युनिवर्सिटी जैसा चाह रही थी, उसके मुताबित बिहार सरकार ने उसे एक पीस में 224.02 एकड़ जमीन दे दी है। आप जानते हैं कि एक टुकड़े में जमीन देना कितना मुश्किल होता है, लेकिन बिहार सरकार ने 30 दिसंबर, 2011 को ही यह जमीन उसे दे दी और उस पर अलीगढ़ यूनिवर्सिटी ने डीपीआर, डिटेल प्रोजेक्ट रिपोर्ट बनाकर जमा भी कर दी। यही नहीं, बिहार सरकार ने गर्ल्स हॉस्टल और बॉयज़ हॉस्टल के लिए तौहीद एजुकेशनल ट्रस्ट से दो हॉस्टल लेकर अलीगढ़ यूनिवर्सिटी को दे दिए और 75 लाख रुपये उन हॉस्टल के रेनोवेशन के लिए भी दे दिये, लेकिन आज तक उनमें काम शुरू नहीं हुआ। केन्द्र सरकार उसमें कार्यवाही नहीं कर रही है।

महोदय, मैं यह भी कहना चाहता हूं कि चुनाव के समय 2009 में वहां सोनिया गांधी जी गई थीं, राहुल गांधी जी गये थे और उन लोगों ने वहां खुली सभा में कहा था कि नीतिश कुमार जी, बिहार सरकार इसके लिए यदि आज जमीन दे दे तो हम कल इसके लिए फंड मुहैया करा देंगे, इसमें काम शुरू हो जाएगा, लेकिन आज पौने दो साल हो गये हैं और वहां के लिए फंड नहीं मिला है। वहां के लोग आंदोलन कर रहे हैं। ह्युमन चैन नाम की एक गैर-सरकारी संस्था है, उसका आंदोलन चल रहा है। हमारी पार्टी के लोग बार-बार सवाल उठा

रहे हैं, वहां की जनता अपनी आवाज उठा रही है। आप तो जानते हैं कि ये किशनगंज है, पूर्णिया है, किटहार है, अरिया है, वहां माइनॉरिटी की एक बड़ी आबादी है और वहां निरक्षरता की जो दर है, शायद वह देश में सबसे ज्यादा है। ऐसी स्थित में इसमें क्यों देर हो रही है? हम मंत्री महोदय से मांग करेंगे और आश्र्वासन चाहेंगे कि वे हमें स्पष्ट बतायें, क्योंकि पहले कई तरह की अड़ंगेबाजी हुई है, हमारी पार्टी के खिलाफ कहा गया कि जमीन नहीं दे रहे हैं, दो साल पहले हमने जमीन दे दी है, कितनी मुश्किल से दी है, उसके बाद भी कार्यवाही नहीं की जा रही है।\*

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Time is over. आपका समय खत्म हो गया। ..(व्यवधान)... ठीक है, समय हो गया। आप बैठिए। ...(व्यवधान)... अंसारी जी, बैठिए। आपका समय हो गया। आपका यह रिकॉर्ड में नहीं जा रहा।

श्री शिवानन्द तिवारी (बिहार): सर, मैं एसोसिएट करता हूं।

श्री एन.के. सिंह (बिहार): सर, में एसोसिएट करता हूं।

श्री साबिर अली (बिहार): सर, मैं एसोसिएट करता हूं।

चौधरी मुनव्वर सलीम (उत्तर प्रदेश): सर, मैं एसोसिएट करता हूं।

†چودهری منوّر سلیم (اتر پردیش): سر، میں بھی ایسوسی-ایٹ کرتا ہوں-

श्री अरविन्द कुमार सिंह (उत्तर प्रदेश): सर, मैं एसोसिएट करता हूं।

श्री **हुसैन दलवई** (महाराष्ट्र): सर, में एसोसिएट करता हूं।

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Najmaji. Najmaji.

DR. NAJMA A. HEPTULLA (Madhya Pradesh): Sir, I thought you were asking me to associate with it.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Yes, I would be happy if you had associated with that.

### Request for stopping telecast of serial of Jodha Akbar on Zee TV

डा. नजमा ए हेपतुल्ला (मध्य प्रदेश)ः सर, आपने मुझे एक महत्वपूर्ण विषय पर बोलने के लिए कहा है। हमारी हिस्ट्री को, हमारे इतिहास को अंग्रजों ने बहुत बिगाड़ने की कोशिश की, अब यह नई कोशिश हमारे बहुत ही स्ट्रांग मीडिया, जो टेलिविजन है, उसके द्वारा की जा रही है। "जी" टेलीविजन पर एक सीरियल आता है, जिसका नाम "जोधा अकबर" है।

<sup>\*</sup> Not Recorded.

<sup>†</sup> Transliteration in Urdu script.

सर, कुछ साल पहले एक फिल्म आई थी "जोधा अकबर", पता नहीं आपने यह फिल्म देखी है या नहीं, लेकिन बहुत अच्छी थी। देश में नेशनल इंटीग्रेशन की भावना का मैसेज उस फिल्म में दिया गया था, खास तौर पर फिल्म के आखिर में जब कमेंटस आते हैं, उसमें यह था। लेकिन "जोधा अकबर" नाम से जो सीरियल बनाया गया है, जो टेलिविज़न पर रोज़ आता हे, इसकी फैमिली के सब लोग और बच्चे मिलकर देखते हैं। इस सीरियल में अकबर बादशाह की छवि को बिगाड़ने की कोशिश की गई है। इसमें यह बताया गया है कि अकबर बादशाह बहुत ज़ालिम था और उसने आमेर पर हमला करके जोधा को ज़बरन उठवा लिया और उसको अपने महल में रहने के लिए मजबूर किया। मुझे नहीं मालूम कि इस हाउस के कितने सदस्य जो इस देश में नेशनल इंटिग्रेशन की बात करते हैं, मेरे साथी जो यहां हिस्ट्री को सही रूप में पेश करने की बात करते हैं, उन्होंने कभी यह सीरियल देखा है या नहीं। मैं उम्मीद करूंगी कि जब तक सरकार उस पर बैन नहीं लगाती, तब तक आप इस सीरियल को देखकर खुद महसूस करें कि जब बच्चों को स्कूल में हिस्ट्री में पढ़ाया जाता है कि अकबर एक बहुत अच्छा बादशाह था, अशोक एक बहुत अच्छा राजा था और जब बच्चे अपने घर में यह सीरियल देखते हैं, तो उन पर इसका क्या असर होता होगा? आज जरूरत है कि हमारे टेलिविज़न के इस स्ट्रांग मीडिया को अच्छे मैसेजेज़ भेजने की कोशिश करनी चाहिए। मैं इस बात की सराहना करती हूं कि महाराणा प्रताप पर जो सीरियल टीवी पर आता है, वह बहुत अच्छा है। शिवाजी पर जो सीरियल बना था, वह बहुत अच्छा था। टीपू सूल्तान पर कई साल पहले एक सीरियल बना था, वह भी बहुत अच्छा था। जो मंत्री यहां बैठे हैं, मैं उनसे कहूंगी कि वे आई एंड बी मिनिस्टर से कहें कि कोई भी सीरियल, जो हमारे देश के इतिहास को गलत तरीके से पेश करता है, क्या यह सरकार की जिम्मेदारी नहीं है कि उसको बंद कराए? क्या यह सरकार की जिम्मेदारी नहीं है कि जो हिस्ट्री की बुक्स हम स्कूलों में पढ़ाते हैं, उनके मुताबिक जो भी ये टेलिविज़न के सीरियल्स में दिखाते हैं, उनको नहीं दिखाना चाहिए? में यह स्ट्रांग्ली मांग कारती हूं कि अपने एमपी साथियों से कहती हूं कि आप भी आवाज़ उठाइए ताकि इस तरह के सीरियल जो हमारे टेलिविज़न पर दिखाए जाते हैं, जो कि बहुत ही स्ट्रांग मीडिया है, उनको बंद कराया जा सके।

श्री सत्यव्रत चतुर्वेदी (मध्य प्रदेश): सर, मैं इस विषय के साथ स्वयं को सम्बद्ध करता हूं। इतिहास को डिसटॉर्ट करने की हर कोशिश पर रोक लगानी चाहिए।

श्री शिवानन्द तिवारी (बिहार): सर, मैं भी इस विषय के साथ अपने आपको सम्बद्ध करता हूं। यह बहुत गंभीर मामला है। इस सीरियल पर रोक लगनी चाहिए। अकबर के बारे में कहा जाता है कि वह एक महान राजा था, सेक्यूलर राजा था। उसका नाम सेक्यूलर राजा के रूप में इतिहास में आदर के साथ लिया जाता है। उसको इस तरह से ज़ालिम बादशाह के रूप में दिखाया जाना तो इतिहास के साथ खिलवाड़ करना है।

श्री हुसैन दलवई (महाराष्ट्र): सर, मैं भी एसोसिएट करते हए एक मिनट बोलना चाहता हूं।

श्री उपसभापति: आप सिर्फ एसोसिएट कीजिए। ...(व्यवधान)... You associate. That's all.

श्री हुसैन दलवई: इतिहास का विपर्यास करने की कोशिश बहुत जोरदार तरीके से चालू है और यही मैं सेंसर बोर्ड ...(व्यवधान)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Only associate. Only associate, bas. Now, Shri Tapen Kumar Sen. Now, only associate. Husainji you can only associate. All those who have associated themselves with the issue raised by Dr. Najma Heptulla, their names may be added.

SHRI N.K. SINGH (Bihar): I also associate myself with the issue raised by Dr. Najma Heptulla.

SHRI PRASANTA CHATTERJEE (West Bengal): I also associate myself with the issue raised by the hon. lady Member.

श्री अली अनवर अंसारी (बिहार): सर, मैं भी इस विषय के साथ एसेसिएट करता हूं।

श्री के.सी. त्यागी (बिहार): महोदय, मैं भी अपने आपको इस विषय के साथ सम्बद्ध करता हूं।

श्री अरविन्द कुमार सिंह (उत्तर प्रदेश): महोदय, मैं भी इस विषय के साथ अपने आपको सम्बद्ध करता हूं।

श्री साबिर अली (बिहार): सर, मैं भी इसके साथ एसोसिएट करता हूं।

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Yes, there is support from all sections of the House. The Minister wants to react on that. ..(*Interruptions*)... The Minister is reacting.

संसदीय कार्य मंत्रालय में राज्य मंत्री तथा योजना मंत्रालय में राज्य मंत्री (श्री राजीव शुक्ल): उपसभापित जी, सम्मानीया नजमा जी ने जो मुद्दा उठाया, जिसे शिवानन्द तिवारी जी, सत्यव्रत जी, हुसैन दलवई जी और कई माननीय सदस्यों ने एसोसिएट किया। ...(व्यवधान)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: All the names will be added. ..(Interruptions)... The whole House is associating itself with it.

श्री राजीव शुक्लः पूरा सदन इसके साथ एसोसिएट कर रहा है। अगर तथ्यों को तोड़-मरोड़कर पेश किया गया है, तो मैं तत्काल सूचना एवं प्रसारण मंत्री को सदन और सदस्यों की भावनाओं से अवगत कराऊंगा और जो भी उचित कार्यवाही होगी, वह सूचना एवं प्रसारण मंत्रालय करेगा। Matter raised [5 SEPT., 2013] with permission 15

**डा**. **नजमा ए**. **हेपत्ला**: थैंक यू मंत्री जी। ...(व्यवधान)...

SHRIMATI VASANTHI STANLEY (Tamil Nadu): Not only in tele-serials, but in films also many objectionable things are being shown.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Already that is over. That is okay. This is applicable to all serials. The Government should have a machinery to look into this, to screen or scan these things; and ensure that nothing anti-national or that affects national integration should be screened. That is what is to be done.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD (Bihar): Sir, I want to say only one thing. We all respect freedom of creativity, but as far as national icons are concerned, there has to be some kind of a message that their dignity ought not to be compromised in this manner. How to go about it, I leave it to you.

SHRI RAJEEV SHUKLA: Sir, I will convey the feelings of the hon. Members to the concerned Minister.

# Recent move of the Government to hand over fifteen airports and Airports Authority of India in private hands through PPP route

SHRI TAPAN KUMAR SEN (West Bengal): Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, I would like to draw the attention of the august House, through you, to the most innovative way of reforms by handing over 15 airports, which have been renovated and modernized by incurring huge expenditure of thousands of crores of public funds to private hands through Public-Private-Partner route. This has already come in the Press. At the initial stage, out of 15 airports, they are planning to first take up Kolkata, Chennai, Lucknow, Guwahati, Ahmedabad and Jaipur airports, which according to them are having highest level commercial activity. So, to allow the private sector to earn a windfall profit without making any investment of this sort, I think this is against the national interest. Sir, Rs. 3,700 crores have been spent only on Kolkata and Chennai Airports to modernize them. All the other 13 airports, which are named here, are already modernized and renovated with public funds through the Airports Authority of India Ltd. Now their management is being handed over to private hands, and they are not investing even single paisa in it. Sir, the most ridiculous argument being given by the Government is that to improve the management, they are handing it over to the private sector. Kindly tell us which agency in this country having a bigger exposure than the Airports Authority of

India to manage the airports. Is that the way to fritter away the public wealth in the manner of reforms? Probably, these kinds of reforms are being listed as the most difficult reforms by the Government in the name of tiding over the present level of crisis in the country and to ailure foreign funds. I don't think frittering away public assets in this manner and that too by handing over airport operation to private hands, which also involves security question, which is being neglected thoroughly, is the right thing. So, I urge upon the Government to review the position seriously. The public fund for the purpose of modernizing the airports, should not remain within the control of the Airports Authority of India Ltd. It is better to strengthen the Airports Authority of India and give them sufficient autonomy to operate effectively and commercially. But please do not hand over national property to private hands in the name of your so called difficult reforms and in the name of so called progressiveness in the vision to change the face of the country. We have heard enough speeches like that. You go on making such speeches and we will hear these speeches, but don't transfer the public assets to private hands in this manner. This is thoroughly anti-national.

SHRI D. RAJA (Tamil Nadu): Sir, I want to associate myself with this issue.

- श्री शिवानन्द तिवारी (बिहार): महोदय, मैं माननीय सदस्य के वक्तव्य से स्वयं को संबद्ध करता हं।
- श्री नरेश अग्रवाल (उत्तर प्रदेश): महोदय, मैं माननीय सदस्य के वक्तव्य से स्वयं को संबद्ध करता हूं। लखनऊ एयरपोर्ट, जो पूरा बना हुआ है, उसे जानबूझकर निजी क्षेत्र को दिया जा रहा है। ...(व्यवधान)... चौधरी चरण सिंह जी के नाम पर वह एयरपोर्ट बना हुआ है और अच्छा-खासा काम कर रहा है। उसे जानबूझकर मंत्रालय के द्वारा निजी हित में लोगों को दिया जा रहा है। हम इसका विरोध करते हैं। मैं सरकार से यह कहना चाहता हूं कि यह बहुत बड़ा...(व्यवधान)...
- श्री उपसभापतिः ठीक है। बस अब हो गया।...(व्यवधान)...सिर्फ एसोसिऐट करिए। Yes, all of you are associating yourself with this issue.
- श्री शशी भूषण बेहेरा (ओडिशा): महोदय, मैं माननीय सदस्य के वक्तव्य से स्वयं को संबद्ध करता हूं।
- श्री हुसेन दलवई (महाराष्ट्र): महोदय, में माननीय सदस्य के वक्तव्य से स्वयं को संबद्ध करता हूं।

- श्री अरिवन्द कुमार सिंह (उत्तर प्रदेश): महोदय, मैं माननीय सदस्य के वक्तव्य से स्वयं को संबद्ध करता हूं।
- श्री आलोक तिवारी (उत्तर प्रदेश): महोदय, मैं माननीय सदस्य के वक्तव्य से स्वयं को संबद्ध करता हूं।

SHRI PRASANTA CHATTERJEE (West Bengal): Sir, I also associate myself with this issue.

SHRI DEREK O'BRIEN (West Bengal): Sir, I also associate myself with this issue.

SHRI BIRENDRA PRASAD BAISHYA (Assam): Sir, I want to associate myself with this issue.

SHRI TARUN VIJAY (Uttarakhand): Sir, I also associate myself with this issue.

DR. V. MAITREYAN (Tamil Nadu): Sir, I want to associate myself with this issue.

SHRI T.K. RANGARAJAN (Tamil Nadu): Sir, I want to associate myself with this issue.

SHRI SANJAY RAUT (Maharashtra): Sir, I also associate myself with this issue.

SHRI ANIL DESAI (Maharashtra): Sir, I want to associate myself with this issue.

SHRI TARINI KANTA ROY (West Bengal): Sir, I also associate myself with this issue.

SHRI D. BANDYOPADHYAY (West Bengal): Sir, I want to associate myself with this issue.

DR. T.N. SEEMA (Kerala): Sir, I also associate myself with this issue.

SHRI M.P. ACHUTHAN (Kerala): Sir, I want to associate myself with this issue.

### Demand to give status of IIT to the Indian School of Mines, Dhanbad in Jharkhand

SHRI SANJIV KUMAR (Jharkhand): Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, I would like to draw the attention of the House to a very important issue. Around 1500 students of the Indian School of Mines, Dhanbad are agitating in front of Jantar Mantar. An equal number of students are agitating in the ISM, Dhanbad. They want that the Indian School of Mines, which is 86 years old, be converted into Indian Institute of Technology. Sir, they are saying that the Evaluation and Review Committee set up by the Government of India in 1994 headed by Prof. S. Sampat, had recommended that the ISM, Dhanbad be declared an institution of immense national importance.

The Indian School of Mines, Dhanbad, with the approval of its Finance Committee, Executive Board and the General Council, had forwarded a proposal to the Ministry for conversion of the Indian School of Mines, Dhanbad, into the Indian Institute of Technology, Dhanbad. The State of Jharkhand had passed a Resolution in 2011 requesting the Centre for the conversion of Indian School of Mines into IIT, Dhanbad. The Indian School of Mines, Dhanbad, established in 1926 as a specialized institute in the field of Earth Sciences, is now a full-fledged engineering college with 17 Departments. So, Sir, my submission is that the Indian School of Mines satisfies all the conditions to be declared as an Indian Institute of Technology, Dhanbad. Through you, Sir, I want to request the Government that the Indian School of Mines should, immediately, be declared as the Indian Institute of Technology, Dhanbad. Thank you.

SHRI ANANDA BHASKAR RAPOLU (Andhra Pradesh): Sir, I associate myself with it.

SHRI BAISHNAB PARIDA (Odisha): Sir, I also associate myself with it.

SHRIMATI VASANTHI STANLEY (Tamil Nadu): Sir, being a Council Member of IITs, I would like to say that a committee had been formed and the matter is being considered by the HRD Ministry.

### Increasing activities of terrorists trained in neighbouring countries

SHRI M. VENKAIAH NAIDU (Karnataka): Sir, this is regarding increasing activities of terrorists across the country who are determined and who are also encouraged by our neighbours to create disturbance in our country and cripple our

Matter raised [5 SEPT., 2013] with permission 19

economy and, thereby, subvert India and create internal disturbances. The recent arrest of Abdul Karim Tunda and Yasin Bhatkal and their interrogation resulted in shocking revelations that they were responsible for many terrorist activities across the country. It is quite surprising that they were freely roaming around the country for months and years together, mobilizing local support and indulging in ghastly acts of terrorism killing scores of people.

Sir, if you go through the media reports, Yasin's interrogation reveals that they carried out the Hyderabad blasts. Yasin was in touch with youth outfits from Kerala and Karnataka like the National Development Front in Kerala and Karnataka Forum of Dignity in Karnataka. These organisations are functioning under different names and these people were using them as their local modules.

Sir, there are also some people in the country who are making a hue and cry about it. Whenever a terrorist is arrested, some people rush to their rescue and, sometimes, try to give communal colour as well. A terrorist has no religion. He is an anti-national and must be dealt with firmly. Some political parties are also saying that the Government must provide legal assistance to people arrested in terrorist cases and who are in jail. It is really very, very disheartening that political parties are going down to that level and are going to the rescue of terrorists. There are also some State Governments who say that they will provide legal assistance. Sir, we should not play vote bank politics as far as the national interests are concerned. It is against the spirit of the Constitution and against the national interests.

Sir, another important thing is that officers, who are dealing with terrorists, are sometimes taken to task and are being harassed by different agencies. We have seen how Tunda had been arrested, where he was arrested, how Bhatkal had been arrested, how much pains these officers of the I.B., the RAW and other agencies had taken to nab such people and to get them booked under the law. That being the case, we must really respect them and give them the needed honour, instead of harassing them. In the recent episode,—I don't want to mention any particular case – we have seen how officers of the I.B. are being harassed and, in some cases, how some of them have even been made as accused. If that is the case, I am not able to understand as to who will take care of national interests and national security. People who are fighting terrorists and enemies on the border, people who are tackling terrorism through various agencies, should be given

freedom. I do agree that they should be made accountable. At the same time, they should not be harassed.

The last point which I want to say is that there is every need for a national resolve that we will all come together and put down terrorism with an iron hand. That should be the approach of all the people. Otherwise, we have to pay a heavy price. Our neighbour is waging a war against India.

Pakistan has been aiding, abetting, funding, training terrorists and then training people. Sir, lastly, these Bhatkals, Yasin Bhatkal has revealed a thing. Riyaz Bhatkar, who is the Indian Mujahideen Commander is in Pakistan. Dawood is in Pakistan. A lot of these terrorists and their associates are originating from Pakistan, functioning from Pakistan. Unfortunately, we are not able to take up this issue with the Government of Pakistan and failed to impress upon the international community. That being the case, I would urge upon the Government to take this strongly and see to it that such activities are nipped in the bud.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Okay, your time is over.

SHRI BASAWARAJ PATIL (Karnataka): Sir, I associate myself with the concern expressed by Shri M. Venkaiah Naidu.

SHRI NAND KUMAR SAI (Chhattisgarh): Sir, I also associate myself with the concern expressed by Shri M. Venkaiah Naidu.

SHRI BHARATSINH PRABHATSINH PARMAR (Gujarat): Sir, I also associate myself with the concern expressed by Shri M. Venkaiah Naidu.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Sir, we all associate with the concern expressed by Shri M. Venkaiah Naidu.

संसदीय कार्य मंत्रायल में राज्य मंत्री तथा योजना मंत्रालय में राज्य मंत्री (श्री राजीव शुक्ल): माननीय सदस्य ने बहुत महत्वपूर्ण मुद्दा उठाया है। जहां तक सरकार का सवाल है, सरकार पूरी तरह से आतंकवाद से लड़ने के लिए कृतसंकल्प और कटिबद्ध है। आपने देखा होगा कि इस तरह के जो आरोप लगते हैं कि आतंकवाद को बढ़ावा मिल रहा है, इस सरकार ने केवल दुंडा बल्कि भटकल जैसे दो बड़े अपराधियों को पकड़ा है। हम किसी भी कीमत पर आतंकवाद के सामने झुकने वाले नहीं हैं और हम आतंकवाद से पूरी तरह से लड़ेंगे। हमारी युपीए सरकार का इतिहास रहा है कि हमने आतंकवाद का उटकर मुकाबला किया है। हम माननीय सदस्य की बात का संज्ञान लेते हैं और माननीय गृह मंत्री जी को अवगत कराएंगे।

# Concern for low significance given to the life and contribution of national heroes like Chhatrapati Shivaji Maharaj, Maharana Pratap and Hindu Saints in CBSE history syllabus for High Schools

डा. भारतकुमार राऊत (महाराष्ट्र): सभापति महोदय, मैं अपने वक्तव्य की शुरुआत में राज्य सभा के चेयरमैन के प्रति आभार प्रकट करता हूं कि उन्होंने मुझे इस विषय पर बोलने का मौका दिया है।

सर, आज मैं जो विषय उपस्थित कर रहा हूं, मैं इस पर किसी प्रांतिकतावाद से नहीं बोल रहा हूं, किसी मजहब के वास्ते नहीं बोल रहा हूं और न ही किसी पार्टी की तरफ से बोल रहा हूं, लेकिन इस देश की जो राष्ट्रीयता है, मैं इसके बारे में अवगत कराना चाहता हूं। सेन्ट्रल बोर्ड का जो एजुकेशन बोर्ड CBSE है, उसमें सातवीं कक्षा से बारहवीं कक्षा तक इतिहास के दो हजार पन्नें सिखाए जाते हैं। उनमें से 250 पन्ने सत्रहवीं ओर अठाहरवीं सदी के बारे में हैं और मुझे इसके बारे में कुछ नहीं कहना है। उसमें मराठा हिस्ट्री एक ओर आधा पेज यानी डेढ़ पन्ने की मराठा हिस्ट्री है। उसमें छत्रपति शिवाजी महाराज का उल्लेख है। महाराज छत्रपति महाराज शिवाजी का सिर्फ डेढ़ लाइन में उल्लेख किया गया है।

सर, सिर्फ यही नहीं महाराणा प्रताप का जो जिक्र किया गया है, वह भी पूरे इंडिया की हिस्ट्री में केवल एक लाइन में ही खत्म हो जाता है। सर, यह क्या चल रहा है? हम अपने विद्यार्थियों में किस तरह की राष्ट्रीयता पैदा कर रहे हैं? सिर्फ यही नहीं, जहां पर हम लिट्रेचर पर विचार करते हैं, जहां पर सूफी संतों का विषय है, वहां पर जो महाराष्ट्र से संत chokhamela हैं, उनका उल्लेख किया गया है, in section book, on page 87, that Saint Chokhamela belonged to the untouchable, Mahar community.

सर, यह क्या चल रहा है, एक तरफ तो हम untouchability के विरुद्ध बोल रहे हैं, दूसरी तरफ हम अपनी टेक्स्ट बुक में लिखते हैं untouchable Mahar Community. What are we up to? हम अपने बच्चों को क्या सिखाना चाहते हैं? इससे आगे जाकर महाराज छत्रपति शिवाजी का जो उल्लेख किया गया है, वह तो और भी गलत है। वहां पर वे कहते हैं कि जहां पर शिवाजी का उल्लेख है, वहां उनको छत्रपति जो लिखा ही नहीं है। उन्होंने पेज 113 पर लिखा है, Shivaji carved out Maratha Kingdom with the support of powerful maratha warrior family. सर, यह इतिहास के साथ तोड़-मरोड़ की गई है। ये इसको तोड़ना चाहते हैं। क्या करना चाहिए? Why do you want to distort history? ...(Interruptions)... सर, ऐसा करने से शायद हम किसी community के इतिहास के लोगों का दिल दुखाना चाहते हैं, लेकिन पूरे देश का क्या होगा? इस देश का सातवीं कक्षा से बारहवीं कक्षा तक का जो विद्यार्थी है, जो उसकी उम्र है, वह भारत का, हिन्दुस्तान का भावी नागरिक बन रहा है, हम उसके लिए क्या...(व्यवधान)..

### 12.00 Noon

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Your time is over. ...(Interruptions)...Okay, please take your seat.

- डा. भारतकृमार राऊत\*
- श्री तरुण विजय (उत्तराखंड): सर, यह जीरो ऑवर का विषय नहीं है।...(व्यवधान)...
- श्री भरतसिंह प्रभातसिंह परमार (गुजरात): सर, ...(व्यवधान)...
- श्री उपसभापतिः भरतसिंह प्रभातसिंह परमार जी, आप बैठिए। Okey, Please take your seat. ...(Interruptions)...
  - **डा. सी.पी. ठाकुर** (बिहार): उपसभापति जी, मैं स्वयं को इससे संबद्ध करता हूं।
  - श्री भरतिसंह प्रभातिसंह परमार: उपसभापित जी, मैं स्वयं को इससे संबद्ध करता हूं।
  - **डा. नजमा ए. हेपतुल्ला** (मध्य प्रदेश): उपसभापति जी, मैं स्वयं को इससे संबद्ध करती हूं।
  - श्री नंद कुमार राय (छत्तीसगढ़): उपसभापति जी, मैं स्वयं को इससे संबद्ध करता हूं।
  - श्री नतुजी हालाजी ठाकोर (गुजरात): उपसभापति जी, मैं स्वयं को इससे संबद्ध करता हूं।
  - MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, I will take up Special Mentions.

SHRI C.M. RAMESH (Andhra Pradesh): Sir, I was given special permission to raise AP issue...(*Interruptions*)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Sorry. I am coming to you. Mr. Ramesh, I am calling you...(*Interruptions*)...Mr. Ramesh, see, I can allow you. But, remember, the Secretariat tried for getting an interpreter. But, he is engaged in the Lok Sabha. So, he is not available. Better speak in English.

SHRI C.M. RAMESH: No, Sir. I wish to speak in Telugu. ...(Interruptions)... Yesterday you permitted me...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You speak...(Interruptions)...

SHRI C.M. RAMESH: But there is no translator...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: What happened to you? ...(Interruptions)...Your own leader is standing...(Interruptions)...

<sup>\*</sup> Not recorded.

- श्री रिव शंकर प्रसाद (बिहार): उपसभापति जी, अभी जो बात उठाई गई है, मैं उसको आपके संज्ञान में इसलिए ला रहा हूं कि...(व्यवधान)...
  - श्री तरुण विजय: शिवाजी के बारे में तो बोलिए।
- श्री रिव शंकर प्रसादः आज से दो साल पहले से एन.सी.ई.आर.टी. जिस तरह से भारत के महान् नेताओं के बारे में बता रही है, जैसे भगत सिंह को एक्स्ट्रिमस्ट बताया गया, सुभाष चन्द्र बोस को एक्स्ट्रिमस्ट बताया गया, और भी अन्य कई बातें कही गई थीं, जिनको हमने उठाया था, उस समय इनका संज्ञान लिया गया था और करेक्शन की बात कही गई थी। संजय जी ने जो बात उठाई है, और इनका संज्ञान लेने के बावजूद भी वहीं गलतियां चल रही हैं। यह बहुत दुर्भाग्यपूर्ण बात है। मैं माननीय मंत्री जी से आग्रह करूंगा कि सदन की भावनाओं का सम्मान करते हुए आप ऐसा आश्र्वासन दें कि इतिहास की किताबों में शिवाजी और महाराणा प्रताप के साथ जिस तरह से अन्याय हो रहा है, यह नहीं होगा। ये देश के आइकॉन्स हैं, इसलिए यह विषय पूरी भावनाओं के मद्देनजर उठना चाहिए।
- **डा. नजमा ए. हेपतुल्ला**: उन्होंने अभी बताया है...(व्यवधान)... इसके साथ यह नहीं होना चाहिए...(व्यवधान)...
  - श्री भरतसिंह प्रभातसिंह परमार: उपसभापति जी, यह शिवाजी का अपमान है...(व्यवधान)...
  - श्री भारतकुमार राऊत: उपसभापति जी, यह क्या है? ...(व्यवधान)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I think, Parliamentary Affairs Minister will bring this to the notice of the Minister of HRD...(Interruptions)...Sit down ...(Interruptions)...Bharatkumar Raut, sit down ...(Interruptions)...I have already directed the Parliamentary Affairs Minister to bring it to the notice of the HRD Minister. You take your seat...(Interruptions)...You made your point ...(Interruptions)...You have got special permission for Zero Hour submission. You made your point. We have understood it. The Deputy Leader and others also supported it. I have asked the Government to look into it and inform the HRD Minister for appropriate action. What else you want more than that?

संसदीय कार्य मंत्रालय में राज्य तथा योजना मंत्रालय में राज्य मंत्री (श्री राजीव शुक्ल): उपसभापित जी, भारतकुमार राऊत जी ने जो मुद्दा उठाया है और जहां तक हमारे देश के हिस्टोरिकल आईकॉन्स का सवाल है, उस मामले में सरकार हमेशा संवेदनशील रही है। उनके प्रति किसी भी तरह से, कोई भी ऐसा रेफरेंस, जो उनके सम्मान को ठेस पहुंचाता है, उस संदर्भ में हम विशेष रूप से सतर्क रहते हैं कि ऐसी कोई भी चीज न होने पाए। जहां तक इनका मसला है और जैसा आपको पता है कि एजुकेशन स्टेट सब्जेक्ट है ...(व्यवधान)...

श्री थावर चन्द गहलोत (मध्य प्रदेश): यह सीबीएसई के कोर्स की बात है..(व्यवधान)..इस पर कोई कार्यवाही नहीं हुई है..(व्यवधान)..

श्री राजीव शुक्लः उपसभापति जी, यदि सीबीएसई के पाठ्यक्रम में ऐसा कोई उल्लेख है, तो श्री एम.एम. पल्लम राजू जी, जो हमारे शिक्षा मंत्री हैं, मैं यह बात तत्काल उनके संज्ञान में लाऊंगा। यदि उसमें इस तरह का कोई रेफरेंस होगा, जिससे कि किसी की भावनाओं को ठेस पहुंची हो तो वे निश्चित रूप से इस पर उचित कदम उठाएंगे। ये अपने...(व्यवधान)...जो शिक्षा मंत्री हैं।...(व्यवधान)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Shri Ramesh, yesterday I assured in the House that I will allow you today. I am allowing you to make your mention, but limit it to only two or maximum three minutes. You can speak in Telugu. There is interpreter.

SHRI C.M. RAMESH: Yesterday you assured that you would give me permission today. That is why I requested and all my people in Andhra Pradesh to watch this. They are watching there.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You speak in Telugu. There is interpreter.

SHRI TARUN VIJAY: Sir, I requested you to speak for Tamil...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No. I am allowing you. I will allow your Special Mention. Let it come.

SHRI C.M. RAMESH: Sir, this is a very important subject. ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: It is not Special Mention. Let the Special Mention come. Okay. Mr. Ramesh.

### Situation in Andhra Pradesh on account of proposed division

SHRI C.M. RAMESH (Andhra Pradesh)\*: Sir, it is saddening that for the last few days we were trying to draw the attention of the House regarding situation that is prevailing in Andhra Pradesh and in the process we were suspended. Sir, for the last 35 days schools and other educational institutes were closed. Students, Government employees and youth are on the streets for the last 35 days and the Government is not responding to this movement even today. Sir, at last you allowed me to express our concerns in Zero Hour. Around 6 crore people of Andhra Pradesh are watching to know what is being spoken here.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: All right. You have made your point. Please, take your seat.

<sup>\*</sup> English Translation of the original speech made in Telgu.

Matter raised [5 SEPT., 2013] with permission 25

SHRI C.M. RAMESH: Sir, after Independence we are witnessing such a huge movement in our country. In 13 districts of Andhra Pradesh around 3 crore people out of 5.5 crore population are on streets for the last 35 days. In small villages, towns and cities like Vijayawada, Tirupati and Anantpur, this agitation is in full swing and people are on streets. This agitation is going on peacefully, but the Government is not responding. We are part of this country and this agitation is going on for the last 35 days. This Government does not seem to be concerned. Ministers are not attending to their offices. Even Chief Minister is not going to his office, in fact, he is in Delhi. Congress Working Committee passed this resolution for creation of Telangana state, and it is strange that Congress Ministers are protesting this decision. This decision was taken for political gains, ignoring regional interests.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I had told you about the time-limit of three minutes. I gave you the opportunity. Now, you may conclude.

SHRI C.M. RAMESH: Sir, I would like draw the attention of the House, there are many important leaders here, and I request all of you to visit my State after this session. Only then, the problems of my State can be understood. Because, the news channels or Newspapers are not reporting what is actually happening in my State. I am pained to say that such a big movement is not being reported. A week ago, Smt. Sonia Gandhi gave a statement to a Broadcasting Agency that they are going to constitute a committee to look into Telangana issue. When people are looking forward to that committee recently it was reported that they are going to expedite the process of Telangana creation. This is like rubbing salt on the wound. These statements are being made, while people are sacrificing their lives. I request them to constitute that committee. Again I request all hon. Members to visit my State. I also request that an all party committee may be constituted to look into this matter.

### MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please conclude now.

SHRI C.M. RAMESH: Sir, we are in deep agony and you have no patience to listen to us? As a people's representative if I don't voice concerns of my region, I will be failing in my duty. Government seems to be least concerned, and they are prepared to lose this region in connivance with some parties. Thank you, sir for giving me this opportunity.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Okay. Thank you. Now, I will...

श्री नरेश अग्रवाल (उत्तर प्रदेश): सर, समाजवादी पार्टी इसका समर्थन करती है। हमारे नेता छोटे राज्यों के विरोधी हैं। हम इसका समर्थन करते हैं कि आन्ध्र प्रदेश का बंटवारा बिल्कुल गलत हो रहा है। समाजवादी पार्टी इस बंटवारे के खिलाफ है।

SHRI DEREK O'BRIEN (West Bengal): Sir, no breaking-up of States any more!

SHRI V. HANUMANTHA RAO (Andhra Pradesh): Sir...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now Special Mentions. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI ANANDA BHASKAR RAPOLU (Andhra Pradesh): Sir, I have made a request.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You give Notice tomorrow. ...(Interruptions)... What do you want to say?

SHRI ANANDA BHASKAR RAPOLU: Please give me a chance.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: What do you want to say?

SHRI ANANDA BHASKAR RAPOLU: Please give me a chance.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: What do you want to say? I am asking you.

SHRI ANANDA BHASKAR RAPOLU: Let me make my case before the House.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Sit down. ...(Interruptions)... Now sit down. ...(Interruptions)... You are wasting so much time! ...(Interruptions)... Sit down.

SHRI ANANDA BHASKAR RAPOLU: Sir, I express my gratitude to you for having allowed me...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I have not allowed you. Sit down. ...(Interruptions)... You can give Notice tomorrow. I have not allowed you. ...(Interruptions)... I have not allowed you. You give Notice tomorrow. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI ANANDA BHASKAR RAPOLU: Sir, kindly give me a chance to speak. ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, no; I am not allowing you. ...(Interruptions)... Take your seat. ...(Interruptions)... Now, we take up the admitted Special Mentions. ...(Interruptions)...

#### SHRI ANANDA BHASKAR RAPOLU: \*

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, Special Mentions. Dr. Prabha Thakur. ...(Interruptions)... Mr. Rapolu, you sit down. ...(Interruptions)... Sit down. It is not going on record. ...(Interruptions)... Please sit down. It is not going on record. ...(Interruptions)... Mr. Rajeeve, you cannot have this. ...(Interruptions)...

### SHRI ANANDA BHASKAR RAPOLU: \*

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Rajeeve, what is your issue?

SHRI P. RAJEEVE (Kerala): Sir, as regards the remarks of the British Prime Minister... ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is not permitted for tomorrow. You can approach the Chairman. ...(*Interruptions*)... That is not allowed for tomorrow; you can approach the Chairman. Now, Dr. Prabha Thakur.

**डा० प्रभा ठाकुर** (राजस्थान): धन्यवाद, डिप्टी चेयरमैन सर ...(व्यवधान)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No; only laying. If you want to read, you read before the adjournment of the House.

**डा० प्रभा ठाकुर**: सर, मैंने इस विषय पर नोटिस भी दिया था। अगर मुझे नोटिस देने के बाद बोलने दिया जाता, तब मैं भले ही इसको ले कर देती।

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, no; not now. ...(Interruptions)...

**डा० प्रभा ठाकुर**: सर, यह बढ़ते हुए यौन अपराधों के सम्बन्ध में है। हमें लगता है कि शायद अब हम इसके यूज़टू होते जा रहे हैं। रोज महिलाओं के साथ जो रेप और उत्पीड़न की वारदातें हो रही हैं...(व्यवधान)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I will allow you to read before the adjournment of the House. That is the practice here. No, no; I cannot give an exemption. ...(Interruptions)...

<sup>\*</sup> Not recorded.

**डा० प्रभा ठाकुर**: सर, मैंने नोटिस दिया था, मुझे बोलने दीजिए। ...(व्यवधान) हम रोज देखते हैं, कहीं रेप हो रहा है, कहीं तेजाब डाले जाते हैं, कहीं छोटी बिच्चियों के साथ बलात्कार होता है। टी.वी. पर देख सुन कर दिल रोता है....(व्यवधान)

श्री उपसभापति: आप शाम को पढ़िए।...(व्यवधान)

**डा० प्रभा ठाकुर**: सर, उनको न्याय नहीं मिलता है, उनको जिस्टस नहीं मिलता है।...(व्यवधान) कई संशोधन नए हुए, ढेर सारे कानून बन गए हैं। लेकिन न्याय नहीं मिलता....(व्यवधान)

श्री उपसभापति: अब इसमें मैं क्या करूं।...(व्यवधान)

डा० प्रभा ठाकुर: सर, यह हंसने की बात नहीं है, please don't take it so lightly. ...(Interruptions) यह बहुत दुखद परिस्थिति है।

श्री उपसभापति: अब इसमें में क्या करूं। ...(व्यवधान)

**डा० प्रभा ठाकुर**: सर, ऐसा न किहए कि आप क्या करें। यह सदन किसलिए है? यह सरकार किसलिए है ? अगर इसका कोई समाधान नहीं है, फिर हम आपके सामने खड़े हो करके क्यों बोलते हैं?...(**यवधान**)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, please. It is not going on record.

DR. PRABHA THAKUR: \*

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You can lay it on the Table. If you want to read, you can read before the House adjourns. ...(Interruptions)... Dr. Prabha Thakur to lay on the Table.

### **\$ SPECIAL MENTIONS**

# Demand to frame a legislation to deliver justice to victims of rape and acid attacks in a time bound manner in the country

**डा. प्रभा ठाकुर** (राजस्थान): महोदय, आज यह सम्पूर्ण देश की ज्वलंत चिंता है कि क्या कारण है कि यौन अपराध रोकने के लिए कानूनों के बावजूद नाबालिग बिच्चयों के साथ बलात्कार, लड़कियों के साथ सामृहिक बलात्कार, परिवार में यौन शोषण संबंधी बारदातें तथा

<sup>\*</sup> Not recorded.

<sup>\$</sup> Laid on the Table.

लड़िकयों को तेजाब से जला दिय जाने जैसे हत्या से बदतर अपराधों की पूरे देश में लगातार वृद्धि दिखाई देती है। दुष्कर्मी को नाबालिग होने पर तो कानून सुरक्षा देता है किन्तु नाबालिग पीड़ित बच्ची जिसके साथ भयानक दुष्कर्म हुआ है, उसको कानून समय पर न्याय नहीं दे पाता। प्रतिदिन ऐसी जघन्य वारदातों को टी.वी. चैनलों पर देख-सुन कर देश में कितने लोगों का दिल रोता है और संसद सदस्य होकर भी हम कितने असहाय हैं। विदेशों में भी इन वारदातों से भारत की छवि धूमिल हुई है। क्या होगा कानूनों में ऐसे संशोधनों से, जो निश्चित समय सीमा में देश की बदनसीब बहन-बेटियों को न्याय न दिला सकें। आज आवश्यकता है ऐसे स्पष्ट एवं समयबद्ध कानून की जो ऐसे पापियों को एक माह में फांसी अथवा इससे भी कठोर मृत्य दंड देकर न्याय दे सके, तभी हमारी बेकसूर बेटियों का बिलदान बंद हो सकेगा।

### Demand for early construction of the building of the Central Institute for Classical Tamil in Tamil Nadu

SHRIMATI KANIMOZHI (Tamil Nadu): Sir, the Central Institute for Classical Tamil (CICT) was started with high expectations in 2006. After the declaration of Tamil as a Classical Language, CICT was created with the objective of furthering Tamil scholarly research and advancing literary studies.

The then Chief Minister of Tamil Nadu, *Kalaignar* M. Karunanidhi, had taken the initiative and requested the then Minister of HRD, Shri Arjun Singh, for creation of a dedicated Centrally-funded institute in Chennai. Following this, the Union Cabinet, in 2008, had allocated Rs. 76 crores for establishing the CICT, with the Tamil Nadu Chief Minister as its Chairperson.

Sir, the then Tamil Nadu Government had identified 17 acres of land belonging to the State and had transferred this to the CICT for the building work, which was to be started. During this time, the CICT was involved in research and publication of Tamil literature. A library containing rare literary manuscripts and Tamil classics also began functioning at Fort St. George, Chennai.

After 2011 elections, the situation has become dismal. The number of employees has come down to 72 from 120. The existing employees have not been regularized as Government employees and their salaries are not paid on time. Also, the CICT has been operating from a rented building, while no construction work has been done on the allotted land. The library in Fort St. George has been shut down and nobody knows what has happened to the rare collection of literary works.

### [Shrimati Kanimozhi]

I urge upon the Government to intervene immediately and ensure that the books and literary works from the library are safe. I also request the Government to immediately start construction work at the CICT site so that it could function without any hindrance.

### Demand to start construction work on sanctioned railway projects in Kumaon Region and other parts of Uttarakhand

श्री महेन्द्र सिंह माहरा (उत्तराखंड): देश के विकास में रेल का बहुत ही महत्व है। चाहे वह ग्रामीण क्षेत्र हो या शहरी, बिना रेल के उस क्षेत्र का विकास ही संभव नहीं है। मैं उस राज्य से ताल्लुक रखता हूं, जहां रेल का समुचित प्रसार नहीं हो सका है। राज्य के जन-प्रतिनिधि समय-समय पर रेल के परिचालन की समुचित सुविधाएं बढ़ाए जाने हेतु रेल मंत्रालय से अनुरोध करते आ रहे हैं, परंतु संतोषजनक परिणाम न आने से लोगों में निराशा है।

पिछले दो दशकों से उत्तराखंड राज्य के टनकपुर-घाट-बागेश्वर व रामनगर-मोहान-मरचूला-चौखुटिया-भिकियासैन रेल लाइनें कई वर्षों बाद भी अस्तित्व में नहीं आ सकी हैं जबिक इनका सर्वे कार्य पूर्ण होकर संबंधित विभाग के पास निर्माण की स्वीकृति हेतु लंबित है। राज्य के मैदानी और घनी आबादी वाले क्षेत्र के लिए नई लाइनें रूद्रपुर-किच्छा-सितारगंज-नानकमत्ता-खटीमा-टनकपुर व रामनगर-कोटद्वार रेल लाइनों की मांग लंबे समय से की जा रही है। तराई क्षेत्र का विकास तभी संभव है, जब इन क्षत्रों को रेल से जोड़ा जाएगा। राज्यका कुमाऊं क्षेत्र तीन रेल मंडलों में बंटने के कारण भी इस पर्वतीय राज्य के मैदानी क्षेत्रों में रेलवे का विस्तार नहीं हो सका। कुमाऊं क्षेत्र विभिन्न रेल मंडलों में होने के कारण भी यहां रेल का प्रसार नहीं हो सका है। रामपुर-काठगोदाम-मुरादाबाद-रामनगर रेल मार्ग पर दूसरी रेल लाइन बिछाने की मांग अर्स से की जा रही है, परंतु अभी तक दूसरी लाइनों की स्वीकृति नहीं दी गई है। इन रेल मोर्गों के विद्युतीकरण के संबंध में कोई प्रगति नहीं हुई है। रामनगर से दिन में 13.45 बजे चलने वाली पैसेंजर गाड़ी 55310 को आनन्द विहार तक चलाने से हजारों यात्रियों को फायदा होगा।

मेरा इस सदन के माध्यम से माननीय रेल मंत्री जी से अनुरोध है कि उत्तराखंड राज्य के संपूर्ण कुमाऊं क्षेत्र को उत्तर रेलवे मंडल में शामिल किया जाए तथा इस क्षेत्र के निर्माण की स्वीकृति हेतु लंबित पड़े नए रेल मार्गों का निर्माण कार्य तत्काल प्रभाव से प्रारंभ किया जाए तथा तराई क्षेत्र के विकास के लिए रुद्रपुर-किच्छा-सितारगंज-नानकमत्ता-खटीमा-टनकपुर व रामनगरकोटद्वार नाम से नई रेल लाइनों को स्वीकृत करते हुए इनका निर्माण जल्द-से-जल्द प्रारंभ किया जाए। धन्यवाद।

### Demand to introduce special trains and increase number of coaches in trains from metro cities to Kerala during festival of Onam in the State

DR. T.N SEEMA (Kerala): Sir, the people of Kerala are going to celebrate Onam Festival during the second week of September, 2013. During the festival season there may be a flow of Keralites to their homeland from other States. It is understood that the status of reservation tickets on all the trains from New Delhi, Hyderabad, Mumbai, Chennai and Bangalore has got touched with waiting list. The Southern Railway authorities have decided to run special trains to clear extra rush of passengers during Onam festival.

Hence, I request you to bestow your personal attention to this issue and take necessary arrangements to introduce special trains and add extra coaches to the trains connecting Bangalore, New Delhi, Hyderabad, Mumbai and Chennai to Kerala for accommodating the extra rush of passengers, who will make journey to their home land and fro.

### Demand to include Pali language in Eighth Schedule of the Constitution

DR. BHALCHANDRA MUNGEKAR (Nominated): The Buddha and his philosophy occupy a unique place in the history of human civilization and culture. Based purely on scientific foundation, the Buddha made man the center of his philosophical discourse and dealt with his earthly life to make him happy.

India being the birth-place of Tathagata Gautam Buddha, his philosophical doctrine constitutes a rich and an integral part of the India's rich cultural heritage. India is known in the world as the land of Buddha.

Buddha preached his ideas and thoughts through the language of Pali, the language of the ordinary men and women. The entire Buddhist literature is in Pali. Buddha's message of non-violence, control of greed, compassion, and his emphasis on the values of liberty, equality and fraternity are attracting wide attention of the humankind facing several grave challenges in the contemporary world.

Therefore, all universities in the world are the centers of studies in Pali.

I regret that the Pali language has not been included in the Eighth Schedule of the Constitution of India. This has adversely affected the progress and development of Pali. It has not got due place in Indian educational system. It is also

### [ Dr. Bhalchandra Mungekar]

one of the reasons that it has been removed from the UPSC Main Examination of the India.

I, therefore, urge upon the Government of India to include Pali in the Eighth Schedule of the Constitution through a suitable constitutional amendment.

DR. NAJMA A. HEPTULLA (Madhya Pradesh): Sir, we don't know what is being laid on the Table.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I know what you are going to say.

DR. NAJMA A. HEPTULLA: Sir, you announce it, or, let them give the title of the Special Mention. ...(*Interruptions*)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: They can say the subject of their Special Mention. ...(*Interruptions*)... Yes, you can just say the subject of your Special Mention.

## Demand to take strict measures to check the smuggling of narcotics in the country, particularly in Punjab

श्री नरेन्द्र कुमार कश्यप (उत्तर प्रदेश): उपसभापित महोदय, भारतवर्ष में अनेकों प्रकार के नशीले पदार्थों के सेवन से नौजवानों का जीवन अंधकारमय होता जा रहा है और इन नशीले पदार्थों का अमीरों के साथ-साथ गरीबों में भी प्रभाव बढ़ रहा है। प्रतिवर्ष हजारों लोग जहरीले नशीले पदार्थों के सेवन से मर जाते हैं और करोड़ों लोग आर्थिक रूप से बर्बाद हो जाते हैं। बहुत सारे जघन्य अपराधों के घटित होने में भी नशे का बहुत बड़ा योगदान है।

आज नशा करने वालों की अधिकता के कारण तस्करी के जिरये दूसरे देशों से भी नशीली वस्तुओं को लाया जा रहा है। इसका सबसे ज्वलंत उदाहरण पंजाब है। प्रति वर्ष पंजाब व पाकिस्तान बॉर्डर से अनेकों नशीले पदार्थों की खेप पंजाब में लायी जाती है, जिनमें शराब, भांग स्मैक, हेरोइन, कोकीन, चरस, अफीम, गांजा, ढोडे आदि शामिल हैं। पाकिस्तान से आने वाले इन नशीले सस्ते पदार्थों के पंजाब में आने से पंजाब के नौजवानों सहित अन्य उम्र के लोग भी नशे की लत में पड़ गये हैं आये दिन हजारों नौजवान अपने कारोबार या पढ़ाई आदि को छोड़कर अपने जीवन को बर्बाद करने में लगे हैं।

हद की बात यह है कि पंजाब के धार्मिक स्थानों के आसपास भी नशीले पदार्थों की बिक्री खुले आम हो रही है, जिससे पूरे पंजाब का वातावरण दूषित हो रहा है। सरकार द्वारा नशेबाजी को प्रतिबंधित करने का कोई ठोस कदम नहीं उठाया गया। इससे निर्दोष लोगों में रोष है।

अतः मैं आपके माध्यम से केन्द्र की सरकार से यह मांग करता हूं कि तस्करी के जिरए आने वाले नशीले पदार्थों को कड़ाई के साथ रोका जाए तथा पंजाब के लोगों को नशे से बचाया जाएं।

## Demand to lift ban on development activities beyond 100 metres of archaeological sites

DR. V. MAITREYAN (Tamil Nadu): The Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Sites and Remains (Amendment and Validation) Act, 2010, severely restricts development activities in many villages and towns in India. It also interferes with the livelihood and worship rights of the citizens. In Kancheepuram district of Tamil Nadu, more than two lakh people living in the seven *taluks* of Thiruporur, Thirukazhukundram, Maduranthagam, Uttiramerur, Kanchipuram, Sriperumpudur and Tambaram, are put to a lot of hardships in getting Land Pattas, electricity and drinking water connection, house and property tax payments etc. due to the AMASR Act.

In Thiruporur Town Panchayat alone, the act is in force in 10 out of 15 wards. Tahsildar office, Block Development Office, police station, Government schools, hospitals, bus stands, the famous Lord Muruga Temple are located there. There is a 24-hour Government hospital in Thiruporur town Panchayat on Old Mahabalipuram Road. An operation theatre, at the cost of rupees twenty lakhs, has been constructed for the benefit of the people. To activate this operation theatre, three phase electricity connection is essential. But there is no power supply. So, even after two years, the hospital authorities are unable to operate the operation theater due to this restriction. Apart from this, on the Old Mahabalipuram Road in this Township, there is a Government primary school, which is 120 years old and more than 900 students are studying there. Since the restriction order is in force, the school authorities are unable to renovate the very old building of the school.

Hence, I request the Government of India to instruct the Archaeological Survey of India to enforce The Ancient monuments and Archaeological Sites and Remains (Amendment and Validation) Act within 100 meters distance only and lift the ban on places beyond 100 meters so that people living in these areas are provided all basic amenities.

## Demand to expedite the process of rehabilitation of released bonded labourers of Jharbandh Block of Bargarh district in Odisha

SHRI A.V. SWAMY (Odisha): I rise to bring forth the concerns regarding delay in rehabilitation of 1,200 released bonded labourers in Jharbandh block of Bargarh district of Odisha.

Bonded labour-or debt bondage-is probably the least known form of slavery. It was more prevalent in the Western Odisha because of the existence of strong feudalistic culture.

During 1981-82, about 1,200 bonded labourers were released from the clutches of the landlords from 14 *gram panchayats* of Jharbandh block of Bargarh district of Odisha under the Bonded Labour System (Abolition) Act, 1976. After constant persuasion, the district authorities paid only Rs.3,000/- to Rs.4,000/- to 435 released bonded labourers under the scheme of Rehabilitation of Bonded Labour during 1986-87. Surprisingly, the rest of the 765 released bonded labourers were shown as dead in the Government records subsequently. Due to constant agitation of the labourers, the State Government ordered an inquiry in 2008. The inquiry took about two years and a fresh list of the released bonded labourers was prepared and submitted to district administration with due approval in the Sub-Dvisional Vigilance Committee on Bonded Labour System (Abolition) Act, 1976 held on 27.9.2010.

It is astounding that despite constant persuasion of the released bonded labourers and directions of the National Human Rights Commission, no action has been initiated to pay the balance rehabilitation assistance to the 435 labourers and full assistance to the rest of 765 labourers.

Therefore, it is very urgent and necessary to initiate inquiry and to expedite the process of rehabilitation of the released bonded labourers by the Ministry of Labour.

### Demand to handover the case of murder of Dr. Dabholkar to National Investigation Agency (NIA)

श्री हुसैन दलवई (महाराष्ट्र): महोदय, डा. दाभोलकर ने अपना पूरा जीवन सामाजिक कार्य के लिए समर्पित किया था। उनकी हत्या हुए पंद्रह दिन बीत गए हैं, लेकिन अभी तक खूनी को पकड़ने में पुलिस नाकामयाब रही है। महोदय, 20 अगस्त, 2013 को डा. दाभेलकर की हत्या ऐसे लोगों द्वारा की गई, जो समाज में अंधश्रद्धा, स्वयंभू भगवान आदि बातों को समाज में फैलाना चाहते हैं।

में सरकार के संज्ञान में लाना चाहता हूं कि समझौता एक्सप्रेस, मालेगांव, नांदेड़, परभणी और ढाणे में जिन लोगों ने बमकांड किया था, उन्हीं लोगों ने डा. दाभोलकर की हत्या की है, समाज में ऐसी आशंकाएं व्यक्त की जा रही हैं। महाराष्ट्र पुलिस इस हत्या की सच्चाई का पता नहीं लगा सकती क्योंकि महाराष्ट्र पुलिस इस तरह की हत्याओं के पीछे सिर्फ एक विशिष्ट समाज को ही जिम्मेदार मानती आई है। समाज में दूसरे लोग भी इस तरह की उग्रवादी गतिविधियां कर सकते हैं, यह उनकी सोच से परे है।

अतः मैं आपके माध्यम से केन्द्र सरकार से अनुरोध करना चाहता हूं कि सच्चाई का पता लगाने के लिए यह केस महाराष्ट्र पुलिस से एन.आई.ए. को स्थानांतरित किया जाए। उनकी हत्या की सच्चाई समाज के सामने उजागर करना ही डा. दाभोलकर के प्रति सच्ची श्रद्धांजित होगी।

महोदय, आपने मुझे इस विषय पर बोलने का अवसर प्रदान किया, इसके लिए मैं आपका आभारी हूं।

श्रीमती रजनी पाटिल (महाराष्ट्र): महोदय, मैं इस विषय के साथ स्वयं को सम्बद्ध करती हूं।

DR. BHALCHANDRA MUNGEKAR (Nominated): Sir, I associate myself with the Special Mention made by the hon. Member.

SHRIMATI VANDANA CHAVAN (Maharashtra): Sir, I also associate myself with the Special Mention made by the hon. Member.

SHRI H.K. DUA (Nominated): Sir, I also associate myself with the Special Mention made by the hon. Member.

### Demand to shift the artillery firing range of Tosamaidan Meadows to an uninhabited area

SHRI G.N. RATANPURI (Jammu and Kashmir): An artillery firing range was established in the Tosamaidan meadows in the year 1962. During the last fifty years, scores of men, women and children are reported to have been killed, injured or permanently disabled due to accidental explosion of unexploded artillery shells in the area. The population of the villages in the surrounding of the firing range has been demanding the shifting of this firing range to an uninhabited area in the State. There are vast areas of land in J & K with no human habitation and almost negligible

[Shri G.N. Ratanpuri]

plant and animal life. The argument that the firing range can be shifted to any one of such areas sounds logical and absolutely acceptable. To samaidan firing range has definitely affected not only the human habitations in the surrounding villages but also the wildlife and eco-system of this scenic meadow. This meadow has the potential of attracting hundreds of thousands of tourists and transforms the area into a developmental hub. This prospect has added to the motivation of the local population who demand that Army should not seek extension of lease of this area, which is about to expire, and instead shift the firing range. A "Save Tosamaidan" movement has also been launched by them.

I urge upon the Defence Minister through this august House to take cognizance of popular sentiment and shift the firing range. This also involves serious concerns about human and animal life, as also the fragile environment of the area.

### Demand to take steps for early release on Gujarati Fishermen captured by Pakistani Coast Guards

SHRI MANSUKH L. MANDAVIYA (Gujarat): Sir, I would like to draw the attention of the Government of India towards the terrible condition of fishermen from Gujarat. The Coast Guards of Pakistan have been outrageously harassing fishermen fishing in the marine boundary adjoining Kutch in Gujarat and Sindh in Pakistan. These fishermen enter the waters of Pakistan unknowingly and the Coast Guards of Pakistan immediately arrest them and capture their boats. These Indian fishermen are ill-treated in the jails of Pakistan.

I would request the Government to immediately take necessary steps for the early release of these fishermen along with their boats, which have been captured by the Pakistani Coast Guards.

# Demand to take urgent steps for repair and reconstruction of National Highway No. 98

DR. C.P. THAKUR (Bihar): The National Highway No. 98 connects Patna, from its southern end, to Aurangabad with NH-2 (G.T. Road). This is the only road between Aurangabad and Patna. This road is in very bad shape between Naubatpur

to Bikram, Patna to Phulwari, and Bikram to Arwal. The whole road needs repair and reconstruction. Accidents occur between Naubatpur and Bikram every day. From G.T. Road, it goes towards Jharkhand. The entire highway needs urgent attention of the Ministry of Road Transport and Highways.

I, therefore, demand that urgent steps should be undertaken to repair the National Highway No. 98.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Shrimati Renubala Pradhan, not here.

#### Demand to accord agriculture the status of industry

DR. JANARDHAN WAGHMARE (Maharashtra): Sir, about 68 per cent of Indian people depend upon agriculture for their livelihood. In fact, agriculture cannot sustain such a huge population. Moreover, 60 per cent of our agricultural land is arid and dry. 81 per cent of our agriculturists own, on an average, two and a half acres of land. The investment in agriculture is not more than 2.5 per cent of the GDP. The facilities that Indian farmers get are very few. The result is that the productivity of Indian agriculture has declined.

The Green Revolution that happened in the sixties and seventies was a great achievement. The credit goes to our agricultural scientists who invented hybrid seeds and chemical fertilizers. Today, India has attained self-sufficiency in food. That is why we could envisage food security for 78 per cent population in rural areas and 80 per cent in urban areas. If this situation has to continue without break, we should give all facilities to agriculture too, that are given to industries.

Both industry and agriculture are productive. Agriculture produces food-grains, pulses, oilseeds and commercial crops. Industry manufactures finished goods and articles. Agriculture supplies raw material to industry. Thus, there is a linkage between agriculture and industry. That is the reason why we should give agriculture the status of industry as it would mean that the facilities that are given to industry should be given to agriculture. This will certainly increase the productivity of agriculture. Agro-based industries should invariably be established in rural areas. Farmers should be regarded and trained as entrepreneurs.

I urge upon the Government to give to agriculture the status of industry. Thank you.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Shrimati T. Ratna Bai, not here.

Shri Tarun Vijay, I have your special request that you want to read. But I would request that if you want to read...

SHRI TARUN VIJAY (Uttarakhand): Sir, I want that Tamil should be declared as the second official language of the country. I want to read it again. But I want that all the cheers for the Tamil language started in the Central Universities of our country and even in East Asia. Now, I would like to read it again.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You can read it before the House adjourns. Sardar Sukhdev Singh Dhindsa, not here.

Now we will take up Constitution (One Hundred and Twentieth Amendment Bill).

#### **GOVERNMENT BILLS**

#### The Constitution (One Hundred and Twentieth Amendment) Bill, 2013

THE MINISTER OF COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND THE MINISTER OF LAW AND JUSTICE (SHRI KAPIL SIBAL): Sir, I move:

That the Bill to further amend the Constitution of India, be taken into consideration.

Sir, the moments sometimes come in the life of a nation when you need to revisit the past and you embrace the future. These moments have happened in the recent past in the form of the Food Security Bill, and Land Acquisition, Rehabilitation and Resettlement Bill. One such moment is here today with reference to the amendment to article 124. Sir, the original provision of article 124 (2) stated that the President of India shall appoint Judges to the Supreme Court and the High Courts in the States in consultation with the Chief Justice of India and such of the other Judges that the President may deem necessary for the purpose. Every Judge of the Supreme Court is appointed by the President, by warrant under his hand and seal. This was incorporated in the Constitution at its inception. Thereafter, Sir, after a long period of time, it was felt that the provision was not functioning or working

as well as it should have. In 1990, when the National Front Government came into being, for the first time they proposed that we should have a Judicial Commission for appointment of Judges to the Supreme Court and to the High Courts. That was part of the agenda of the then National Front Government. Thereafter, Sir, in 1993 the Supreme Court in the Advocates on Record Association case sought to change this procedure through an interpretation of article 124(2) of the Constitution. With the greatest respect to the Supreme Court, I do believe that in that process they rewrote the Constitution. I will just share with you what they did. Under article 124(2), the President who represents the Executive decides or has to decide who should be a Judge of the Supreme Court or of the High Court in consultation with the Chief Justice of India and other Judges.

They interpreted Article 124(2) to suggest that the primacy is not of the Executive, but that of the Judiciary. And, they said that without the concurrence of the Chief Justice of India, no Judge can be appointed by the Executive. And, they set up, what is called, the Collegium-under the 1993 judgement, consisting of the Chief Justice of India, along with two senior most Judges-who will then consult the Judges of the High Court and the Supreme Court and, then, appoint a Judge, both to the High Courts and the Supreme Court. Now, the word 'collegium' is not in Article 124 of the Constitution. There is no such thing as 'collegium' conceived of by the Constitution of India. How the Chief Justice of India, in consultation with two senior most Judges of the Supreme Court, will decide to appoint Judges of the High Court, is not conceived of in the Constitution of India. So, this resulted in a situation where the Executive was not a part of the decision-making process, though Justice Verma's judgement, which is the majority judgement in the case suggested, said that this should be a collaborative exercise. As we found this system to work over the years, we found that the Executive had absolutely no role to play. Today, we have only a ministerial function to perform. The Collegium informs us about who the Judges will be. We, then, act as a post office and seek the consent and, thereafter, the Judges are appointed. We may write back to the Judiciary if we have some concerns about some Judges or some appointments. And, if they reiterate the recommendation, we have no role to play. So, this continued for a while and, then, the then Government sought a reference, in July 1998, from the Supreme Court about the interpretation of Article 124 itself as to how this Collegium is to function. Why has the Chief Justice to consult only two Judges and why not more? What is the

[Shri Kapil Sibal]

logic of that, that's not a part of the Constitution itself? The Judges answered that reference by saying that the consultative process and the primacy of the Chief Justice alone should not be there; in fact, the Chief Justice should consult, not one plus two, but one plus four Judges, when it comes to appointment of Judges to the Supreme Court and one plus two Judges when it comes to appointment of Judges to the High Court. Now, why one plus four or one plus two? It is nowhere in the provisions of the Constitutions. In other words, what the Supreme Court did, was to rewrite the Constitution through the process of interpretation, which the Constitution-makers did not envisage. So, thereafter, this process continued and all political parties were somewhat concerned about it. In fact, I was looking at the manifesto of the Bharatiya Janata Party. Under the title 'Judicial Reforms', they indicated, "We must streamline the appointment procedure of Judges, in the higher Judiciary, through the National Judicial Commission and introduce guidelines and objective criteria to determine merit". This was a part of the manifesto of the Bharatiya Janata Party. It was also a part of their National Agenda for Governance, in 1998, wherein they said, "We will set up a National Judicial Commission, which will recommend judicial appointments in the High Courts and the Supreme Court and will draw up a code of ethics for the Judiciary". So, since 1990, the political parties have been clamouring for a Judicial Commission. In 1998, it was a part of the BJP's National Agenda for Governance.

The parties which were the alliance partners and which supported this agenda were the All-India Anna Dravida Munnetra Kazhgam, Samata Party, Biju Janata Dal, Shiromani Akali Dal, Trinamool Congress, Shiv Sena, MDMK, PMK, Lok Shakti, Haryana Vikas Party, TRC and Janata Party. These are the parties which supported this. I must compliment the Leader of the Opposition who was then the Minister, who, actually, in September introduced the Bill for setting up the National Judicial Commission. I might share this with you, Sir, and through you, Sir, with the distinguished Members of this House, that the constitution of the Judicial Commission is, in fact, something that we have borrowed in the proposal that we have put for the Judicial Appointments Commission. The suggestion was that it should be headed by the Chief Justice of India; alongwith the Chief Justice, there should be two other judges; then, there should be the Law Minister and there

should be one eminent person. That should form the National Judicial Commission. All that we have done in the Bill, which I am not moving at the moment, is that we have increased the one eminent person to two eminent persons. Otherwise, it is exactly the same. So, in a sense, we are grateful to the Leader of the Opposition that we are, in fact, adopting what he himself had suggested in September, 2003. Two meetings of the Standing Committee were held. Unfortunately, the Lok Sabha was dissolved, and, therefore, the Report of the Standing Committee could not be had. Thereafter, in 2007, we had the Administrative Reforms Commission which also said that the present system of appointment of judges to the higher judiciary is not something that is appropriate; therefore, we should have another body which decides on the appointment of judges to the higher judiciary. The constitution of that was different; I would not go into that matter. Then, the Law Commission took it up in 2008. The Law Commission said that this interpretation of Article 124 is completely contrary to the letter and spirit of Article 124 itself. Therefore, the original position, that was prevailing prior to 1993, should be brought back. And, the manner of appointment of judges, as it is at present, should not be accepted. All political parties are at one on this issue, which is why I am moving the Constitutional Amendment. There is no dispute that the present system does not work. I will tell you, Sir, why the present system does not work. Under the Constitution, the High Courts are sovereign in their own rights. In deciding matters which come to them, they are independent of the Supreme Court. Each High Court has the right to entertain extraordinary petitions under Article 226 of the Constitution and decide in a manner that they wish. They are not subordinate to the Supreme Court. What has happened through this judgement is that the High Court judges now look to judges of the Supreme Court for their appointment. It has disturbed the very, very delicate Constitutional balance which allows the High Court judges to function independently of the Supreme Court. I don't want to give details. But judges who hope to come to the Supreme Court are looking to members of the collegium and what their views are on subjects. This has disturbed the very independence of the High Courts in this country. If the Supreme Court is so keen to protect the independence of the judiciary, it should have been equally keen to protect the independence of the High Courts.

Secondly, Sir, the Constitution of India and one of its basic features is the separation of powers. The Executive is charged with the responsibility of taking

[Shri Kapil Sibal]

decisions and implementing them. The Legislature is charged with the responsibility of framing laws and then having the Executive implement them and answerable to the Legislature.

And the Judiciary has the power to interpret laws and strike down, through the process of judicial review, any action that the Judiciary considers to be arbitrary, contrary to the Fundamental Rights of the Constitution or any other constitutional provision. What has happened is that in the case of appointment of Judges to the Supreme Court and to the High Courts, this delicate balance of separation of powers has been disturbed. The act of appointment is not a judicial act. The act of appointment has nothing to do with the interpretation of any provision of the Constitution. The act of appointment is an Executive act. So, in that sense, the Judiciary has taken over the Executive function through a process of interpretation by re-writing through interpretation of Article 124(2). That balance must be restored back. The Executive must have a say in the appointment of Judges. We do not say that we should go back to the pre-1993 position that the Executive should alone have the say. That is why the Judicial Commission should consist of Judges as well as the Executive so that a collaborative exercise should be hatched for deciding as to which Judge, on what grounds, should be appointed.

Sir, there is another aspect to it, namely, that this applies not just to appointments to the higher Judiciary, it also applies to transfers of Judges. The Chief Justice of India, along with the collegium, has the right to transfer Judges from one High Court to another, appoint a Chief Justice from amongst the High Court Judges to a particular court, transfer a Chief Justice from one court to another. That power has also been taken off. So, in other words, which Judge is to be transferred to which High Court, from one High Court to another, which has nothing to do with a judicial function of the court, which is a purely Executive act, is also now exercised by the collegium, which also impacts the independence of High Courts and Highs Court Judges because they are under threat of transfer from one court to another. So, in a sense, it has disturbed the delicate balance of the separation of powers, it has also disturbed the separation of powers which is at the heart of our Constitution, which, I believe, is the basic structure. The Judiciary cannot take over the functions of the Executive, just as the Executive must respect the verdicts of the Judiciary when the Judiciary strikes down laws and provisions of certain statutes.

Now, Sir, look at it from yet another point of view. The Judiciary tells us, at every stage, that Governments must be transparent and accountable and the Judiciary is right; and, I think, they have faulted us rightly on many occasions when we have not been transparent and we have not been accountable. This has happened, and we see public discourse in this regard within the media and even in this House. Accountability is at the heart of Executive decision-making.

Now, Sir, how a Judge is chosen? We have no access to that decision. There is no transparency because we don't know how a particular Judge is chosen or why a particular lawyer is chosen to be appointed to the High Court where the RTI doesn't apply. We can't seek any information. We do not know the basis on which he was appointed. So, what the Judiciary says must apply to the Executive, and surely, the same principles must be applied to the Judiciary too, when it is doing an executive act. We are entitled to know why a particular person was not taken in the High Court or why he was taken, and what the criteria is. Now, in answer to the reference in 1998, in October, the Supreme Court had said that the only limited judicial review that they would allow is if the Chief Justice has not consulted all the members of the collegium. So, if he has consulted with all members of the collegium, no writ petition can be filed, no information can be sought. Now, I wonder how this is possible, when under the rule of law, accountability and transparency are at the heart of Executive decision making. That is why, I wish the House actually unanimously passes this Bill, because the time has come for us to take this decision today. Once we are there, under the Bill itself, we will have to have regulations, on the basis of which how a Judge is to be appointed will be set out in great detail what are the criteria necessary for a person to be considered for judgeship to the High Court, what are the criteria for a Judge to be considered for appointment to the Supreme Court, what are the criteria for a Judge to be considered for transfer from one High Court to another, and so on.

Sir, I must share with you something that concerns me deeply, and I am sure, concerns every Member of this House. We are very worried with the manner in which relatives of Judges are practising in High Courts. It is very disturbing. सर, बड़े दुख की बात है कि किसी का चाचा, किसी का भतीजा प्रैक्टिस कर रहा है और अगर आप कोर्ट में उनकी एपियरेंस और आमदनी को देखें, तो लगता है कि वे दो-तीन साल में बड़े विकील बन गए हैं। हम उस में कुछ नहीं कर सकते क्योंकि ट्रांसफर की पावर कोर्ट को है।

#### [Shri Kapil Sibal]

तो यह भाई-भतीजागिरी कब तक चलेगी? हम जुडीशियरी का बहुत आदर करते हैं। मैं आप लोगों के माध्यम से कहना चाहता हूं, सदन के सभी लोग कभी जुडीशियरी की संसथा के ऊपर आंच नहीं आने देते हैं। हमने इस सदन में कभी किसी जज की आलोचना नहीं की। हम जजमेंट की आलोचना कर सकते हैं. लेकिन हमने जज की आलोचना नहीं की। हम जजमेंट की भी आलोचना तब करते हैं, जब रिव्यु फाइल करते हैं या और रास्ते अपनाते हैं। अगर कोई रास्ता नहीं अपनाया जाता, तो अमेंडमेंट ले आते हैं, जैसे कि आज एक और बिल के द्वारा ला रहे हैं। लेकिन हम आलोचना नहीं करते क्योंकि हमें मालूम है कि वह ऐसी संस्था है, जिस की स्वायत्तता पर कोई आंच नहीं आनी चाहिए। देश आज भी मानता है कि न्यायपालिका ने बड़े अच्छे-अच्छे काम किए हैं। न्यायपालिका के द्वारा हमारी राजनीति में ट्रांसपेरेंसी और अकाउंटेबिलिटी आई है। मैं जुडीशियरी की दाद देता हूं, लेकिन जिस मापदंड के आधार पर हमारे फैसले जज होते हैं, उसी मापदंड के आधार पर उनके फैसले भी जज होने चाहिए। हम नहीं चाहते कि जुडीशियल अपाइंटमेंटस किमशन के अंतर्गत जुडीशियरी पर कोई फैसले थोपें, इसलिए हमने उसमें भी बैलेंस रखा है। उसमें चीफ जस्टिस होगा, दो सीनियर मोस्ट जजेज होंगे. लॉ मिनिस्टर होगा और दो एमीनेंट पर्संस होंगे। अब उन्हें कौन अपॉइंट करेगा? उन दो एमीनेंट पर्संस को The Chief Justice of India, the Prime Minister of India and the Leader of the Opposition in the Lok Sabha अपॉइंट करेंगे।

श्री नरेश अग्रवाल (उत्तर प्रदेश): राज्य सभा से क्यों नहीं?

श्री किपल सिब्बल: मैं तो तैयार हूं, लेकिन अरुण जी ने मुझे कहा कि लोक सभा से, क्योंकि यह रिप्रजेंटिव हाउस है ओर मैं इस बात को मानता हूं। इसके लिए मैं धन्यवाद करना चाहता हूं।

उसमें भी हमने सरकार के लिए कुछ ऐसा नहीं रखा कि फैसला हम ही करेंगे। उसमें भी हमने कहा कि प्रधान मंत्री बैठें, चीफ जिस्टिस ऑफ इंडिया बैठें, लीडर ऑफ द ऑपोजीशन बैठें और दो एमिनेंट पर्सन्स नियुक्त कर दें। आज भी हमने ऐसा रखा है। हमारा पलड़ा कोई भारी नहीं है।

श्री नरेश अग्रवाल: लॉ मिनिस्टर को क्यों नहीं रखा?

श्री किपल सिब्बल: जो भी लॉ मिनस्टर होगा, वह जुिंडिशयल अपॉइंटमेंट कमीशन में रहेगा। कहने का मतलब यह है कि हमने ऐसा कोर्ड काम नहीं किया कि जुिंडिशयरी को हमने बांध रखा हो, जैसे 1993 से पहले था। मैं समझता हूं कि आज सारा सदन इसे चाहेगा, क्योंकि यह तो एक एनेब्लिंग प्रॉविजन है, आर्टिकल 124(2) का जो अमेंडमेंट हम कर रहे हैं, यह केवल एनेब्लिंग प्रॉविजन है। फिर जो बिल आएगा, मैं तो चाहूंगा सभी माननीय सदस्य सर्वसम्मति से उसको भी पास कर दें, क्योंकि जैसा 2003 में अरुण जी ने सोचा था, मैं उसी

को अपना रहा हूं। मैं आपको इतना और कहना चाहता हूं कि जब यह मामला स्टैंडिंग कमेटी में गया, तो उस समय जो भी स्टैंडिंग कमेटी के सामने आये, उन्होंने यह नहीं कहा कि जुडिशियल कमीशन नहीं बनना चाहिए, सबने कहा कि बनना चाहिए। एक और बात मैं आपके सामने रखना चाहता हूं कि Justice Verma and Justice Venkatachaliah, who were part of the majority of the 1993 judgement, wrote a letter to the Prime Minister saying that they believed that that system was not functioning properly at all and they, in fact, regretted that they had rendered that judgment. In fact, I also must regret because I was the counsel, along with Mr. Nariman, who argued the case.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: So, do you regret now?

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: I regret. My friend appeared on the other side.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD (Bihar): Mr. Parasaran is also here. Does he regret too?

SHRI K. PARASARAN (Nominated): Yes...(*Interruptions*)...second Judge's case, Presidential reference and nominated as a humble member of the Review Commission nominated by that noble Prime Minister, Mr. Vajpayee, and now, I am in this House on this side.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Sir, wise men are always proved right. We were young; we were enthusiastic; we wanted to change the system, and we are sorry that we disregarded your wisdom at that point of time.

Sir, let me mention another fact. It was under the NDA Government that the National Commission for Review of the Constitution was set up. Now, when that Commission was set up, one of the issues they dealt with was 'appointment of Judges'. They also recommended a National Judicial Commission for appointment. So, in 1990, the National Front Government said it. In 1998, the BJP Government said it. The NDA Government said it. They brought a Bill. Venkatachaliah Commission said it. The Administrative Reforms Commission said it. The Law Commission said it. Every political party wanted it. Why should we delay it? There is no reason to delay it. The argument is that we need consultation. What consultation? We have been consulting since 1990. At least, since 1993, when that judgement was rendered, 20 years have passed. At every stage, every institution, every representative of every stakeholder has been consulted. Justice Venkatachaliah consulted everybody - the Bar Council, the political parties, Judges, academicians, everybody. They went before

[Shri Kapil Sibal]

him. Parasaranji will bear me out. Everybody was consulted. And, the most erudite Leader of the Opposition brought a Bill and we also respect his wisdom apart from Parasaran's.

And, we are adopting that. So, why should we send it anywhere? Sir, there is one other issue before I conclude, and, that is, it is said that if we pass the Constitution Amendment Bill, this Bill may not be passed. Sir, as you know, this is an amendment to the Constitution and under Article 368 of the Constitution, it has to be ratified by half the States in India before it goes for assent for the President of India. Even if half the States ratify, it has to go for assent of the President of India and that process will take, at least, six months or so. I personally think that the Bill should be passed, the Bill which has the composition of the Commission but even if we were to send it to the Standing Committee, and, we agree that the Standing Committee will give its Report in a month's time, it is much before the States can ratify. So, by the time the States ratify, the Bill will have been passed in this House and it will become a law, and, then, the President will give assent. If the Members of the Commission are not in place, the President cannot give assent because if he gives assent and there is nobody in place, then, there will be a hiatus. So, obviously, he will not give assent.

I can also tell you that the President of India perhaps is the repository of legal wisdom because he knows how the Constitution works and how the Constitution functions. There is no way that the President of India will give assent to the Bill if the Commission is not in place. Even otherwise, the Commission will be in place for the simple reason that the Standing Committee will give its Report. So, there is absolutely no fear or worry about it.

Now, I come to the last thing which I want to mention. Sir, what we are doing in the Constitution (Amendment) Bill is that we are stating in Article 124, "Every Judge of the Supreme Court shall be appointed by the President by warrant under his hand and seal on the recommendation of the Judicial Appointments Commission and shall hold office until he attains the age of sixty-five-years". That is all that we are saying.

We supplant the original provision of appointment by the President in consultation with the Chief Justice and other Judges with this.

We are also adding 124 A wherein we say:

- "124(1) There shall be a Commission to be known as the Judicial Appointments Commission.
  - (2) Parliament may, by law, provide for--
    - (a) the composition of the Commission;
    - (b) the appointment, qualifications, conditions of service and tenure of office of the Chairperson and other members of the Commission;
    - (c) the functions of the Commission;
    - (d) the procedure to be followed by the Commission in discharge of its functions;
    - (e) the manner of selection of persons for appointment as Chief Justice of India and other Judges of the Supreme Court, Chief Justices and other Judges of High Courts; and
    - (f) such other matters as may be considered necessary."

This is the amendment that we are bringing in Article 124 by rewording Article 124 and by adding Article 124A to set up the Commission. We have to have a similar amendment in Article 217 with respect to the High Courts. So, we are doing the same thing in Article 217(1) where we say:

"Every Judge of the High Court shall be appointed by the President by warrant under his hand and seal on the recommendation of the Judicial Appointments Commission referred to in Article 124A and shall hold office, in the case of an additional or acting Judge, as provided in Article 224, and in any other case, until he attains the age of sixty-two years."

And, then, in Article 222, which is the power of transfer, again, the amendment is, we propose "The President may, on the recommendation of the Judicial Appointments Commission, transfer a Judge from one High Court to another."

Sir, these are the amendments that I am bringing for the consideration of the House. Thank you.

The question was proposed.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, before the hon. Leader of the Opposition, I have to make a small point. In principle, we are fully supportive of National Judicial Commission institution but my humble request is this: When we sit in the Parliament, even minor statutory amendments are done upon the approval and vetting by the Standing Committee. Here, we are going for a Constitutional Amendment. There is twenty years' delay, Mr. Sibal is right. (Interruptions)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Okay. I am calling the hon. LoP.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: I would humbly request, Sir, let the two Bills go to the Standing Committee. Let the Standing Committee take a call, and, thereafter... (*Interruptions*).

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is his view. Why do you worry? ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Sir, I have a last point. An impression should not go to the country that the Parliamentarians were so keen to get it passed that even the Standing Commission institution was ignored. ...(Interruptions)...

श्री राम कृपाल यादव (बिहार): इसकी कोई आवश्यकता नहीं हैं...(व्यवधान)...

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Sir, kindly appreciate even the Law Commission ..(*Interruptions*).. Therefore, it is my request to the House and to you, Sir, to refer the Bill to the Standing Committee. ..(*Interruptions*)..

श्री एम. वेकैया नायडु (कर्णाटक): जिस तरह से सीबीसी में हुआ, वैसे ही करना चाहते हैं। ये लोग जल्दवाजी में हैं।..(व्यवधान)..थोड़ा सुनना भी चाहिए..(व्यवधान)..सीवीसी में ऐसे ही हुआ..(व्यवधान)..

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Hon. LoP is on his legs. Let him speak. ..(Interruptions).. Let the hon. LoP speak, please ..(Interruptions)..

THE LEADER OF THE OPPOSITION (SHRI ARUN JAITLEY): Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, we have heard the hon. Law Minister making a very detailed presentation on the proposed Constitution Amendment wherein he seeks to now change the present system where the power of consultation in the Constitution vested in the Chief Justice of India, a power which has been repeatedly interpreted

and re-interpreted by the Supreme Court, and introduced the concept of the National Judicial Commission. He was very right when he mentioned that my Party, the BJP, the NDA and I myself as an individual have always and consistently been a supporter of the National Judicial Commission. We supported it pre-1993; we have supported it through all these stages, and when we were in Government, he is very right, I did introduce the Bill. We have been consistent. He is a recent convert. He was fair enough to admit that he wants to change his opinion from what was argued in the 1993 judgement, which is fair enough. It is quite possible for views to evolve. He today found virtues in Justice Venkatachaliah Committee which was constituted to review the functioning of India's Constitution. This was set up in the year 2000. It had many eminent people. Chief Justice Venkatachaliah headed it. People from across the board had different views, opinions and they came out with a Report which had a very high level of scholarship and wisdom behind it. One of the Members of the Committee is a distinguished nominated Member of this hon. House. Even about the Commission, I must say, the hon. Law Minister has now changed his opinion because when we set up the Justice Venkatachaliah Committee, we were told that you are trying to erase the memory of Dr. Ambedakar, and, therefore, the Party to which he belongs decided to boycott the functioning of that Committee. Today, the Law Minister-I am glad that history vindicates what the NDA Government did-has decided to quote extensively and rely upon the wisdom of the Justice Venkatachaliah Committee. While we were consistently in favour of the National Judicial Commission, the Congress Party was never. One of the reasons that the 2003 amendment could not be carried out was the consistent view of the Congress Party that we must go back. That was the view of the then your longestserving Law Minister that Executive primacy has to be restored, and it is a fact that Executive primacy has to be restored which never found favour because large number of political parties were in favour of the National Judicial Commission. I must say to the credit of the Left Parties that the Left Parties were also, like the NDA, in favour of the National Judicial Commission. We could have differences with regard to its functioning or composition, but our commitment was always very clear.

Sir, I will come to the objection, which my distinguished colleague Mr. Ravi Shankar Prasad has raised, a little later. But have no doubt about this that our commitment to the National Judicial Commission and to restore the constitutional balance has historically been consistent. Whenever this Bill comes, whether now or [Shri Arun Jaitley]

in the next Session, in the Standing Committee or otherwise, our views are not likely to be altered. Therefore, we need not be told the virtues of what the National Judicial Commission will do, particularly by those who consistently opposed the National Judicial Commission and the very idea of a Commission when it was propagated by Justice Venkatachaliah Committee.

Sir, while we are discussing this very monumental piece of legislation, because we are going to rework and rewrite a provision in the Constitution and that is the proposal, I think we owe it to both the country and history to explain why we are doing it. The hon. Law Minister has made a very detailed and a very competent presentation. I just wish to add a few observations to this. What is it which is our principal object? Our principal object is three-fold.

The first is that India must have a completely independent and fearless judiciary. Under no circumstances is this country going to compromise with the basic tenets of independence of judiciary.

The second is this. Unlike many other constitutional systems in the world, the power of judicial review with our courts, what was vested in them and the way it has evolved, is extremely wide. They can review a large number of Executive decisions unless they impose upon themselves self-discipline of not wanting to review a particular decision. They can even review, within the parameters of their limited jurisdiction, legislations which we pass and subject to the basic structure doctrine, they can also review a constitutional amendment which we may bring about pursuant to our constituent power. So, our power of judicial review is extremely wide. And under no circumstances are we wanting to compromise with that power at all. This second aspect is, however, subject to a limitation which the framers of the Constitution themselves imposed. Just as independence of judiciary, power of judicial review is extremely important. Separation of powers, which the Law Minister rightly mentioned, is also one of the basic tenets of the Constitution. Therefore, each organ of the State, be it judiciary or legislature or executive, will be supreme within the sphere of its own jurisdiction. One cannot tell the other how that power is to be exercised. Therefore, when power of judicial review is exercised, it will be subject to the inbuilt discipline and limitation, which the separation of powers creates. And separation of powers is also a part of the basic structure of the Constitution. Neither can we alter it, nor can the Supreme Court alter it.

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 51

1.00 P.M.

Having said this, Sir, when we are reviewing the appointment system, we'll have to look back how our judicial system has functioned. Initial years after the Independence were formative years. Unity, sovereignty and evolution of the constitutional system were our priorities. Our courts were reasonably kind to the Governments of the day. The nation was being built at that stage. It is only in the 1960s that some element of assertion started as far as our courts were concerned.

The executive Government found it extremely difficult to accept that assertion. Therefore, in the early 70's a highly dangerous, almost poisonous concept of judges, with a social philosophy, was given birth to which in simple language was that India wants those people in the judiciary, who are committed to the philosophy of the then Government in power. This was extremely dangerous. If I can refer to the darkest phase of the Indian judiciary, in the mid 70's, we almost lost our status as a democracy because this whole concept of a committed judiciary, Judges with a social philosophy, had gained ground. Post that short lived era, we had various kinds of expansion; and I must say to the credit of the judiciary, they have expanded their own jurisdiction. They have made procedures simpler. They have safeguarded liberty. They have got into areas through activism. At times we make adversarial comments on that activism. If I look back today, in the last 2-3 decades, its activism almost bordering on assertion, bordering on assertiveness could really be defined the way our courts are going today. We need to go through that era and keep this brief history in mind, and look at the appointment procedures.

Sir, the initial years, what my learned friend, Mr. Sibal, refers to as the age of Executive Primacy, the pre-'93 age, I think, the first two or two and a half decades, after Independence, the 50's and 60's had men of very high scholarship in the world. This was not withstanding the Executive Primacy, allegations, or, charges, or, even comments about individuals who are almost non-existent. We had men of great scholarship. The Chief Justice of India would recommend the very best. The Government of the day would accept that recommendation; and the system worked with a sense of maturity, which could be a matter of pride for any democracy.

The problem started really in the early 70's when as a reaction against some of the judgements of the Supreme Court, particularly the 1973 judgement in the Kesavanand Bharati case, this whole concept of controlling the court was born. Sir,

[Shri Arun Jaitley]

I have not the least hesitation in saying that if in the mid 1970's India did not become a dictatorship and autocracy, it was Kesavanand Bharati case judgement which prevented India from doing so. Otherwise, the Government of the day was almost prepared to do that. Even a review of that judgement had been filed in 1975 before the Supreme Court; and the Chief Justice at one stage had agreed to hear the review, the Bench was later dissolved. Now as a reaction against the judgement, in 1973, this whole concept of controlling the court was born in India for the first time. It is after that the problem really had arisen. In 1982 the Law Minister gave a very specious reason in a letter to the Chief Ministers and Chief Justices wherein one-third of Judges in every court must come from outside because if you have judges from outside, it will promote national integration. You don't have a Chief Minister of a State going to another State to rule and promote national integration. The reason given was let us have Judges from outside and, therefore, it will promote national integration.

The Court, by a split verdict, four against three said, "The last word belongs to the Executive". Therefore, if this country has seen appointments which were lacking in quality, it was post-1982 judgement. The Executive had the last word, and, therefore, the Executive started playing an important role. High Courts, particularly across the country, were flooded with such appointments. Why did in 1993, in the Advocates-on-Record case, the Supreme Court decide to say that consultation of the Chief Justice of India would actually mean a binding consultation on the Government? You can send it back once. They said that the word 'consultation' has to be interpreted in the constitutional context, and the constitutional context is that independence of Judiciary has to be maintained. The judges know the lawyers who appear before them. They know the quality of judges in the subordinate Courts or in the High Courts. Therefore, their assessment is the last word; their assessment is the best. Therefore, in the constitutional context, we will give the word 'consultation' a meaning which is a little distinct from the meaning the dictionary gives it. Therefore, they made it a binding consultation or a near binding consultation. I do believe, Sir, if this case had been argued in the 1950s and the 1960s, the word 'consultation' would have got the dictionary meaning. It got a different meaning because the men who were writing the judgement at that time

could see in front of them what would be happening in the 1980s. Therefore, they decided that in order to safeguard the system, an activist approach was required and too much of Executive interference in the matter of appointment of judges could actually play havoc with the whole concept of independence of Judiciary, because the seed of the very idea of controlling the Court, had been born in 1973, if not earlier. But the 1993 judgement-Shri Sibal pointed out some of the problems which exist today-created another issue. He was concerned with the Executive being bypassed almost entirely or substantially. It vested too much power in one individual and that was the Chief Justice of India. What if the likes, dislikes, assessments and the judgement about individuals of the Chief Justice of India itself were faulty, could the system rely too much on the judgement and assessment of one individual? We saw in that brief phase almost absolute power in the Chief Justice of India, a fact which was being resented even by his colleagues. And the trigger, therefore, for the 1998 reference was that the Chief Justice could disregard the views of his Court; he could disregard the consultation of his senior colleagues and impose his own whims in terms of appointment to the highest Court of the country. Therefore, in a more structured manner, the wider consultation of 1993 became a more structured collegium in 1998. What has it done today? Shri Sibal fairly pointed out some of the problems, like lack of transparency, the absence of a criterion, etc. Let me point out a few more problems which are worrisome. Each Judge in the Supreme Court belongs to one parent High Court. He has, obviously, some element of consideration, affection and concern for his parent Court. The experience has shown that he becomes the Constituency Judge of that High Court, and therefore, his say in the appointments of that High Court becomes very vital, and his day-to-day interests become very vital. Therefore, all aspirants, for being Judges in that High Court, whether he is the Collegium or not, have to be on his right side, have to be noticed by him because they feel that a substantial part of the say in the elevation to that High Court will be his. So, every High Court will have a Constituency Judge in the Supreme Court. Sir, I will not go into names because it is not proper in a responsible forum to get into names. The Constituency Judge has his own likes and dislikes in that High Court. He decides to block the best man of that Court from being elevated to the Supreme Court. And till he gives the nod, the best man from that High Court will not come. In recent years, I can count on fingertips some of the most outstanding Judges of High Courts who had not been

[Shri Arun Jaitley]

elevated to the Supreme Court or whose appointments to the Supreme Court had got delayed till the Constituency Judge retired because he enjoyed a virtual veto. Therefore, some of the best Judges lost out. They could not come to the Supreme Court till they got the nod from him. And we all know the names. But we cannot get into those details. Many factors start influencing. Now, if you see the line of succession for the Chief Justice, the line of succession is always clear. We all know in which year who the senior-most, who will be elevated as the Chief Justice will be. People have started planning their careers, with a third eye on that line of succession, that when I am reaching the threshold of eligibility in terms of seniority and stature, so-and-so is the man who matters. Therefore, you will always find rumours. Mr. Sibal is aware of them and I am aware of them. So, who will bring whom is also a subject-matter of an assessment. What is happening in High Courts? Sir, in High Courts, you have a Collegium of three. Almost each member of the Collegium is as important as the other. Members of the Collegium will tell you they will tell you more frankly after their retirements—that when the Collegium meets, instead of selecting the very obvious best,—obviously, some of the best also gets selected; it is not like saying that nobody, who is good, gets selected - each member of the Collegium has its own preferences and, therefore, 'A' has to accommodate the preferences of 'B', 'A' and 'B' have got to accommodate the preferences of 'C' and they collectively respect the preferences of each other. And those eminent lawyers, who didn't fall into the preferential list, will lose out to those who were a part of that preferred preference.

Now the collegium system, when I compare it with the pre-93 system, I have not the least doubt in saying that we should not even ever think or dream of going back to pre-93. We don't live in a country where the quality of politics is also ideal. I am sure Mr. Sibal must be meeting a large number of people recommended by his party Members and that is a problem every Law Minister has to face. Now that you have got a chance please make sure that your party Members are pushed to become judges. If you go back to pre-93, you will see what happened in 80s will start happening again and that is an issue we have to guard against. We went back to the collegium system. We evolved the collegium system. A collegium is as good as the Members of that collegium. Of course, if the Members of the collegium are

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 55

extraordinary Members of very high calibre and great objectivity, these aberrations, which I have pointed out, will not take place. But if that is not the case, then, you will certainly find the impact of all this taking place. What is the larger impact which has taken place? I refer to a point, which I think, my learned friend, Mr. Sibal, would agree with, but, which probably by-passed his attention or he didn't want to refer to it as a sitting Minister in the Government. The creation of this alternative system simultaneously has disturbed one of those three principal objectives that I pointed out, separation of powers. We could look back at that era and broadly say when was the court more conventional, when was it conservative and when has it been a very activist court. Sir, judicial activism is welcome. But activism and restraint are two sides of the same coin. An absolute authority in the matter of appointment, an independence in the matter of writing judgments, a single judge of the High Court can be corrected by a Division Bench. The Division Bench can be corrected by the Supreme Court. Supreme Court is not infallible, but it is final. Above the Supreme Court, it is only God and God doesn't correct judgments. He only sits at the final judgment, at a much later stage. Therefore, we are living in an age where their view is final and what does finality mean? Look at this age where the transfer of power, where the executive primacy or participation got left out and how restraint went out of activism. Otherwise, activism coupled with restraint, if it was activism which helped personal liberty, if it was activism which protected environment, if it was activism which protected the weaker sections of society, who couldn't otherwise, approach the court; it will be a vent-out phenomenon. Can in any jurisprudence in the world, under any authority of law, while terrorist action is on and our soldiers and security forces are sacrificing their life standing in front of the terrorist and fighting them, these suddenly emerge a judicial order which says, please provide so many calories of food to the terrorists. It happened in Jammu and Kashmir. A terrorist action is on. The security forces are fighting terror and how many calories a terrorist must get in terms of his food is an obligation imposed by the court.

It is, obviously, an order which raises serious eyebrows; but, it is final. The Government of the day cannot correct it. I have seen a judgment delivered about a year ago. It was a subject matter of great debate whether economic liberalisation—neo-liberalism or dangers of neo-liberalism—of post-1991 is good or whether you must have liberalisation or not to have liberalisation. It is a subject matter of this House. The Supreme Court of India cannot have an economic philosophy. Courts do

[Shri Arun Jaitley]

not formulate policy. Courts have the power of judicial review. Courts cannot even review a policy and say, 'My policy is better than your policy.' Courts don't legislate. How are special police officers to function, how is Naxalism to be fought, how is insurgency to be fought, or, subjects such as security or economic policy or slum clearance are all matters come under the Government. Activism has gone to an extent that in case-after-case, when we fail to take action and if judiciary legislates, it is termed as judicial legislation. It lays down guidelines and those guidelines are, effectively, the law. Now, to put it simple, we argue that the political establishment has become weak in this country, Parliament is divided, polity is divided, therefore, it is happening. But, Sir, the emergence of this phenomenon making courts to say that the Government of the day must be kept in check, because the Governments may tend to breach the law. The Government may tend to upset the political balance. But, if there is a danger to the concept of separation of powers being disturbed, no Centre or State Government of any political complexion has ever said, 'Let us try and encroach on the power of the court.' The argument given is: Governments are not doing their duty. So, the court has to step in and do that duty. Sir, with utmost respect, it is a very serious and dangerous argument. If the Government is not doing its duty, please direct it to do its duty, but you cannot takeover the power. If three crore cases are pending in court, can anybody turnaround and say that courts are not doing their duty, because there is a delay. So, somebody else will now do that duty. This argument can work the other way round also. And, if it did work, we will be heading for anarchy, because courts have to decide those cases. We have to, probably, increase the number of Judges. Therefore, the whole argument that we step in and start performing the task of a court, because the Governments are not doing their duty, is not proper. Well, if the Governments are not doing their duty, compel them, stricture them. Your strictures have a great value.

We have discussed so many times that we have one of the biggest challenges—Current Account Deficit—today. When the hon. Prime Minister was here, I myself pointed out that some of the reasons for the Current Account Deficit could even be domestic, not just international. There is an imbalance in terms of our foreign currency earnings and our spending. I did point it out. Our excessive imports of coal are a cause of worry. It is because we mismanaged the coal economy. We

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 57

ourselves, the political system, have to be blamed for it. But, then, I spoke also about the iron ore exports.

They were a foreign exchange earner. I am sorry; iron ore exports! How do I criticize the Government of the day, or the State Governments? People may have erred. Those who have erred should be arrested and should be prosecuted, till such time that we get a clearance from the Court the ten billion dollar-imbalance created by lack of iron ore exports cannot take place. And each one of these orders, whether it was our own mismanagement of the coal economy or the issue of exports, is contributing to the Current Account Deficit, and the Current Account Deficit has taken the dollar-rupee parity to where it is today. The level of responsibility, accountability and answerability is of the Government. Courts write judgements; they are not answerable. Therefore, if we look at the history, when the power has completely been subsumed, it is only then that this imbalance in the separation of powers has taken place. And I don't subscribe to the philosophy which, in simple language, some people feel that they must all get together and correct that imbalance. I think, the Court must have all the powers that a Court has, but the imbalance in the separation of powers needs to be corrected. And, therefore, whatever be the restoration of authority, whether Legislative or Executive, we can't abrogate or abandon our own authority, because if the imbalance does take place, then systems would find it very difficult to function.

Sir, there is a difference between the Legislature, the Executive and the Court. Our jurisdiction, as a Legislature, is prescribed by the Constitution. The Government's powers are defined by the law. If they exceed their jurisdiction, it would be struck down, but the Court has the power to enlarge its own jurisdiction, because their last word on jurisdiction is the final word. You would find a number of cases. I saw my friend, Mr. Naresh Agrawal, the other day, raising an issue—to what extent must courts monitor investigation? Can monitoring of investigations and trials go on simultaneously? Will it lead to miscarriage of justice? Elsewhere in the world, it probably would have been a miscarriage of justice. In India, we have learnt to live with it, because the Court itself defines its jurisdiction. But, in the case of the Government stepping out of jurisdiction or the Parliament stepping out of jurisdiction, the Court has the last word; when the Court steps out of jurisdiction, they themselves decide whether they have the power or not and, therefore, the elasticity of jurisdiction is always there.

[Shri Arun Jaitley]

Sir, I wish to make just one or two more points. I think, one of the big challenges—and this is a challenge, particularly, post-1991, with economic liberalization-is that in many principle High Courts of the country, legal practice has also become very lucrative. The best are, therefore, not willing to become Judges. I think, at some stage, the hon. Law Minister would apply his mind to this question. It is an institution which must have the very best, and if the best are not willing to become Judges, it creates a serious problem. Secondly, I think, we are going a bit too far now, in every legislation, in creating post-retirement avenues for Judges. There is a proposal through which you want to increase the age. Please, do it, but with a condition, that almost everyone, barring a few notable honourable men, who are an exception, wants a job after retirement. And we are lavishly creating it for them. If we don't create it, they themselves create it. I am glad the Supreme Court has reviewed its verdict saying every member of the CIC must be a retired judge. You have a situation where what should be the fees of a college is an accounting method, it is an accounting concept. The Supreme Court by a judicial order said, "Fees of medical colleges and engineering colleges must be fixed by retired judges." And, then, in every State, it created two more jobs. I think this whole temptation of continuing to occupy a Lutyens Bungalow is a very serious temptation. Therefore, kindly review that unless it is absolutely essential, either some of these tribunals must be subsumed into the judicial set up, pay the retired judges a pension equal to their last drawn pay because the danger is greater. The desire of a post-retirement job influences pre-retirement judgements. It is a threat to the independence of the Judiciary. Once it influences pre-retirement judgements, it adversely impacts the functioning of our Judiciary itself.

Sir, this is the last serious point. I would personally like to see a National Judicial Commission which has not merely the appointment powers but to which there is some element of accountability of the judges itself. This whole concept of judicial accountability is unknown and unwritten. Impeachment is a provision, which is in the rarest of the rare cases almost impossible to arrive at, and when you reach the closure of that procedure, the concerned judge resigns or retires. Therefore, impeachment does not take place. But, misconduct, falling short of impeachment, is accountable to whom? The judges say, 'judges are accountable to judges.. So, in India, judges appoint judges; judges are accountable to judges. I think, this thinking

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 59

now requires to be changed. That is one of the substances of Shri Ravi Shankar Prasad's argument. This requires a serious rethink. We don't like the present system; so, we are agreed to change it. We are making a monumental change. Monumental changes are never brought with a knee-jerk reaction. We have always said so. You recently turned to our view, and, therefore, say, 'we all agree'. Now, should the National Judicial Commission only be an appointment body, or, should it also have some element of powers in relation to accountability or not? In my respectful submission, it must have powers of accountability.

Sir, my last point is, this is why this issue, before I come to the question of procedure, what should be the basis of appointment of a judge. A judge must have an element of scholarship, he must have an experience, he must be objective, he must be a man of integrity, he must have the temperament of a judge, he must have adequate experience, and he must have a huge level of maturity. Today, in the Collegium System, Mr. Sibal complains that we are not told the reasons why a man has been appointed. Please remember the famous saying, "When no reasons are given, then no reasons could have been given." Because you pick individuals, that objective assessment of the criteria does not take place. So, my suggestion to you would be, and it is a matter when the Bill is considered by the Standing Committee, to consider it, how would I want the criteria to be, what is the academic qualification of a candidate, how many years he has put in as a lawyer. Today, in a world with information technology available, how many cases has he argued? How many cases that he has argued are actually reported judgements? How many articles has he written? How many papers has he presented? How many seminars has he addressed? How many juniors has he trained? What is his level of income? I am just suggesting a few off the cuff. There could be 20 objective criteria which the Collegium will have to consider when the bio-data of each individual comes up. Impressionistic assessment is what takes place today. It has to be replaced by an element of objectivity. A threshold limit is required for any job in Government. There is no threshold for you to become a Judge except the number of years that you have practised and your age. Therefore, unless the Commission has strict guidelines that these are the objective criteria on which Judges are going to be appointed, this element of subjectivity in the present system will not be replaced with objectivity. Sir, my final point is that as to why we feel that both, the Constitution Amendment and this Bill, must go to the Standing Committee. Mr. Prasad has said that it is a

[Shri Arun Jaitley]

monumental piece of legislation. I assure you on behalf of my party that whether it comes on the first day of the next Session or otherwise, we are in support of this very concept. I am sure the Standing Committee will get an opportunity to hear various stakeholders, Judges, Chief Justices, former Chief Justices, Lawyers, Bar Associations, Bar Councils, etc. Let everybody give his viewpoint, let litigants give their viewpoint. Give your report, take it up on the first day of the next Session and take up both simultaneously. The reason you must take both simultaneously is that because if we pass the Constitution Amendment and replace the 'Chief Justice consultation' with that of 'Commission', we have frozen the power of the Chief Justice, subject to the assent of half the Assemblies. In this era of present politics we are going through, assuming an election intervenes and the Commission is not created, what will be the situation? You may be sure of the stability of the Government, we are not. Assuming your Bill gets delayed for some reasons and it is not done in one month or two months, you have taken the powers away from the Supreme Court by way of Constitution Amendment and you have not created an alternative system. Constitutional hiatus should never be created by the Legislature. Therefore, please ask the Standing Committee which is chaired by an eminent Congressman to give its recommendations within four or six weeks. We are in September and the next Session will be in November. Take it up on the very first day and pass the two together because the very nature of these two Bills is so interlinked and interconnected, whether power of accountability is to be given to the Commission or not, or power of only appointment is to be given, is an issue which is required to be taken up by the Standing Committee after hearing people. Therefore, both these matters are so intrinsically linked that they must come together. My party today and on any later day will support both these Bills subject to whatever minor variations are suggested by the Standing Committee. But, please, this requires consultations and this does not require a kneejerk reaction which we are adopting today. Thank you.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Let us have one our lunch-break. The House is adjourned for one hour.

The House then adjourned for lunch at thirty-nine minutes past one of the clock.

The House re-assembled at thirty-eight minutes past two of the clock.

#### [MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN in the Chair.]

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Let's continue the discussion. Shri Rajeev Shukla.

संसदीय कार्य मंत्रालय में राज्य मंत्री तथा योजना मंत्रालय में राज्य मंत्री (श्री राजीव शुक्ल): धन्यवाद, उपसभापति महोदय। आज एक ऐतिहासिक बिल संसद में आया है और पांच, दस साल नहीं बल्कि पूरे बीस साल के इंतजार के बाद संसद में यह बिल पेश हुआ है। इन बीस सालों में इस देश में इस बात पर बहस चलती रही कि इस तरह का किमशन बनना चाहिए या नहीं। फिर इस पर हर तरफ चर्चा हुई, दो-दो बार स्टैंडिंग कमेटी में चर्चा हुई, वंकटचलैया किमशन में चर्चा हुई, उन्होंने देश के नामी-गिरामी वकीलों से चर्चा की, बड़े-बड़े जजेज से चर्चा की, फार्मर चीफ जस्टिसेज से चर्चा की और बार काउंसिल से बातचीत की। इस तरह हर जगह चर्चा कर के बीस साल के बाद और उस चर्चा के निचोड़ और सहमति के आधार पर यह बिल यहां पेश हुआ है। मुझे लगता है कि अब हम सदस्यों के हाथों में एक ऐसा अवसर आया है कि जिस से हम इस देश की तकदीर बदल सकते हैं। आपके पास आज अवसर है, जब आप जुडिशियरी में एक ऐसा रिफार्म ला सकते हैं, जो इस देश की न्यायिक व्यवस्था में एक मजबूत बदलाव ला सकता है। अगर आपने आज इस चक्कर में यह अवसर खो दिया कि महीने, दो महीने के बाद देख लेंगे या जब अगला सत्र आएगा तब उसमें देख लेंगे, तो मैं इस बात को लगातार देख रहा हूं कि 1993 से सत्र आ ही रहे हैं और यह बिल अगले सत्र के लिए ही टलता चला जा रहा है। हर बार यह टल जाता है और फिर टलने के बाद टला रहता है, अभी कुछ नहीं होता। आप इस बात को ध्यान में रखिए। पता नहीं, क्यों ऐसा कहा जा रहा है कि इसको टाल दिया जाए।

महोदय, नेता विपक्षी दल, जब कानून मंत्री थे, तब उन्होंने इसकी शुरूआत की थी और इनके डिप्टी रिव शंकर प्रसाद जी जब कानून राज्य मंत्री थे तो उन्होंने इसकी बढ़-चढ़ कर पैरवी की थी। यह खुद उनका आइडिया रहा है, खुद उन्होंने लगातार जोर दिया था कि यह होना चाहिए। इनके बाद जितने भी कानून मंत्री आए, भारद्वाज जी से लेकर उनके बाद के, सबने यही कहा कि होना चाहिए। सिब्बल साहब ने जैसा कहा, जिस्टिस जे.एम. वर्मा ने, जिन्होंने 1992 में ऐसा रिकमंड किया था, उन्होंने खुद कहा कि यह हमारी बहुत बड़ी गलती थी, जो हमने कोलिजियम रिकमंड किया, क्योंकि इसमें अच्छे जज नहीं आ रहे। साल 1992 से पहले जो प्रक्रिया थी, वह यह थी कि राजनीतिक और जुडिशियरी के मिले-जुले लोगों की सहमित से जज एपॉयंट होते थे और एक से एक अच्छे जज आए, जिनमें मोहम्मद करीम छागला जेसे जज आए और ऐसे जज आए, जिनके बारे में बोला जाता है कि सबसे अच्छे चीफ जिस्टिस ऑफ इंणिया आए हैं। सारे ऐसे जजों की नियुक्ति उसी सिस्टम से की गई थी, जिसमें पॉलिटिकल प्रोसेस प्लस जुडिशियल प्रोसेस, दोनों के मिलेजुले प्रयास हुए थे और जिनके

[श्री राजीव शुकल]

द्वारा जज एपॉयंट किए जाते थे। आप तो राजनीतिक प्रकिया को जानते हैं, उसमें मुख्य मंत्री को पूछा जाता था, कानून मंत्री को पूछा जाता था और सब अपनी-अपनी राय देते थे। एक बात इसमें सबसे ज्यादा जरूरी है कि जहां कहीं किसी ऐसे व्यक्ति का चयन होता है और उसमें अगर राजनीतिक लोगों की राय ली जाती है तो उसमें बहुत ज्यादा फीडबैक मिलता है, जिसे आप सोच नहीं सकते। उसमें वे कोशिश करते हैं कि अगर कोई एक्स बन रहा है, जैसे राम लाल बन रहे हैं और अगर उसके खिलाफ दस शिकायतें होंगी तो सामने आ जाएंगी। पॉलिटिकल प्रोसेस में कोई नहीं छोड़ता है, जिसके खिलाफ जो होता है सामने आ जाता है। श्याम लाल के लिए अगर होगा तो उसकी भी दस शिकायतें सामने आ जाएंगी, तो उसके बाद पूरी छानबीन होती है। यानी एक पूरी प्रक्रिया के बाद एक जज नियुक्त होता था और वह जज आउटस्टैंडिंग जज होता था। आप उस समय के जजों का क्वालिटी लेवल देख लीजिए।

महोदय, मुझसे पहले यहां सिब्बल साहब और जेटली साहब, दोनों के भाषण हो चुके हैं। इन दोनों के भाषणों में मुझे कहीं कोई मतभेद नहीं दिखता। आज की जुडिशियरी की क्या बुरी हालत है इस बारे में दोनों ने बताया। कानून मंत्री बता रहे हैं ओर उससे जेटली साहब भी एग्री कर रहे हैं कि क्या हो रहा है? भाई-भतीजावाद, दोस्ती, अपने फेवरेट, अपने चहेतों को जज बना दिया जाता है? इससे बड़ी गंभीर बात क्या हो सकती है कि एक सिटिंग जज ने एक सिटिंग चीफ जिस्टिस ऑफ इंडिया के खिलाफ पत्र लिखा कि उनकी बहन को चूंकि मेंने जज नहीं बनाया था, इसलिए मेरा प्रमोशन नहीं हुआ। आप सोचिए कि अगर इस तरह की कोई चिट्नी किसी प्रधान मंत्री या मुख्य मंत्री के खिलाफ लिख दी जाए. या कोई ऑफीसर लिख दे कि मुझे इसलिए सेक्रेटरी नहीं बनाया गया, क्योंकि मैंने प्रधन मंत्री की बहन जो जॉयंट सेक्रेटरी थी उसे प्रमोशन नहीं दिया, तो पूरा मीडिया पीछे लग जाएगा, आप सब मिलकर हाउस नहीं चलने देंगे और प्रधान मंत्री का इस्तीफा ले लोगे। इसी तरह से मुख्य मंत्री के खिलाफ शिकायत होने पर उसका इस्तीफा हो जाएगा, लेकिन यहां किसी ने चीफ जस्टिस की कोई बात नहीं की, क्योंकि जुडिशियरी का सवाल है। कितना गंभीर आरोप था। इस तरह से आप देखेंगे कि जुडिशियरी में आरोपों की झड़ी लगी है, दो-दो की बात मैं नहीं कर रहा हूं। पहले की व्यवस्था जो पॉलिटिकल प्रोसेस और जुडिशियल प्रोसेस से मिलकर चलती थी, उनके नियुक्त जजों की क्वालिटी देख लो और आज के जजों की क्वालिटी देख लो। मैं इसमें कोई शक या संदेह नहीं कर रहा हूं, लेकिन चीफ जिस्टिस ऑफ इंडिया वी.एन. खरे ने क्या कहा? उन्हीं की बातों को मैं रख रहा हूं। उन्होंने कहा कि जुडिशियरी में भारी करप्शन है, जजों के खिलाफ कार्यवाही होनी चाहिए। जिस्टिस वी.एन. खरे का जबर्दस्त स्टेटमेंट है। उससे पहले जिस्टिस वेंकटचलैया साहब ने स्टेटमेंट दिया हुआ है कि जुडिशियरी मैं करप्शन है। मैं लोअर जुडिशियरी की बात नहीं कर रहा हूं, लोअर जुडिशियरी में जो विजिबल करप्शन है। जिस्टिस मार्कण्डेय काटजू ने तो एक हाईकोर्ट के बारे में यहां तक कहा, आप सोच भी नहीं सकते, उन्होंने यहां तक कह दिया कि यह पूरा हाईकोर्ट ही सड़ा हुआ है। और उन्होंने कहा कि उनको "मी लॉर्ड" या "माई लॉर्ड" भी नहीं कहना चाहिए क्योंकि वे पब्लिक सर्वेन्ट होते हैं। साथ ही उन्होंने कहा कि आखिरी साल में कुछ जज ...(व्यवधान)...

श्री रिव शंकर प्रसाद: माननीय मंत्री जी, आपने सम्माननीय काटजू जी का ज़िक्र किया, तो उनका एक स्टेटमेंट है कि 90 per of Indians are fools. क्या आप उस स्टेटमेंट से भी सहमित रखते हैं?

श्री राजीव शुक्ल: वह उन्होंने विदङ्गॅ कर लिया था। He has withdrawn that and apologized. I am only mentioning what he said about the Judiciary, and I am not saying that all Judges are corrupt. Seventy-eighty per cent Judges are still very honest, very good. But if some apples are rotten, the entire basket ...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Don't take any name. Don't take any name.

श्री राजीव शुक्ल: मैं तो उनके क्वाट्स बता रहा हूं, उनकी बात नहीं कर रहा हूं। जस्टिस बालाकृष्णन आए। चीफ जस्टिस बनने के बाद उनका पहला स्टेटमेंट यह था कि जुडिशियरी में जो करप्शन आ गया है, उसको हम खत्म करना चाहते हैं। उसके खिलाफ हमें कड़ी कार्रवाई करनी चाहिए। उसके बाद जितने चीफ जिस्टस आए, टेकओवर करते ही उन्होंने अपने पहले इंटरव्यू में कहा कि जुडिशियरी में करप्शन है। इसका मतलब है कि all is not well with the system. जो कोलिजियम सिस्टम आपने लगाया है, आप खुद ही कह रहे हैं कि उसमें गड़बड़ी है और जो क्वालिटी ऑफ जजेज़ आने चाहिए, वह नहीं आ पा रहे हैं। नेता विपक्ष ने इस बात को बहुत अच्छे ढंग से रखा कि जो कस्टीट्यूएंसी वाले जज होते हैं, जो हाई कोर्ट से सुप्रीम कोर्ट में आ गया, वहीं उसका मालिक हो गया। उसका जो चहेता है, चाहे वह काबिल हो या न हो, उसको आप जज बनाकर ले आते हैं, उसी का प्रमोशन हो जाता है और आप क्वेश्र्चन कर कर नहीं सकते, क्योंकि आर.टी.आई. इन पर लागू नहीं होता है। अगर इनके खिलाफ बोलो तो कन्टेम्प्ट ऑफ कोर्ट हो जाता है। इनके बारे में आप क्वेश्चन नहीं कर सकते, इनका बर्डिक्ट फाइनल होता है। तो यह अजीब बात है कि बाकी देश भर में तो ट्रांसपेरेंसी है, पोलिटिकल आदमी के गले में जितना फंदा लग सके, फांसी लगाते जाओ। क्या सारे ही नेताओं में गड़बड़ है? सिर्फ कुछ नेताओं में गड़बड़ है। इसी तरह से क्या एक भी जज यह बोल सकता है कि सारी जुडिशियरी सही है? अगर दावे के साथ यह कह सकते कि सारी जुडिशियरी सही है, ट्रांसपेरेंट है, तो आज यह बिल लाने की हमें कोई जरूरत नहीं थी। कोई भी चीफ जस्टिस ऑफ इंडिया ईमानदारी से अपनी छाती पर हाथ रखकर बोले कि सारी जुडिशियरी सही है। वे खुद मानते हैं और फिफ्टी परसेंट जजेज़ इस कोलिजियम सिस्टम के खिलाफ हैं। ...(**व्यावधान**)...

श्री के.सी. त्यागी (बिहार): "छाती पर हाथ रखकर", यह कोई अच्छा शब्द नहीं है, आप "दिल पर हाथ रखकर" बोलिए।

श्री राजीव शुक्ल: मेरा मतलब है सच्चाई से है। गीता या कुरान पर हाथ रखकर... वह में कह नहीं सकता। तो यह एक बहुत बड़ा मसला हम लोगों के सामने है। जिस्टिस कपाड़िया को तो जस्टिस की न्यायमूर्ति, प्रतिमूर्ति माना जाता है। उन्होंने तक कहा ओर वे तो ऐसे थे कि सुप्रीम कोर्ट के अपने कलीग से भी नहीं मिलते थे। कहते थे कि लिखकर भेज दो, कहां कोई उनको इन्फ्लुएंस न कर ले, तो वे इस तरह के जज थे। उन्होंने तक इस बात की शिकायत की, इसका मतलब कहीं न कहीं कुछ गड़बड़ है। अब वह गड़बड़ी ठीक केसे हो सकती है? वह बड़बड़ी ठीक हो सकती है जबिक फिर से वही प्रक्रिया वापस लाई जाए, जिसमें पोलिटिकल प्रोसेस ओर जुडिशियल प्रोसेस, दोनों तरफ के फीडबैक से मिला-जुलाकर जो नाम आएं, उनमें जो बेस्ट लोग हों, उनको जज बनाया जाए। अभी जो प्रपोज़ल है, उसमें क्या है? यह बहुत सिम्पल है। इसमें ऐसा कुछ भी नहीं है कि सरकार या राजनीतिक लोगों की कोई दखलंदाज़ी हो जाएगी या उनका दबदबा हो जाएगा। चीफ जस्टिस ऑफ इंडिया अभी भी कमेटी के चेयरमैन रहेंगे। सुप्रीम कोर्ट के दो सीनियरमोस्ट जज उसके मेम्बर होंगे, तो जुडिशियरी के तीन लोग डायरेक्ट उसमें हो गये। इसके बाद पोलिटिकल सिस्टम से सिर्फ एम आदमी, लॉ मिनिस्टर होगा। बाकी जो दो लोग होंगे, वे eminent people होंगे। यह पारासरन साहब भी हो सकते हैं, ये तो पोलिटिशियन नहीं हैं। वह सोली सोहराब जी भी हो सकते हैं, फली नरीमन जी हो सकते हैं, कोई और बहुत बड़ा समाजसेवी हो सकता है। तो दो People of eminence लाए जाएंगे, इसमें यह नहीं है कि कोई दो मिनिस्टर उसमें जाकर बैठ जाएंगे या एमपीज़ जाकर बैठ जाएंगे। तो सोचिए, जो कमीशन होगा, उसमें सिर्फ लॉ मिनिस्टर एक अकेला पोलिटिकल व्यक्ति होगा, बाकी सब बाहर के लोग होंगे ओर उसके बाद भी कोई कहे कि न्याय-व्यवस्था पर अतिक्रमण है, तो मैं कैसे मान लूं? या इसमें यह है कि पोलिटिकल सिस्टम कोई अपने आदमी डाल देगा? राजनीतिक लोगों की बात में कैसे मान लूं? मुझे लगता है कि बहुत ही संतुलन बनाने के लिए इस तरह का प्रस्ताव लाया गया है ओर इस संतुलन के ज़रिए ही सही जज आ सकते हैं और बीस साल के बाद आपके हाथ में यह मौका आया है।

महोदय, न्यायिक व्यवस्था का हाल खुद जेटली साहब ने, सिब्बल साहब ने बताया। अहमदाबाद में दो जजों में इस बात पर लड़ाई हो गई कि एक जज ने दूसरे जज के बेटे को, जो प्रैक्टिस करता था, उसकी मदद नहीं की और मारपीट की नौबत आ गई। एक कोर्ट से तो चीफ जिस्टिस ऑफ इंडिया और राष्ट्रपति के खिलाफ सम्मन निकल गए और जज साहब ने देखा ही नहीं कि किसके सम्मन हैं, किसके खिलाफ जा रहे हैं? उन्होंने नाम तक नहीं पढ़ा।

इसके बाद स्टिंग ऑपरेशन करके दिखाया गया कि पैसे देकर कैसे सम्मन निकाल लिए

थे। महात्मा गांधी के खिलाफ सम्मन निकल गए। इसके बावजूद कहा जाता है कि सारी व्यवस्था सही चल रही है। मैं इस बात को कैसे मान लूं कि सारी व्यवस्था सही चल रही है। इस बात से 70 प्रतिशत जज दुखी हैं। आज अगर आप सुप्रीम कोर्ट और हाई कोर्ट के 70 प्रतिशत जज, जो ऑनेस्ट हैं, उनसे बात करें, तो आप देखेंगे कि वे सब दुखी हैं और वे ही बार-बार इस बात को बोल रहे हैं। इसलिए मैं जजों का ही हवाला देकर बोल रहा हूं, अपनी तरफ से कुछ नहीं कह रहा हूं। जो जज लोग बोल रहे हैं, न्यायिक व्यवस्था के खिलाफ, आज की ज्युडिशियरी में जो कुछ चल रहा है, उसके खिलाफ वे जो कुछ बोल रहे हैं, मैं सिर्फ उसी को आपके सामने हाइलाइट कर रहा हूं। इसके बाद, करप्शन के कितने केसेज़ हैं, अगर मैं उनका जिक्र करना शुरू करूं तो दिल्ली हाई कोर्ट, पंजाब होई कोर्ट, हरियाणा हाई कोर्ट, गुजरात हाई कोर्ट, इलाहबाद हाई कोर्ट, हर जगह की शिकायतें हैं। कर्णाटक हाई कोर्ट के तीन जजेज़ पकड़े गए। इसलिए करप्शन की तो मैं बात ही नहीं करना चाहता हूं, इतने ज्यादा किस्से हैं, खुद जजेज़ ने जिनके खिलाफ कार्यवाही की। आज जो सिस्टम बना हुआ है, उस सिस्टम में आपने क्या किया? 65 साल में सिर्फ एक जज को आप संसद के सामने लाकर उसको इम्पीच कर पाए हैं। इसलिए आप यह सोचें कि आपका जो सिस्टम हैं, उस सिस्टम में उनको इम्पीच करके आप इसे ठीक कर लेंगे तो आप ऐसा नहीं कर सकते। बहुत बड़ी प्रक्रिया है, बहुत मुश्किल प्रक्रिया है। तमाम जज दुखी हैं। आप यह समझिए कि आज जब आप इस बिल पर चर्चा कर रहे हैं तो तमाम जजेज़ यह चाह रहे हैं कि कैसे और कितनी जल्दी यह बिल लागू हो क्योंकि कहीं किसी का प्रमोशन अटका हुआ है, तो कहीं तो बिल्कुल टेलेंटेड था, जिसको आना था, उसको रोक दिया, किसी का ट्रांसफर गलत कर दिया। वे सब परेशान हैं और चाहते हैं कि ट्रांस्पेरेंट सिस्टम कायम हो, एक ऐसा सिस्टम कायम हो जहां वे अपनी बात रख सकें। जैसा कि अरूण जेटली साहब ने कहा कि आप एग्ज़ीक्युटिव को तो बहुत उपदेश देते हैं कि प्याज कितने पर बांटना चाहिए, यह भी ज्युडिशियरी तय करना चाहती है, बस और ट्रेन कैसे चले, यह भी ज्युडिशियरी तय करना चाहती है, म्युनिसिपल कार्पोरंशन कैसे चले, यह भी ज्युडिशियरी तय करना चाहती है, ट्रैफिक व्यवस्था कैसी हो, यह भी ज्युडिशियरी तय करना चाहती है, नेता को सुबह से शाम तक कैसे तंग करें, इसे भी ज्युडिशियरी तय करना चाहती है तो फिर आप क्या कर रहे हैं? जैसा जेटली जी ने बताया, आज पूरी कंट्री में 3 करोड़ केसेज़ पेंडिंग हैं। सर, जो मेरे पास आंकड़े हैं, वे बताते हैं कि जितने केसेज़ पेंडिंग हैं, लचर न्यायिक व्यवस्था की वजह से उनको निटाने में 323 साल लगेंगे। न्यूयार्क टाइम्स में लिखा है कि "It appears that the wheel of Judiciary in India has come to a standstill." वहां न्यायिक व्यवस्था बिल्कुल पंगु हो गयी है, चल ही नहीं रही है। उसके बाद एक-एक महीने के समर हॉलीडेज़? ग्रीष्मावकाश? ऐसे कहीं इतनी छुट्टियां मिलती हैं? एक तो वैसे ही इस देश में 201 दिन की छुट्टियां हैं। इस देश में एक व्यक्ति 201 दिन की छुट्टियां ले सकता है, हमने पूरा हिसाब लगाया है। अगर वह अर्न्ड लीव, मेडिकल लीव को मिलाए और उसके अलावा शनिवार, रविवार और त्यौहारों की सभी छुट्टियों को मिलाए तो 365

श्री राजीव शुकला

दिन में से 204 दिन तो वैसे ही वह छुट्टी पर जा सकता है। इस प्रकार काम करने के लिए सिर्फ 161 दिन ही बचते हैं और उनमें भी ग्रीष्मावकाश? आप यह देखिए कि कितने दिन काम होता है? हालत यह है कि केसेज़ की पेंडेंसी लगातार बढ़ती चली जा रही है। जो काम आपका है. वह काम आप कर नहीं पर रहे हैं। मैं मानता हं कि व्यवस्था की कमी है। वे कहेंगे कि हमारे पास इतना इन्फ्रास्ट्रक्चर नहीं है। लेकिन जितना इन्फ्रास्ट्रचर उनके पास है, कम से कम उतनी तो डिलीवरी वे करें। तारीख पर तारीख, तारीख पर तारीख डलती जाती हैं। बाप ने केस किया और पोता उस केस को लड़ रहा है, 32-32 साल, 35-35 साल केस को लड़ने में लग जाते हैं। अतुल्य घोष का केस 32 साल तक चला। यह हालत हो गयी है कि किसी को भी न समय पर न्याय मिल पाता है और न ही समुचित न्याय मिल पाता है। कहीं न कहीं कुछ न कुछ खराबी तो है। आप वैकेंसीज़ की हालत देख लीतिए। चलिए, कोलीजियम सिस्टम 1992 से चल रहा है, 20 साल हो गये हैं। इलाहावाद हाई कोर्ट में हर समय 80 वैकेंसीज़ रहती हैं। वहां पर टोटल स्ट्रेंथ लगभग 160 के करीब है और उसमें से 80 जजेज़ की वैकेंसीज़ हर सहय रहती हैं। हर हाई कोर्ट में वैकंसी खाली है, उसे भी वह फिल नहीं कर पाते हैं। इस प्रकार अपनी खुद की जो जिम्मेदारी है, उस जिम्मेदारी का पालन सही ढंग से नहीं हो पा रहा है। जैसा कि लीडर ऑफ दि अपोजिशन ने कहा--वे जाने-माने वकील हैं, कानुन मंत्री भी रहे हैं--कि आप यह कहते हैं कि पॉलिटिकल सिस्टम या एग्ज़ीक्युटिव, कार्यपालिका अपना काम नहीं कर पा रही है, इसलिए हम उसमें दखल देकर यह काम करवाना चाहते हैं। अगर एक बार कार्यपालिका भी यह कहने लगे कि आप अपना काम ठीक से नहीं कर पा रहे हैं, इसलिए हम दखल देकर जजेज़ का काम करेंगे, ज्युडिशरी का काम करने लगेंगे, तब आपको कैसा लगेगा?

तब यह कहा जाएगा कि यह हमारे अधिकारों पर अतिक्रमण है और सब लोग इस पर बोलना शुरू कर देंगे। मुझे माफ करना, हमारे यहां यह होता है कि अगर ज्युडिशियरी के बारे में बहस हो रही है, तो वकील बोलेंगे, चूंकि उस पर वकील ही बोल सकते हैं। मैं गैर-वकील हूं इसलिए अपनी बात रख रहा हूं। मैं कानून विद् नहीं हूं। मैं अपनी बात एक गैर-वकील की हैसियत से रख रहा हूं। क्या आप सस्ता न्याय लोगों को दिला पा रहे हैं? मैं बताना चाहता हूं कि अपर मिडिल क्लास का आदमी भी सुप्रीम कोर्ट में मुकदमा नहीं लड़ सकता क्योंकि एक-एक वकील की फीस, बड़े-बड़े वकील की फीस 25-25 लाख रुपये प्रति हीयरिंग है, एक-एक appearance की यह बात बड़े वकील नहीं बोलेंगे। एक सुप्रीम कोर्ट के रिटायर्ड जज ने मुझ् सो कहा कि मैं अपना केस सुप्रीम कोर्ट में नहीं लड़ सकता। हम वकीलों का खर्चा नहीं दे सकते। आप न सस्ता न्याय दे पा रहे हैं, न सही न्याय दे पा रहे हैं, न समूचित न्याय दे पा रहे हैं, न टाइम पर न्याय दे पा रहे हैं। इसके बाद भी आप कहते हैं कि पॉलिटिकल सिस्टम खराब है, सब सरकारें खराब हैं। आप कौन-सा न्याय दे पा रहे हैं? आप खराब नहीं हैं, आप बहुत अच्छे हैं, बाकी सब खराब हैं। आप बाकियों के खिलाफ जजमेंट पर जजमेंट,

जजमेंट पर जजमेंट, जजमेंट पर जजमेंट दे रहे हैं। आप कभी आईना भी तो देखो। जैसे--जब अखंड रामायण होती है, तो बोला जाता है कि संपुट, तो हर बात के बाद एक संपुट मैं लगा देना चाहता हूं कि 70 प्रतिशत जज अभी भी अच्छे हैं, लेकिन 30 परसेंट जजों की वजह से 70 प्रतिशत की बदनामी हो रही है और इन 70 परसेंट की ड्यूटी है कि इन 30 परसेंट को ठीक करें। यह तभी ठीक होगा, जब इस व्यवस्था में बदलाव होगा। जजों के घर के बाहर कोई नोटों के बंडल छोड़ जाता है, कोई ए.सी. लगवा लेता है, कोई फोन ले लेता है, इतने किस्से हैं कि आपको क्या बताएं कि भरा पड़ा है, लेकिन उनको न कोई उठाता है, न बोलता है, मीडिया भी बहस करने से डरता है। एक नया चक्कर शुरू हुआ है। जज बोलते हैं कि मीडिया पर जो अभियान चलता है, जो कैम्पेन चलता है, उससे उनके जजमेंट प्रभावित होते हैं। वे करना कुछ और चाहते हैं, लेकिन मीडिया के डर से, जब मीडिया में किसी इश्यू पर कैम्पेन चल जाता है, तो वे फिर उस पर जजमेंट देने से डरते हैं और वे वह जजमेंट नहीं देते हैं. जो कानून के हिसाब से होता है. उन्हें मीडिया के प्रभाव में जजमेंट देना पड़ता है। यह भी एक नई चीज़ है कि आप influenced भी होते हैं। आपके तो आंख, नाक, कान ऐसे होने चाहिए कि आप किसी भी चीज से प्रभावित न हों। इसीलिए छांट कर ऐसे लोग लाए जाते हैं जो इस तरह का न्याय दे सकें। मोहम्मद करीम छागला को नेहरू जी दिल्ली लाना चाहते थे. लेकिन उन्होंने आने से मना कर दिया। पहले किसी किस्म का लालच होता ही नहीं था। ऐसे-ऐसे जबर्दस्त जज थे। वे सब उसी सिस्टम से निकले हुए थे, जो सिस्टम पहले था और बाद के सिस्टम से कैसे जजेज निकले. इसके बारे में मैंने चार-पांच जजेज का हवाला दिया।

अब मैं lower judiciary की बात करता हूं। इसके बारे में कहने की तो कोई जरूरत ही नहीं है। हर आदमी का अनुभव होगा, जो गांव, देहात, जिलों की अदालतों में जाते हैं। वहां पर तारीख देने के लिए ओपनली पेशगार पैसा लेता है। उसका न कोई स्टिंग आपरेशन करता है, न कुछ होता है। पैसा देते जाओ, तारीख लेते जाओ, पैसा देते जाओ, तारीख लेते जाओ, वहां पर ओपनली पैसे का कलेक्शन होता है। यह visible है। जब इसके बारे में higher judiciary में शिकायत करो, तो वहां पर कहा जाता है कि lower judiciary तो करप्ट है, उसकी बात मत करो, उसको छोड़ो। क्या आप एम.एल.ए. के करप्शन को छोड़ देते हो, उसको पूरी सजा दी जाती है। एक कारपोरेटर का करप्शन हो, ग्राम प्रधान, ग्राम पंचायत, जिला पंचायत का अध्यक्ष हो, आप उसका दम निकाल देते हैं। क्या हम यह कहते हैं कि वे लोअर लेवल के पॉलिटिशियन हैं, उन्हें छोड़ दो क्या उन्हें छोड़ दिया जाता है? यहां पर higher judiciary की ड्यूटी है। They are duty bound to weed out the wrong and corrupt elements in the lower judiciary. It is their responsibility. The onus lies on them because for District Courts, High Court is responsible; the Chief Justice of the High Court is responsible. They appoint the Judges there. It is their responsibility. अगम आदमी को न्याय कहां मिलता है—तहसील पर, जिला अदालतों में Additional Sessions

3.00 р.м.

श्री राजीव शुकला

Judge, District Judge, Additional District Judge, Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, Chief Judicial Magistrate वहां पर ये सब ही तो न्याय देते हैं। आपके यहाँ पर higher judiciary तो lower judiciary को भी कंट्रोल नहीं कर पर रही है। उसका जो rampant corruption है, उसको भी खत्म नहीं कर पर रही है।

टाइम पर न्याय नहीं दे पा रहे हैं, जो आपकी वेकेंसीज़ हैं, उनको नहीं भर पा रहे हैं, अपने केस नहीं निपटा पा रहे हैं और करण्डान की शिकायतें और ऊपर से हो रही हैं। इसके बाद भी कहा जाता है कि भई, दखल न दो, हम जैसे कह रहे हैं, करने दो, आप कुछ गड़बड़ करोगे तो मैं आपके ऊपर कार्यवाही करने के लिए बैठा हूँ। जैसे कि जेटली जी ने कोल का और आयरन ओर जिक्र किया है--मैं आयरन ओर की कहानी भी बता देता हूँ। गवर्नमेंट में सिस्टम की गड़बड़ी या डिले हो सकता है। उसकी भी जो आलोचना होती है, हम आलोचना करते हैं, लेकिन ऑयरन ओर मॉइन्स चाहे गोवा की हों, चाहे कर्णाटक की हों, कितने सालों से बंद पड़ी हैं? आप एक जज़मेंट दो, जिनको सज़ा देनी है, उनको सज़ा दो। पूरा ब्लेंकेट बैन लगाया हुआ है। देश को अरबों डॉलर का नुकसान हो रहा है। रूपया नीचे जा रहा है, डीज़ल-पेट्रोल के दाम बढ़ रहे हैं, जैसा इन्होंने कहा कि इसी वजह से करेंट एकाउंट डेफिसिट है। ऑयरन ओर मॉइनिंग से जो सबसे ज्यादा इन्कम होती थी, वह भी बंद पड़ी है। जिन्होंने गलत किया है, उनको बैन करो। जिन्होंने गड़बड़ की है, उनसको सजा दो। सारी ही मॉइन्स बंद हैं, यह कौन सी तुक है, जो सुप्रीम कोर्ट पीछे पड़ा है।

एक केस का पूरा ट्रायल हुआ, सब कुछ हुआ। जो बड़बड़ी वाली कम्पनियां हैं, उनको सज़ा दो, जेल में भेजो और उनको बंद करो। उन कम्पनियों पर बैन करो। सारे के सारे लाइसेंस रद्द हो गए हैं और सबका पैसा जब्त कर लिया। आप बताइए कि भारत में कौन इन्वेस्ट करने आएगा? अगर किसी ने यहां अपने पैसे लगाए हैं और उसके हजारों-करोड़ रुपये जब्त हो गए, तो वे दूसरी जगह जाएंगे। जब आप उनका पैसा जब्त कर लोगे, तो वे इंडिया क्यों आएंगे? वे तो इंडोनेशिया जाएंगे। मतलब यह कि सबके ब्लेंकेट बैन, सबके लाइसेंस जब्त, तो कहीं न कहीं, कोई न कोई मतलब यह जो prudence जुडिशियरी में होता है, उसका भी तो कहीं न कहीं कोई इस्तेमाल होगा। मैं यह किसी का नाम नहीं लेना चाहता। जज़मेंट देने का तरीका, मुकदमा सूनने का तरीका, केसेज़ की पेंडेंसी मतलब जिधर छुओ उधर ही गड़बड़ियां निकल रही हैं, उसको ठीक कराने की जिम्मेदारी भी आपकी है। हमारे चाचा राम जेउमलानी जी यहां बैठे हुए हैं। जब ये खड़े हो जाते हैं, तो वकील ही क्या जजेज़ भी हिल जाते हैं। तो लोग इनको पकड़ते है कि चाचा को वकील बनाओ। ...(व्यवधान)... लोगों का यह परसेप्शन है कि बड़ा नामी वकील पकड़ोगे, तो सही जज़मेंट आ जाएगा। अगर आपने लेसर नोन वकील पकड़ा, तो फिर आपको सही जजमेंट नहीं मिलेगा, क्योंकि जज भी बड़े वकील से

डरते हैं, इसलिए जो नोन वकील हैं, उसी को पकड़ो, तो इसका मतलब है कि आप बड़े वकील और छोटे वकील के चक्कर में कहीं न कहीं इन्फलुएंस्ड होते हैं। मैं आज यहां यह बात भी रखना चाहता हूं कि हमारे यहां वकीलों की हालत इतनी खराब है कि आप जिला स्तर पर जाकर देखिए कि उन वकीलों को साइकिल तक नसीब नहीं है। आप हाई कोर्ट के वकीलों की हालत देखिए, कहीं उनकी टाई जा रही है, कहीं पैंट जा रही है, आमदनी ही नहीं है। ...(व्यवधान)... जैसा इन्होंने कहा कि उनके कोट के बटन भी बराबर नहीं होते हैं। मुझे ऐसे वकीलों से बड़ी सहानुभृति है। ये जो पांच परसेंट सुपर वकील हैं, यह सारी किटी इधर जा रही है, बाकी टोटली डिप्राइब्ड हैं।....(व्यवधान)... हम यहां नाम नहीं ले रहे हैं, यह सबके ऊपर लागू है। पूरे देश में पांच परसेंट सूप्रीम कोर्ट, हाई कोर्ट के वकील ऐसे हैं, जिनका पूरा रुतबा है कि पूछो मत। उनकी अथाह कमाई है, बाकी की इतनी बुरी हालत है कि आप सोच नहीं सकते। अगर ये जजेज यह तय कर लें चाहे जैसा वकील हो, चाहे वह नोन हो या नोन न हो, रामलाल हो, श्यामलाल हो या दीनानाथ हो, लेकिन अगर सही बात करता है, केस में अच्छी आर्ग्युमेंट कर रहा है, तो हम फैसला इसके हक में देंगे। हम बड़े वकील की शक्ल देखकर फैसला नहीं देंगे। यह करेक्शन हो जाए। You are getting carried away also, यह भी समस्या है। तो हर तरफ से तो कमी नजर आ रही है। यहां पर सिब्बल साहब बैठे हुए हैं, मैं उनको यह सुझाव भी दूंगा कि आगे क्यों नहीं सोचते हैं हमने पहले भी एक बार राज्य सभा की स्पीच में कहा था कि जैसे IAS, IPS होता है, उसी तरह से इंडियन जुडिशियल सर्विस का भी कॉन्सेप्ट IJS सोचिए। उसमें शुरु से ही उच्छे लोगों को ऐकेडमी में ट्रेनिंग देकर-क्योंकि फिर वे वकील नहीं रहेंगे तो प्रभावित होने की बात ही नहीं है। अभी हॉयर जुडिशियरी में वहीं से वकील लेते हैं और कुछ नीचे डिस्ट्रिक्ट कोर्ट से प्रमोट होकर आते हैं। वे बेचारे ऐसे प्रमोट होकर आते हैं, ऐसे मौके पर आते हैं, उनको इतनी देर हो जाती है कि वे सिर्फ हाई कोर्ट के जज बनकर ही रिटायर हो जाते हैं। उनके लिए शायद ही कभी चीफ जिस्टिस बनने का हाई कोर्ट में मौका आता हो। जो डिस्ट्रिक्ट कोटर्स से आते हैं, उनका सुप्रीम कोर्ट में पहुंचने का तो सवाल ही नहीं है। ऐसी उनकी भी व्यथा है। इसलिए आप इस सिस्टम में कुछ न कुछ ऐसी व्यवस्था कीजिए कि आप इतने परसेंट लोग वकील क्षेणी से लेंगे, इतने परसेंट लोग इंडियन ज्युडिशियल सर्विस से लेंगे और इतने परसेंट लोग, जो स्टेट ज्युडिशियरी होती है, जिसको प्रोविंशियल ज्युडिशियल सर्विस कहते हैं, उससे लेंगे। उस खाते में तीनों जगहों से लेकर ..(व्यवधान)..

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Shuklaji, two more speakers are there from your party.

श्री राजीव शुक्ल: यह तो मेरे ऊपर है कि मैं अपना पूरा टाइम लेता हूं या कितना टाइम लेता हूं।

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You only gave the names.

श्री राजीव शुक्ल: उपसभापति जी, कांग्रेस पार्टी का टाइम आप मत तय कीजिए।

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You gave the names.

श्री राजीव शुक्ल: कांग्रेस पार्टी का टाइम हम तय करेंगे।

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You gave the names. What can I do?

श्री राजीव शुक्ल: जब इन तीनों से निकालकर, इसी प्रोसेस से जज़ेज आएंगे..(व्यवधान)..

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL (Kerala): Sir, the Minister cannot say like that. ..(*Interruptions*).. But, Sir, you are talking about the names that are available in the list. ..(*Interruptions*)..

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is why I said that. ..(Interruptions)..

SHRI RAJEEV SHUKLA: Who knows? I may cut those names. ..(Interruptions).. Who knows? I may cut those names. ..(Interruptions)..

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: But, Sir, the way he is talking is not proper. ..(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: He can remove the names. ..(*Interruptions*).. He can remove rest of the names. So, there is no problem. ..(*Interruptions*)..

श्री राजीव शुक्ल: जब यह होता है कि बीच में टोक दिया जाता है, तो इससे पूरा का पूरा क्रम टूट जाता है।

SHRI PIYUSH GOYAL (Maharashtra): It is a permanent problem, Sir. ..(Interruptions).. It is a problem for all of us. ..(Interruptions)..

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: This is the problem with others also. ..(*Interruptions*).. It is good that the Minister also experiences what others experience. ..(*Interruptions*)..

श्री राजीय शुक्ल: उपसभापित जी, इसलिए आज इन सारी स्थितियों को देखते हुए, Balagopalji, thanks a lot. Because of you I could consult my notes again. Otherwise, I was not able to look at my notes. इन सारी चीजों को देखने के बाद आपके हाथ में बीस साल बाद एक अवसर आया है, एक अपार्च्यूनिटी आई है। आप चाहें तो उस अपार्च्यूनिटी का इस्तेमाल कर सकते हैं, चाहें तो भारत की न्याय व्यवस्था को एक नई दिशा दे सकते हैं और चाहें तो अपने हाथ से यह अवसर खो सकते हैं। यदि आप इसको फिर से टाल देंगे तो यह ऐसे ही टलता रहेगा, जैसे पिछले बीस साल से टलता चला आ रहा है। मैं फिर से यह

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 71

बात दोहराता हूं कि, "समर शेष है, नहीं पाप का भागी केवल व्याध, जो तटस्थ है, समय लिखेगा उनका भी अपराध।" ये रामधारी सिंह दिनकर जी की पंक्तियां हैं। अगर आपने वक्त पर फैसला नहीं लिया, तो अवसर आपके हाथ से निकल जाएगा। आज भारत की इस न्याय व्यवस्था को बदलने का अवसर है। आज वह अवसर है कि जिसमें आप एक ऐसा संतुलन बना सकते हैं कि जिसमें ज्यूडिशियरी का भी पूरा दबदबा कायम रहे और राजनीतिक व्यवस्था का भी थोड़ा सा हस्तक्षेप रहे तािक सही लोगों का चयन हो। सिब्बल साहब इस तरह का बिल लाए हैं कि, "तुम्हारी भी जय-जय, हमारी जी जय-जय, न तुम हारे, न हम हारे"। वरना बाततो सही है कि कुछ न कुछ बात तो होगी, कुछ न कुछ मजबूरियां तो रही होंगी, वरना यूँ ही कोई बेवफ़ा नहीं होता। अगर ऐसे लोग आलोचना कर रहे हैं तो इस सिस्टम में, जो 1992 से जिस्टस जे.एस. वर्मा का दिया हुआ, जिसकी इतनी आलोचना हो रही है, जिसमें इतनी किमयां हैं, खुद जज लोग कर रहे हैं, तो निर्णय लेना चािहए। इसिलए मित्रो, आज मौका है, चाहे तो इस मौके का इस्तेमाल कर लो, चाहे उसे गवां दो। बहुत-बहुत धन्यवाद।

SHRI SATISH CHANDRA MISRA (Uttar Pradesh): Thank you Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, for giving me this opportunity to speak on this very important Constitution Amendment. But, I must admit that when I stand to speak I know we have heard eminent people like Shri Kapil Sibal, a very eminent lawyer and Shri Arun Jaitley, and there are other eminent lawyers—more eminent than I would like to be somewhere near, but I can't be there—Mr. Ravi Shankar Prasad, Mr. Ram Jethmalani and Mr. Parasaran. We had other lawyers also who are not here.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You are also an eminent lawyer.

SHRI SATISH CHANDRA MISRA: But I have a little experience also in this field, I must say. I have 37 years of experience as a lawyer. Though I have not sat on the bench, I have some experience of the other side as well through my family. My father was Chief Justice, my real uncle was a judge and my real brother was a judge. Through my legal background, I also know about bar associations. I was Secretary of the High Court Bar Association. I was Member of the Bar Council of U.P. And then I was Chairman of the Bar Council of U.P. I have seen the system of the whole of U.P. where we have the maximum number of lawyers as of today. Thereafter, I got the opportunity of being the Advocate General of U.P. I have some experience but not as much as those eminent persons have who have spoken earlier. When I heard them speaking on the Bill, I must admit that Mr. Kapil Sibal and Mr. Arun Jaitley were on the same lines. They spoke almost on the point that there was a necessity and there is an extreme necessity to have a change in the system and to

# [Shri Satish Chandra Mishra]

have the National Judicial Commission. With due respect to Mr. Arun Jaitley, I was slightly disappointed at the end of his speech when he said that we should defer it and that it should go for further examination. In the beginning of his speech he said, "When we brought it, you opposed it." The impression was that since you have brought it, we have to defer it. Why can't both of them be together? It should not be like this that 'since you have brought it, I should say that it should be deferred, because when I brought the same thing, you said that it should be deferred.' This way it will always remain deferred. We have already witnessed that. It is not 20 years. I must say that it has been more than 22 years since the National Judicial Commission was conceived. Why am I saying 22 years? I am saying it on the basis of the judgement of the hon. Supreme Court itself. After the 1983 judgement in S.P. Gupta' case, the matter went before the three hon. judges. It was a transfer case. It came again. In the Supreme Court Record Association case and Subhash Sharma's case in 1991, it was referred to a larger bench to look into the veracity of 1983 judgement in S.P. Gupta's case. In that very judgement, if we see it, the reference was only on two points and not with respect to the entire issue. Ultimately, the Supreme Court took up the matter and entered into various other issues which were not even referred to it. I would read only five lines of paragraph 50 of the judgement of Subhash Sharma's case. It says, "It is not a power or right to appoint judges. It is essentially a discharge of constitutional trust of which certain constitutional functionaries are collectively repositories." It further says, "We are aware of the position.." Now this is very important. Today, we are not considering the accountability of the judges. We must keep in mind that there is a difference and distinction between accountability and with respect to the appointment though they may be interlinked. If we have proper judges, they will be more accountable. If we don't have proper judges, they will not be accountable. But in paragraph 50 of the judgement, the hon. Supreme Court, while making reference to it, in 1991 said that it had taken note of the National Judicial Commission. It says, "We are aware of the position that the setting up of the National Judicial Commission through a constitutional amendment is in contemplation." We are in 2013 now. "In the event of the amendment being carried and a National Judicial Commission being set up, the correctness of the ratio in S.P. Gupta's case of the status of the Chief Justice of India may not be necessary to be examined in view of the fact that by the

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 73

amendment the Chief Justice of India would become the Chairman of the Commission." Thereafter they say, "In case the Commission is not constituted, the two questions indicated above which are of vital importance to the efficient functioning of the judicial system in the country require consideration and there is an element of immediacy in the matter."

So, therefore, the hon. Supreme Court right from the beginning itself was conceding to a judicial commission; and that was in 1991, when they referred the matter to the Bench of Nine Judges. The first judgement came, thereafter Presidential reference was made and then the second judgement came where the collegium system, which was earlier with three judges, was increased to five judges. Then, a memorandum was prepared under that judgement by the Government of India, by the Law Minister which was sent to all the Chief Justices. But the procedure with respect to the appointment was never followed. Why I am saying that it was never followed because we need to have an independent judiciary. The necessity is to have an independent judiciary as has been said by previous speakers. It is one of the main pillars of democracy; and plays a very important role in ensuring and securing the social justice which is enshrined in the Preamble of the Constitution. Now, if we see the Preamble of the Constitution, it says, "We the people" will secure social justice to all citizens of the country. How are we securing the social justice? Dr. B.R. Ambedkar, the father of the Indian Constitution, when he framed the Constitution, he never conceived that there will be a system of appointment of judges in such a manner that there will be no chance of securing social justice through the judiciary. Why I am saying so is because, as on date, under the present system which is there so far as Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes are concerned, they are the most weakest section of the society. There are nearly 30 crores of SCs and STs in the country. But where from should they get justice? Is there any one to understand their problem? Every time I have been raising, in this House, that out of 160 Judges in the Allahabad High Court, 80 Judges posts are vacant. That is something different. Out of the 80 Judges also, we do not have a single Judge belonging to the Scheduled Caste even today in the Allahabad High Court. If this is the situation, how can we ensure social justice? We need to ensure that the appointments are made in a manner where their voice is also there. I request the Law Minister to look into this aspect. I know that I have seen the circular. Being the Advocate-General at one point of time, I had persuaded the then Chief Justice

# [Shri Satish Chandra Mishra]

and collegium members to, at least, recommend one name from the Scheduled Caste category for appointment as a Judge. With great difficulty we could get three names for appointment as Judges. Out of three names, two names were turned down by the higher collegium when it reached the Supreme Court. The one who was appointed had expired after two years. Thereafter not a single name from the Scheduled Caste category was recommended. As per the circular, we made all efforts to get their names recommended. The Law Minister knows about the circular that the Chief Minister can also recommend the names. Even the judgement says that he can recommend the names. The Chief Minister did not recommend a name. They took care that no name was sent. When Bahujan Samaj Party was in the Government for five years; and when I was the Advocate General in 2003-04, we could, at least, send two names. If you are sending 100 names for appointment as Judges, at least, include one name from the Scheduled Caste category. But not even one name was recommended. This system is failing not because of this reason alone. There are other reasons also. As has been pointed out by previous speakers, this Bill should not be confused with the other Bill. As the Leader of the Opposition, Shri Arun Jaitley rightly said, there has to be an accountability of the Judges also. I fully agree with him that there should be accountability of the Judges; and some procedure should be there with respect to that. But we can't include that in this Bill. As soon as we include that in this Bill there will be confusion. Earlier we tried to include it but failed. When we include it in this Bill, there will be several questions on the independence of the judiciary saying that you are interfering with the independence of judiciary. Therefore, I would say that it has been very rightly separated from this Bill. It can be brought separately. It can be thought of separately. It can be discussed separately. Thereafter it can be brought for a discussion. But at this point of time we should only concentrate on the appointment of Judges. When we consider the appointment of Judges, we are not overarching the judicial dictums which are there, or, the judgement which the hon. Supreme Court has given. They have taken over the collegium. There is no provision in the article. When I read the articles again and again with respect to appointments, both the articles don't refer to any collegium. They say 'with the consultation of the Chief Justice'. Here it is reversed. The Chief Justice will not consult the President, but he will just communicate the President that look here I have selected so and so. Now, what is

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 75

the procedure of selection? It is totally non-transparent. It is not known to others, except the persons who are members of the collegium. A collegium is framed. Three judges sit together or five judges sit together. They sit together and decide. We know, whoever is in this profession knows, others also know that when the collegium meets, one member says, "This is my list" and the other member says, "This is my list", and then they say, "Let us decide it. If ten names have to be sent, we will choose three each." Is this the system? A judge has to be appointed on the basis of his qualities because he has to discharge his duties even with respect to enforcing the fundamental rights of 125 crore people of this country. They are putting everything into their hands. But they have become supreme, as has been rightly pointed out by the Leader of the Opposition that only god is above them, and no one else. We have given them so much power and they have taken all that power. They are only interested in PILs mostly because there they can decide whether there should be a nail or a parnala and everything like whether this dog should remain in this street or it should not remain in a park, every sort of thing which one can imagine. What is the function of the Executive? The Executive knows how to deal with them. They are the policy-makers. After a policy is made here, it is given in the hands of the Executive. The Executive has to take action. Whoever is in power, whichever party may be in power in any State or in the Centre, whenever they take any decision, they always think that this decision first has to be got approved by the judges or by the courts, it may be the High Court or the Supreme Court. Now what is being said is if a policy is framed, there should be a method, there should be a common decision that any policy being made for development or for any work, it should first be referred to the Supreme Court or to the High Court for their approval and then the action should be taken. Because if it is not done, then the Ministers may go to jails, the officers may go to jails. Who is going to work then? Who is going to sign the files then? All this is already happening. The judges' qualities which are required for appointment, is the basic thing which should have been considered. The judge should be of an unimpeachable integrity. He should possess high integrity, honesty, skill, high order of emotional stability, firmness, serenity, legal soundness, agility and endurance. Now there should be personal qualities also which should be taken into consideration, which are not considered and that is moral vigour; moral vigour of the person concerned who is being appointed. And, ethical firmness of imperviousness to corrupting or venal [Shri Satish Chandra Mishra]

influences; humility and lack of affiliations, judicial temperament, and zeal and capacity to work and give judgements and decide the matters. Now today, we find the judges are appointed, but they also don't feel whether the judgement is going to be right or wrong. Therefore, even the judgements are kept on hold for years together and they are not delivered. The judge, while giving a judgement, is not able to judge that whether the judgement would be right or wrong. So, in these circumstances, we have to take into consideration that also. If a Judicial Commission is made, it is not going to interfere in the independence of the judiciary. I do not agree that by making a Judicial Commission, there will be any interference in the independence of the Judiciary. The Supreme Court, as I have already said, has already conceived this. The only thing they want is that the Chief Justice of India...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please conclude. Please look at the display board also.

SHRI SATISH CHANDRA MISRA: I am seeing, Sir. If you say I will sit down.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I know you are a veteran and an erudite lawyer.

SHRI SATISH CHANDRA MISRA: I have no inhibitions about myself. I had conceded in the very beginning.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, this is a very extraordinary debate. Please give a little latitude. This is my request to you. We barely discuss these issues.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is what I am doing.

SHRI T.K. RANGARAJAN (Tamil Nadu): Sir, this is a very important debate. Please give us some more time. We are prepared to sit till 11 o'clock today.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is what I am doing. It is for the House to decide. I have no problem.

SHRI SATISH CHANDRA MISRA: I would say that it is not that nobody falters. When I read the judgements with respect to that case, all the judgements, what have the Judges said there? They said, "You cannot make a system where the Chief Justice of India's powers are subdued to anyone else, and the Chief Justice of

India has to be kept at the pivotal position." But, when I see the Amendments, that has been taken care of ! The Chief Justice of India is the Chairman. He will chair. He is the Chairman, and after that, the Collegium is also there. They have a Collegium of three Judges. So, two Judges are there already. What has been added is two eminent jurists which will be there on behalf of the Chief Justice of India, the hon. Prime Minister and the Leader of the Opposition. Again, the Chief Justice of India is there in this decision. Of course, the Law Minister will be there. The Law Minister should be there. He is responsible, he is accountable to the whole country. People will ask him as to why three crores of cases are pending in this country, what about the poor persons who are going to Courts every day. As Rajeev Shuklaji said, "तारीख पर तारीख पर तारीख पर तारीख." What about them? Of course, I don't agree to everything that Rajeev Shuklaji said because he said that this is a debate where only lawyers are likely to speak. He forgot what his past is. He belongs to a category which is above all. He belongs to the media, who judge everyone, who judge me, who judge judges...

#### MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Media conduct trials as well.

SHRI SATISH CHANDRA MISRA: They judge everything. They judge the whole country and the whole world. Everybody is afraid of them. Even I am afraid of them. I know that what I am speaking is being judged, and they are judging what should be taken out of my speech. They are also giving judgements, and their judgements are not delayed. Their judgements come immediately. As soon as we go out, we know that the judgement is there. And here, judgements come after years together. Not only that, Rajeev Shuklaji has another experience. He is the son of a lawyer, son-in-law of a lawyer and brother-in-law of a very eminent lawyer of this country, who is here. So, Rajeev Shuklaji is all-in-one, and he is also the Minister now. Therefore, when he pointed fingers at only lawyers being there to speak, I could not agree with him. I wish he was here in the House now.

While saying about judges, who gave their judgements, what did the then Chief Justice of India, Justice J.S. Verma, say later on? That is very important. The system was framed, and they did it saying that it would be for the better. As Mr. Jaitely pointed out, what happened in mid 70s? Ripples started, and ultimately, this judgement came and everything was taken by them. Judges started appointing judges in a manner which was, totally, non-transparent and sitting in tight chambers

# [Shri Satish Chandra Mishra]

amongst themselves not even consulting the Bar Associations, not consulting lawyers, not consulting anyone and deciding on their own. Even the members of the majority in the second Judges Case, notably, the late Justice J.S. Verma said that if they had the benefit of foresight, they would not have created such a body. This is what Justice J.S. Verma said. So, we have to see that a system, which is not transparent, a system which has no participation of the Bar is changed. Every time, we say that it is a two-wheel chariot, that, one is the Judiciary and the other is the Bar. Now where is the consultation with the Bar? Bar does not even know about things. They come to know, later on, when the damage is done. They come to know when the list is already sent to the States and then to the Centre for the purpose of appointments. The Bar's consultation is not there. The Bar's views are not there. Why I am saying this is that, very recently, it has been seen that this tyranny of secrecy has largely affected the judiciary. And, the hon. Law Minister must have received it when the names of ten judges of the Madras High Court were sent. The entire 1,000 lawyers of the Bar Association signed a letter and sent it saying that these appointments, absolutely, do not fall into any of the categories worth being considered. Their names were sent for appointment. The Punjab and Haryana High Court, their Bar Associations, has said in June 2013 that they have also sent a representation against the reference of the names. Suddenly we come to know that these names have been sent and we just sit as lawyers in the Bar Associations and get astonished, 'O! this name has gone and that name has gone.' It was said that the lawyers who would otherwise suit the best, even if they are considered, they don't want to become a judge because they don't want to fall into that category. Today you are considering the name; you ask his consent to be given in writing and then you say, 'no, sorry, we have received some information later on and, therefore, we are not appointing you.' Therefore, I would say, with respect to this Constitution Bill, there is no necessity of sending it for selection. Why I am saying so is the procedure which will be followed-it is the Constitutional amendment-will be considered here. After being passed here, it will go to the Lok Sabha. After the Lok Sabha it will go to the various States and after it is ratified, it will then go to the President. I fully agree with Mr. Ravi Shankar Prasad and Mr. Jaitley. I agree to an extent the objection raised by Mr. Ravi Shankar Prasad that the other Bill which is there should be sent to a Select Committee or, maybe, a Standing Committee which

may be decided because there are several things on which I also have certain suggestions which I would like to give with respect to the modalities which are to be there. But this Bill, as has been assured by the Law Minister, would be the normal thing. It calls for assurance also. Unless there is a procedure laid down for appointment in the Bill, the President would not sign the Constitutional Amendment and, I am sure the Government would not even send it unless they frame that and get it passed from this House. I would like hon. Law Minister to give the Statement that both the things will be ultimately sent together for the assent and then only they will be made an Act and if this is assured, then, I am sure, the objection which has been raised by Shri Ravi Shankar Prasad would be met on that issue. With this, I conclude. Thank you very much.

SHRI K. N. BALAGOPAL: Sir, it is a privileged situation to speak on such a historic Bill. Sir, first of all, I want to say to the hon. Minister that there is some confusion about sending the Bill to the Standing Committee. We feel - my party feels—that the Bill should be passed, but there should not be any vacuum. Hon. LoP spoke about some legal points about the Constitutional Amendment and if the Constitutional Amendment is passed and if then the other Bill is lagging, it will create some confusion. So, you have to clarify that and we request that there should be a consensus about the passing of this Bill. Otherwise, this difference will be used in the court to defeat the legislation. So, that should be kept in mind. Sir, Executive, Legislative and Judiciary are three important organs of the present Parliamentary system and we are for a healthy combination and interaction between the three organs. But we all know that higher judiciary is very important in the country and now stories which are coming about higher judiciary is not a thing to make anyone happy in the country. Sir, the arbitrariness or the way in which judicial appointments are made is what we are discussing. Sir, the question of arbitrariness of the collegium system, the people who have got out of the judicial panel, are all coming to the fore. Sir, we are sure that it resulted because of the authoritarianism of an era in the 1970s. Before Emergency, during 1973 the Executive superseded three judges. It is a very famous case in the Indira Gandhi regime. That was history. Three judges were superseded and it was done for helping themselves to get benefit in an election case. That is history. Sir, this was there and because of these authoritarian practices, later judiciary got an opportunity to make such an improvement in their system in 1993. It was ratified through a judgement replying to a Presidential query in 1998, it was confirmed.

[Shri K.N. Balagopal]

But, what had happened actually? It was like falling out of the frying pan into the fire. Actually, one was an extreme. Now, we have the other extreme. Now, the judiciary is totally arbitrary. It is not a matter of just higher judiciary. This attitude is affecting the entire system. Sir, there is a proverb in Kerala. It goes like this. "Kurunthottikku vatham pidichal." 'Kurunthotti' is an Ayurvedic herbal plant and it is the medicine for rheumatic diseases. If 'Kurunthotti' itself gets rheumatic disease, what will happen? That is what is happening in the country. The country is facing a very bad situation. So, we have to balance the situation. There should be a balance between the Executive, Judiciary and the Legislature.

Sir, I want to speak something more than what our eminent speakers have spoken here. I am not a practicing lawyer. My father was not a lawyer. My brother-in-law is not a lawyer or my father-in-law is not a lawyer. And, I am also not a practicing lawyer.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You can have son-in-law as a lawyer.

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: But, I have the practical experience. Sir, this is not a matter of appointment of Judges alone. I respect the views and arguments of the hon. LoP. He said that Judges have any ideology about globalisation. Even though I respect his speech from academic and legal point of view, but I differ on politics. I want to differ with the point he has said today. It is about the ideological commitment of the Judiciary. Justice Cardozo, in his famous article "Judicial process" said that Judges are not free from the push and pull of the cosmos. Yes, Sir. Judges are subject to push and pull of the cosmos. Now, the push and pull is relating to the liberalisation policies. Sir, liberalisation policies are making Judges different from the judicially active Judges of 1970s and 1980s like Justice Krishna Aiyar, Justice Chinapa Reddy, etc. Three Judges were very prominent at that time who interpreted laws in favour of the common people.

Now, it is not a matter of appointment of Judges alone is important, but the combination of Judges we have is also important. I hope that it would have been discussed by the hon. BSP leader. Look at the composition of Judges in the country. How many SC Judges that we have in the system? How many ST and how many OBC Judges we have? In the last five years—I may be corrected if I am wrong—

there is not a single woman Judge in the Supreme Court. I don't know exactly what the position now is. I may be corrected. I am not sure. I read some article. The percentage of women Judges in the country is very less. The percentage of women, SC, ST is very less. Not only SC/ST, but even the people from lower economic strata are also very important.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: What about the percentage of MPs?

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: Sir, that is also there. I will reply to that, but you have to give me additional time for that argument.

The economic capacity or economic strata is also very important. Why am I saying this? I am not blaming. But, I would say that the people who are living in ivory tower cannot decide about the issues relating to common people. Now, we have statistics about Parliament. I am not against rich people. But, the percentage of rich people in Parliament is increasing. The percentage of very rich is also increasing. Same is the case with Judiciary also. Those who are coming from the ivory towers cannot know about the common man's problems.

Sir, Bangalore Water Supply Case is a very famous case. It shows how to interpret law in favour of the workmen of the country. Now, they are banning even strike. Sir, they are banning *hartal* or strike or any other activity! Why? We know what the history of the country is, what the Freedom Struggle is and how different kinds of agitations were there in the country? Now, even the court is saying that if somebody is in custody for one day, he should be eliminated from the political system!

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, please...(Interruptions)...

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: What is the doubt? ...(Interruptions)... For somebody history may have started later; that is why. If you study the history, that is okay.

Sir, I am talking about the judgements given by various Judges. Now, the Judiciary says that for those who elected MPs and MLAs are convicted, there is no right of appeal. The Minister has taken a very good initiative by bringing forth amendments to the existing Act. Now, if a person remains in custody even for a single day, he is not eligible to file nominations; if a Member is convicted in a case,

[Shri K.N. Balagopal]

he won't be allowed to continue as a Member of Parliament or the Assembly. What kind of thinking is this, Sir? Whatever political ideology we may follow, we must fight for the cause of the people. We raise issues. There may be different ideologies, but it is those who never go out and look into the common people's issues who pass such judgements. So, this strata of Judges needs to be changed. That is very important. I am not talking only about income parity, Sir. Now, how many people are coming into the profession is another matter for debate and I would not like to get into that. Recently, there have been some other judgments also.

Sir, I will take another five to six minutes.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Your time-limit is already over.

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: There should be some comparative analysis, Sir. Sir, eminent jurists are present here. The hon. Minister is also there. Now, it is not only about the Supreme Court Judges or the High Court Judges, but even Judges of the Subordinate Courts think that they also can interpret the Constitution. There have been some cases in Kerala recently. Workers from the Left, as also the Congress, were arrested for taking part in an agitation and they were charged with destruction of public property. If some glass is broken, they can make out a case. I can give you some more examples. Recently, a group of people from the Congress and our party were arrested in different cases. Now, the glass of a jeep was broken. They calculated the loss at two lakh rupees and charged it as damages. The Magistrate of a Subordinate Court said, "The loss is of two lakh rupees; you are ten boys; you have to pay two lakh rupees each before you get bail." This was not proper. They were just college students, and this was just an allegation. For that, they were supposed to pay two lakh rupees each! What is the judicial competence of such people? If a young boy, girl, or a young man goes to the court to seek bail, they need to pay money as guarantee or surety whereas there is no such condition in the law.

Then, there is another case which is being tried in the High Court. The Judge of a Subordinate Court had a deposition before him about a crime. This was a very serious case in Kerala. One lady, and I am not naming the lady, deposed before the Judge.

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 83

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Don't mention the name of the lady; don't name the Judge.

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: I am not naming them, Sir.

There was this solar scam in Kerala. The lady is in jail. Just as it happens in some television shows, I would give a clue and you may assume. She gave a statement, a long statement of 21 pages...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Why do you refer to a particular case?

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: And the Court has not recorded it, due to some Public-Interest Litigation....

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Why do you refer to a particular case? Don't bring in politics here!

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: Sir, the case is before the High Court. The High Court is not inquiring into it.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, no, Balagopalji; you are referring to a case that is in the Court now. Don't do that.

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: I will not do it again, Sir.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: But it is a case which is, at present, going on in the Court. Don't go into that, please.

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: I will not mention it again, Sir. So, there are such examples. That is why, I say that we need to look into the style of functioning of the Subordinate Judiciary.

Sir, I support what Shri Rajeev Shukla has proposed. He said that there should be a National Judicial Service in the country.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Okay. Now you conclude.

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: Sir, regarding this Bill, I have given one amendment. I am not going in for division, but I want to get a reply from the Minister.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You move your amendment at that time. When you move your amendment, the Minister would give the answer.

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: Yes, I want to get the answer because when the hon. LoP was speaking he said that there should be some model criteria for appointment of judges. When you are selecting a judge, there should be some guidelines. My amendment is on Clause 3. I have said 'the manner', the manner is there, 'and broad guidelines for selecting a judge should be there'. That means, the enabling Act should give that direction. ...(Time-bell rings )... Otherwise, Sir, what will happen? Sir, I have taken only 13 minutes. I would speak for 15 minutes only.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You took extra six minutes. That is the point.

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: Sir, extra 10 minutes were there. So, I am not comparing. Sir, the right is given to the Executive – please keep an eye on me, Sir. As per the Judicial Appointments Commission Bill, 2013, it is said that the Legislature will give the right to make rules to the Executive. That means, some Joint Secretary of the Department may write some rules and it is accepted. This is happening, Sir. What is FEMA? On FEMA, the statutory motion is there. The Govt. annulled the FEMA rule. Then, the new rule came. So, as per our delegated legislation process, which rule if annulled, up to that time that law will persist. If they appoint some High Court judge or a Supreme Court judge on that legislation, without an enabling provision in the Bill, and Constitutional provision, then, that would lead to another kind of problem. That is why I am saying that this should be there in the Constitutional Amendment.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You can move it later.

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: Sir, I want to get a reply from the hon. Minister because this is an important thing.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Okay, the Minister will give a reply.

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: That is why, in principle, we are supporting this historic Bill, Sir. Thank you, Sir.

SHRI SUKHENDU SEKHAR ROY (West Bengal): Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, I am grateful to you for giving me the chance to speak on the vital Bill, *i.e.*, the Constitution (One Hundred and Twentieth Amendment) Bill, 2013. Sir, our Party, the All India Trinamool Congress and our leader, Miss. Mamata Banerjee, has full faith in Judiciary. We believe in the independence of the Judiciary, and the powers of

judicial review because we know that the Judiciary in our country, by delivering landmark judgements in plethora of cases, right from Keshva Nand Bharti Case to 2G Case, over the decades, have reaffirmed justice, social, economic and political as enshrined in the Preamble to the Constitution of India.

#### [THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI BHUBANESWAR KALITA) in the Chair.]

Sir, my Party, the All India Trinamool Congress does not believe in a committed Judiciary. A committed Judiciary was advocated by the so-called Young Turks in the era notoriously known as Emergency period. We all know what happened in 1973 when the Judiciary was made to measure. Three of the senior judges were superseded by a puisne judge in the Supreme Court to give shape to the philosophy of committed Judiciary. But, Sir, gone are the days. Things have undergone a sea change since then. But due to abject failure on the part of the Executive and the inaction on the part of the Legislature, the so-called judicial activism has surfaced and at times the so-called judicial activism has turned to be judicial excess.

Sir, moreover, irregularities and nepotism, if not other corrupt practices, are being perpetrated on a regular basis in the matter of appointment of judges in the High Courts and Supreme Court.

Nowhere in the world, as I know, such a system of collegium exists whereby the Judges appoint Judges based on the pick and choose formula as per their whims and fancies. Majority of the advanced countries though guarantee independence of judiciary, the appointment of Judges and other service conditions are guided by such a mechanism which ensures transparency and accountability. In India, unfortunately, we are lacking that. Sir, take the example of Switzerland. In Switzerland all the political parties have a voice in the appointment of Judges. We do not want to seek that power for the political parties. But in Switzerland the Members of the Federal Court are appointed by the Swiss Federal Assembly. Even the Constitution of Nepal provides for a Judicial Commission. For the past twenty years we are discussing and debating. We have not come to finality; we have not come to a conclusion as yet. Even today we are a divided house. Ultimately, the country will lose; ultimately, this is a burden on the common man who is seeking justice. We are not thinking of them. They are knocking the doors of the judiciary. For decades together they are not getting justice. We are discussing and debating without

[Shri Sukhendu Sekhar Roy]

coming to any conclusion. This is why I think that this is the need of the hour that this Constitutional (Amendment) Bill is passed and supported by each and one Member of this House. Sir, all the time the politicians seem to be the sacrificial goats and others are holy cows, nobody can touch them. We have not forgotten the maxim which is even today prevalent in England, UK, that 'King can do no wrong'. In India, the Judges can do no wrong. They have adopted that maxim for them. They think that they are law unto themselves and they do and undo anything they want because only impeachment is there, nothing else. How the impeachment is directed against them all of us know which we need not discuss elaborately. So, taking the advantage of the umbrella of impeachment, they are exercising their powers sometimes in a way transgressing into the jurisdiction of the Executive and the Legislature. This is why this Constitutional (Amendment) Bill is very much necessary. Many hon. Members have spoken about the balance of separation of power and it must not be disturbed. Yes, the founding fathers of our Constitution introduced the separation of power, balance of power among the three pillars of our liberal democracy. Now a time has come that we have a very serious view as to whether these three pillars are still intact with their powers and jurisdiction or not. In the matter of appointment of Judges, we need not say anything about how the Judges are appointed. Very recently we know about the case of one hon. Chief Justice of a particular High Court. His letter addressed to the hon. President of India, his letter addressed to the Chief Justice of India, to the hon. Prime Minister of India has been leaked in the Press and we all know the contents of the letter. There the Chief Justice of that hon. High Court has categorically stated - no politician has alleged - that it is the Chief Justice of a High Court who is alleging that 'my candidature for a Judge of the Supreme Court was not considered only because when I was in the Collegium of the High Court, I raised an objection against the appointment of a particular close relation of the present Chief Justice of India'.

Not present Chief Justice of India, I mean, a former Chief Justice of India. Only because he, being a member of the Collegium, had raised objections, on valid grounds, against the appointment of a close relative of the erstwhile Chief Justice of India, his candidature was not considered. Till today, he is moving around without any result, crying in wilderness. This is the situation that our judicial system is

having today. Shame on the part of Judiciary! It is a shame on the part of our Judiciary that such things are being continued. The hon. Leader of the Opposition has said that the Constitution provides for consultation and he has given a very wider meaning of consultation and has appealed that its dictionary meaning should not be taken care of. I am sorry, with all respect to him, I disagree with him. I disagree because...(Interruptions)...

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: He did not say that.

SHRI SUKHENDU SEKHAR ROY: This is what I understood. I may be wrong. It was my perception.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: He has said that the Supreme Court said like that.

SHRI SUKHENDU SEKHAR ROY: Okay. I am sorry. I stand corrected. 'Consultation' must not be construed as 'concurrence'. 'Consultation' cannot be 'concurrence'. Had it been so, there would have been the word 'concurrence' in the Constitution, not the word 'consultation'. As compared to our forefathers, who drafted the Constitution, we are pigmies. They visualized everything. They discussed everything in detail. And, ultimately, they chose the selected words at the right place. Therefore, 'consultation' cannot be construed as 'concurrence'. The nicety of our liberal democracy is that we are having checks and balances in our system. And, taking a cue from that principle of checks and balances, the Law Commission, while considering the Amendment in the present form, in its 214th Report, submitted in the year 2008, said that the Indian Constitution provides a beautiful system of checks and balances under Articles 142(2) and 270(1) for the appointment of Judges of the Supreme Court and the High Courts, where both, the Executive and the Judiciary, have been given a balanced role. ...(Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI BHUBANESWAR KALITA): Please conclude now.

SHRI SUKHENDU SEKHAR ROY: Sir, I will take just one or two minutes more.

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI BHUBANESWAR KALITA): You have already taken five minutes more than your allotted time.

4.00 P.M.

SHRI SUKHENDU SEKHAR ROY: Sir, everybody has been given excess time.

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI BHUBANESWAR KALITA): Yeah. That's why I have given you five minutes more.

SHRI SUKHENDU SEKHAR ROY: This balance has been upset by the second Judge's case and the original balance of power needs to be restored. The original balance of power needs to be restored and this Constitution (Amendment) Bill seeks to restore that balance. The law may be passed. Restoring the primacy of the Chief Justice of India and the power of the Executive to make the appointments, the amended procedure would be based on the principle of accountability and focus on the key factors, like, transparency, fairness, objectivity and equal opportunity. So, in order to ensure transparency, fairness, objectivity and equal opportunity, we need a mechanism which has been proposed in the other Bill, which we will discuss some other day, as the hon. Law Minister has stated. Therefore, this is the need of the Hour.

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI BHUBANESWAR KALITA): Please conclude now.

SHRI SUKHENDU SEKHAR ROY: Okay, Sir. I am concluding. Neither the Judiciary nor the Legislature nor the Executive enjoys any temporal power. All powers have been derived from the Constitution.

This question was raised again and again as to which one is supreme — Parliament or the Judiciary. As a student of political science and law, there is no iota of doubt in my mind that Constitution is the supreme. The Executive, the Judiciary and the Legislature have to abide by the tenets of the Constitution without which our democracy cannot usher in a new era. What are we leaving for our next generation? A corrupt judiciary, a corrupt system! Son of a judge will be appointed, daughter of a judge will be appointed, close relatives of the judge will be appointed, even the Chamber juniors of the judge will be appointed as judges. No matter he or she has the quality or not. Therefore, I agree with the Leader of the Opposition that there should be some eligibility criterion, objective eligibility criterion for appointment of judges. There should be no pick and choose. Therefore, Sir, on behalf of my party, I fully support this Constitutional (Amendment) Bill. Thank you.

श्री राम गोपाल यादव (उत्तर प्रदेश): धन्यवाद उपसभाध्यक्ष जी मैं इस संविधान संशोधन विधेयक, 2013 का समर्थन करने के लिए खड़ा हुआ हूं। हमारा देश अकेला ऐसा देश है जिसमें जिजज स्वयं जिजज को नियुक्त करते हैं, दुनिया में कहीं भी ऐसा नहीं है। हर जगह कार्यपालिका को यह अधिकार है, लेकिन हिन्दुस्तान में यह अधिकार जजों ने स्वयं अपने हाथ में ले लिया है। उसके बाद जिजज इस तरीके से बिहेव करने लगे, जिसकी बजह से कई बार कार्यपालिका और न्यायपालिका में बीच में confrontation जैसी स्थिति आने की स्थिति पैदा हुई है, कई बार व्यवस्थापिका और न्यायपालिका के बीच confrontation पैदा होने की स्थिति भी आई है, यह क्यों आई, इसके कारण क्या हैं? जब सरकार का इकबाल काम हो जाता है तब इस तरह की बातें पैदा होती हैं। मैं आपको उदाहरण देना चाहता हूं कि जब प्रेसिडेंट फ्रेंकलिन रूजवेल्ट ने मंदी के दौरान, उससे उबरने के लिए Deal Laws बनाए और अमेरिकन फेडरल सुप्रीम कोर्ट ने एक-एक करके अनको रद्द करना शुरू किया, जो राष्ट्रपति फ्रेंकलिन रूजवेल्ट को यह कहना पड़ा कि अगर सुप्रीम कोर्ट अपना रवैया नहीं बदलेगा, तो हम इसको अपने लोगों से पैक कर देंगे। हालांकि सीनेट ने उस प्लान को कभी होने नहीं दिया, लेकिन उसका परिणाम यह हुआ कि 1936 से लेकर आज तक, लगभग 80 वर्ष होने जा रहे हैं, कभी भी अमेरिका में न्यायपालिका ने ऐसा कोई कदम नहीं उठाया कि कार्यपालिका से विवाद पैदा हो। हम 20 साल से यह तय नहीं कर पा रहे हैं कि जो शक्ति आपके हाथ में से ले ली गई, उसको हम वापस ले, जबकि हम सर्वशक्तिमान हैं। संसद जैसा चाहे वैसा कर सकती है। संविधान के अंदर ज्युडिशियल रिव्यू का उनको हक है, लेकिन कानून बनाने का, संविधान में संशोधन करने का अधिकार तो संसद को ही है। हमने तो वह वक्त भी देखा है जब आपकी कार्यपालिका इतनी मजबूत हुआ करती थी कि संविधान में ऐसे-ऐसे संशोधन कर दिए गए जो prima facie गलत थे, लेकिन न्यायपालिका की हिम्मत नहीं पड़ी कि वह उस पर अंगूली उठाए और स्वयं संसद को ही उसको बाद में undo करना पड़ा। We have seen those times. यह स्थिति है कि जब सरकार का इकबाल कम हुआ, तो इस तरह की मनमानी होने लगी। इसलिए यह संविधान संशोधन विधेयक लाया जाना बहुत जरूरी था। इसमें विलम्ब बहुत हुआ, इसके लिए गवर्नमेंट ही जिम्मेदार है, चाहे जो भी गवर्नमेंट रही है, इन दौरान कई गवर्नमेंट बदल चूकी हैं। कई बातें यहा पर हुई हैं, बहुत बड़े विद्वान लोगों ने बातें कहीं और बहुत अच्छी-अच्छी बातें कहीं, इसलिए में ज्यादा कुछ नहीं कह सकता हूं क्योंकि सब बड़े-बड़े वकील हैं।

मैं वकील तो नहीं हूं, हालांकि पोस्ट ग्रेजुएट क्लॉसेज़ को, वर्ल्ड कॉस्टिट्यूशनस को पढ़ाने का मेरा लम्बा अनुभव है। हमारे सामने सुप्रीम कोर्ट की यह स्थिति है कि हम जजेज़ के खिलाफ कार्यवाही नहीं कर सकते हैं। यहां महाभियोग दो बार आया है। एक बार तो आपने ही बचाया है। आप ही प्लीड कर रहे थे, I was a member of Parliament at that time. एक बार खुद एक जज साहब यहां आए थे। वह पास नहीं हो पाया। जजेज़ जानते हैं कि यह काम बहुत कठिन होता है। सवाल यह है कि जैसा राजीव जी ने और सतीश जी ने कहा है कि इतने बड़े पैमाने पर वेकेंसीज़ खाली हैं, जिसकी वजह से लोगों को न्याय नहीं मिल पा

[श्री राम गोपाल यादव]

रहा है। ये वेकेंसीज़ इतनी ज्यादा खाली इसलिए हैं क्योंकि इसमें गवर्नमेंट की भी कमी है। आपने यह व्यवस्था कर दी है कि चीफ जस्टिस दूसरे राज्य से आएगा। वह दूसरे राज्य से आता है तो न तो वह उस राज्य के बारे में समझता है और न ही उसको वहां के बारे में जानकारी होती है। वह तो इस चक्कर में रहता है कि वह कब सुप्रीम कोर्ट में पहुंचे। वह किसी वकील को नहीं जानता है। वह तो सुप्रीम कोर्ट में जाने की जुगाड़ में रहता है। इसका नतीजा यह है कि आज से दस साल पहले भी उत्तर प्रदेश के हाई कोर्ट में 80 वेकेंसीज़ थी और आज भी हैं। इतने बड़े पैमाने पर 15 लाख के करीब मुकदमें लम्बित पड़े हैं और वेकेंसीज़ खाली पड़ी हैं। जज मनमानी करते हैं और अपील सुनते नहीं हैं। अगर जूनियर को सरकारी वकील न बनाओं, तो किसी अधिकारी को बुलाकर कहेंगे कि आपको कंटेम्पट ऑफ कोर्ट में जेल भेज रहे हैं। इस तरह की दिक्कतें आ रही हैं। चाहे आप इसकी जांच करवा लीजिए। एक जज साहब नोएडा आऐ तो उनके साथ सिक्योरिटी के 28 लोग थे। उन्होंने कहा कि सबके लिए होटल में व्यवस्था कीजिए। प्रशासन ने कहा कि मैं इस काम के लिए पैसा कहां से लाऊं? इनकी सिक्योरिटी के लिए गाड़ी टाइम पर नहीं पहुंच पाई, तो कलक्टर और एसपी दोनों को तलब कर लिया गया। इसप्रकार की परिस्थितियां पैदा हो रही हैं। इस सीमा तक जाकर जजेज़ काम कर रहे हैं। वे PIL करवा देते हैं। इलाहाबाद हाई कोर्ट के एक जज ने PIL करवाकर लाल बत्ती लगाने का ऑंडर कर दिया। Everybody knows that in U.P. उन्होंने इसलिए PIL करवाई, तािक जजेज़ लाल बत्ती लगवा सकें। इसके बाद खुद ऑर्डर कर दिए। ...(व्यवधान)... दूसरे लोग लाल बत्ती नहीं लगाएंगे, लेकिन अपने लिए PIL के जरिए ऑर्डर कर रहे हैं, तो यह स्थिति पैदा हो रही है। मैंने एक दिन आपसे सप्लीमेंटरी सवाल में पूछा था कि आप पता करवाइए कि अपील के कितने केस डिसाइड हुए हैं? PIL के नाम पर, स्टे के नाम पर रिट पिटिशन्स आती हैं और कोटा पूरा हो जाता है कि मैंने इतने मुकदमें कर लिए। कोई गरीब आदमी आ नहीं सकता है। राजीव जी सही बात कह रहे थे कि चाहे जितना competent वकील हो, अगर उसका नाम बड़ा नहीं है, तो उसको कोई आदमी इसलिए engage नहीं करता है क्योंकि जजेज़ उसको सुनेंगे ही नहीं। चाहें जितनी बढ़िया बहस करे, उसको कोई नहीं सुनेगा। बड़े से बड़ा सम्पन्न आदमी भी न्याय के लिए नहीं लड़ सकता है। आज के टाइम में न्याय इतना मंहगा हो गया है कि बड़े से बड़े आदमी भी अब मुकदमा नहीं लड़ सकते। सुनील दत्त जी को अपना मकान बेचना पड़ा था। यह बात मुम्बई के लोग जानते हैं कि जो मकान उनकी पत्नी के नाम पर था, वह उनको बहुत प्रिय था। जब से संजय दत्त का मुकदमा लड़ रहे थे तो वकीलों को पैसा देने के लिए उनको अपना मकान बेचना पड़ा था। न्याय पाना इतना मंहगा हो गया है कि सुनील दत्त को इसके लिए अपना मकान बेचना पड़ा। यह स्थिति है, तो इसमें कोई विलम्ब नहीं होना चाहिए। मैं नहीं चाहता हूं कि इसमें किसी तरह का कोई विलम्ब हो। यह बिल जितनी जल्दी पास हो सकता हो, उतनी जल्दी पास होना चाहिए।

एक और अजीब स्थिति है कि चाहे जिस तरह का मामला हो—अब यहां संसद में बैठे हैं, हालांकि सब कहने के लिए हैं कि ज्यूडिशियरी में किसी का नाम लेकर नहीं कह सकते हैं, मैं ज्यादा कहना भी नहीं चाहता हूं, क्योंकि सभी लोगों ने बहुत सी बातें कह दी हैं, लेकिन स्थिति यह हो गई है कि अब लोगों का ज्यूडिशियरी में विश्वास नहीं रहा है। तमाम आरोपों, जनता से लेकर, प्रेस से लेकर सबसे ज्यादा आरोप हम लोगों के ऊपर ही लगते हैं कि जबकि हम लोग ही सबसे ज्यादा उत्तरदायी हैं। आज भी जनता की सबसे ज्यादा बात आप ही सुनते हैं, रात-बेरात कोई भी आपका दरवाजा खटखटा दे, तो आप मिलते हैं, चाय पिलाते हैं, बिठाते हैं, उसकी बात सुनते हैं, काम चाहे हो, चाहे न हो सके, लेकिन आप बात सुनते हैं। जिन लोगों के दरवाजे तक कभी कोई आदमी नहीं पहुंच सकता है, वे 24 घंटे आपकी आलोचना करने के अलावा कोई काम नहीं करते हैं और कोई काम नहीं कर रहे हैं। ये तो स्क्रूटिनी करते हैं कि सांसद निधि से कितना काम हुआ या कितना नहीं हुआ। अगर इनमें पूछा जाए कि आपने कितने मुकदमों पर फैसले दिए हैं, तो कोई फैसला नहीं है। आज यह स्थिति हो गई है। इसलिए आप जो संविधान संशोधन विधेयक लाए हैं, यह निहायत जरूरी है, क्योंकि जब तक इन जजेज़ की नियुक्तियों पर आपका अधिकार नहीं होगा, तब तक इनकी नियुक्तियों में हो रही मनमानियों पर रोक नहीं लगेगी। जैसा अभी मिश्रा जी ने भी बताया है, यह सही बात है कि collegium में तीन लोग हैं, 9 जज़ेस अपॉइंट हो गए हैं, जो अंग्रेजी का एक सेन्टेन्स भी सही नहीं लिख पाते हैं और अपने ही खिलाफ रूलिंग ही दे देते हैं। वे जो जजमेंट देते हैं, उसका कुछ और अर्थ उनके दिमाग़ में होता है और जो लिखते हैं, उसका दूसरा अर्थ होता है। आज यह स्थिति हो गई है, क्योंकि कोई मेरिट नहीं हे, कोई क्राइटेरिया नहीं रह गया है। आज क्राइटेरिया यह है कि कौन किसके नजदीक है। अगर अभी किसी स्टेट का मुख्यमंत्री मना कर दे कि मैं किसी से सहमति व्यक्त नहीं करता हूं तो ऊपर तक शिकायत हो जाती है कि मुख्य मंत्री सहमित नहीं दे रहे हैं। जैसा कि अभी मिश्रा जी ने भी बताया है और मैं भी पूछता हूं कि उत्तर प्रदेश के हाई कोर्ट के जजेज़ में कितने एस.सी. या ओ.बी.सी. के जजेज हैं?

श्री सतीश चन्द्र मिश्रा: एस.सी. का एक भी जज नहीं है और ओ.बी.सी. के भी बहुत कम हैं।

श्री राम गोपाल यादव: ओ.बी.सी. का एकाध जज है, शायद दो हैं, लेकिन एस.सी. का कोई जज नहीं है। उत्तर प्रदेश इतना बड़ा राज्य है, लेकिन इस श्रेणी से कोई जज नहीं है। अभी नाम का जो नया पैनल भेजा जा रहा है, उसमें एक भी जज न माइनॅरिटी से, न ओ.बी.सी. से और न एस.सी. श्रेणी से हैं। हो सकता है कि उत्तर प्रदेश के मुख्य मंत्री उन सब पर अपनी असहमति व्यक्त करें और किसी को सहमति न दें।

SHRIMATI KANIMOZHI (Tamil Nadu): No women either.

PROF. RAM GOPAL YADAV: Yes, no women, यह स्थिति है। खैर, आपने कह ही दिया है और हमारे जेटली साहब ने भी कह दिया है कि नीचे जज, ऊपर खुदा, बीच में कोई नहीं। लेकिन आप इस बिल पर तारीख पर तारीख मत डालिएगा, जैसे ये लोग डालते हैं। इस पर तारीख पर तारीख मत डलवाइए, क्योंकि यह बिल बहुत जरूरी है।

महोदय, एक चीज और सोचिएगा कि न्याय सस्ता कैसे हो। इसमें वकीलों को अहम भूमिका अदा करनी है, क्योंकि उनके बिना कोई सोच ही नहीं सकता है। हालांकि आदमी यह जानता है कि वह बच सकता है, मेरा जीवन बच सकता है, मेरी जमीन-जयदाद बच सकती है, लेकिन उसके पास न्यायालय में जाने के लिए पैसा नहीं है। वह जानता है कि अन्याय हुआ है, लेकिन वह कोर्ट में नही जा सकता है, because he has no money to pay to the lawyers. वकील बहुत ज्यादा मंहगे हो गए हैं, इसलिए कोई रास्ता निकालिए जिससे कि एक आम आदमी को भी न्याय मिल सके। आखिर न्यायपालिका क्यों है? हमारे संविधान निर्माताओं ने, हमारे founding-father ने तीनों की पावर्स का डिविजन कर दिया है। Political Science का स्टूडेंट होने के नाते कभी-कभी हम separation of powers और division of power में फ़र्क करते हैं। हमारे यहां पर separation of power नहीं है, डिविजन ऑफ पावर है, Separation of powers होता तो पार्लियामेंट के मेम्बर की जगह मिनिस्टर नहीं बैठ सकते हैं जैसा कि अमरीका में है. There is Separation of powers, लेकिन हमारे यहां पर डिविजन ऑफ पावर्स है। शक्तियों का विभाजन है, पृथक्करण नहीं है। संविधान निर्माताओं ने शक्तियों का विभाजन इस तरह से किया है कि हम एक-दूसरे के कार्य क्षेत्र में हस्तक्षेप न करें, अपना-अपना काम करें, लेकिन अब आप कुछ नहीं कर सकते और जजेज़ मनमाने तरीके से आपके हर काम में हस्तक्षेप कर सकते हैं। अभी यह भी हो सकता है कि जब सभी मंत्री छोटी सी गाड़ी में चलने लगें, तो इस पर न चल कर दूसरी किस्म की गाड़ी पर चलें किसी दिन यह भी जजमेंट आ जाए।

अब लोग वकीलों से यह कहने लगे हैं कि तुम कानून जानो या न जानो, इससे कोई मतलब नहीं, जज को जानो। जज को जानिए, कानून आता हो, न आता हो, इससे कोई मतलब नहीं है।

ये बातें हैं, अगर कहें, तो बहुत लम्बा हो जाएगा। आपकी बहुत कृपा है, आपने घंटी नहीं बजाई। मैं सारे लोगों से अपील करूंगा, आप लोगों से भी अपील करूंगा कि इसको पास होने दीजिए, क्योंकि बहुत दिक्कत है, अब तारीख पर तारीख मत लीजिए।

SHRI N.K. SINGH (Bihar): Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, as I rise to speak on this important historical legislation or this Constitutional Amendment which is in front of us, a poor economist like me of the dismal science cannot be both, over-awed and feel protected. Over-awed, as I turn to my right, there was distinguished Arun Jaitleyji, there is Ravi Shankarji, and, of course, the fabled Mr. Ram Jethmalani, who

has, of course, a reputation which is so formidable. Sitting next to me is Satish Misraji, another formidable person, and, of course, Parasaranji, who sits behind us, has been a guru of so many of us who have read judgements. And, of course, there is the Minister, Kapil Sibal*ji*, piloting this Bill. There is Mr. Rajeev Shukla whose new dimensions of how much this is embedded in his gene particles, something which was exposed by one of his relations, both from his married side and from his paternal side. But, of course, Sir, while one is over-awed with this formidable kind of a thing, one is also well protected; whether one has the requisite money or not, we feel quite protected in whatever we are going to say.

Sir, I think that on the broad issue of whether or not this important legislation should be taken in conjunction with the other Bill, which, we believe, should go to the Standing Committee, we would like to have an assurance from the Minister on the important point which had been raised by the Leader of the Opposition that there is no hiatus and that Parliament is not legislating a hiatus, the Parliament is legislating for continuity and not hiatus, and, of course, on the other important point that an important far-reaching legislation of this kind does not look to be an act of hurry, but looks to be a well-considered legislation in consultation with all other stakeholders.

Sir, broadly speaking, I have three points to make for the consideration of the Minister. First, who can doubt that this particular Commission should be based on the principles of not only equality, transparency, openness, impartiality but also efficacy and efficiency? These should be the overarching considerations of any Commission of this kind. So, we must address ourselves on this one important question before we come to the next question. The one important question we must ask ourselves is as to how India's legislative module, legislative architecture, a judicial architecture, compares itself with the best international practice. Looking at the existing literature, I came across one very important literature. It was a case of 1883 when a Superior Council of the Judiciary was created by the French Parliament acting as a Court of Cassation, in which they purged the existing Judge which existed and laid down a different procedure for appointment of Judges. Such was the extent of complaint.

This is a very famous quoted case. Nobody here is intending to purge any Judge, I think, but we intend to learn from the best international practices. Now,

[Shri N.K.Singh]

what are the best international practices? The best international practice broadly falls into four categories, category 1–nomination by the Executive, category 2–election, category 3–co-option by the judiciary, and, category 4–appointment by a Committee consisting of Judges and Academics. Broadly speaking, this is how countries have divided themselves. For instance, Italy, Spain and Sweden believe in a separate appointments commission. Israel and USA believe that the appointments must be confirmed by the Legislative. Canada, France, Germany, South Africa and United Kingdom have a recommendation or screening by a separate Appointments Committee. Indeed, Minister, we fall in a very unique category of some hybrid species called the 'collegium', which is incestuous in character, which nominates, which screens, which selects and which monitors. No other country in the world falls in this particularly absurd hybrid category which performs functions which are incestuous and which have inherent conflict of interest.

So, while we are undertaking this far-reaching important reform one of the things, I am sure, the Minister would like to do is to try and see how the new architecture, which you want to create, will conform to the best existing international practice.

Sir, I won't go into the need for judicial reforms, not merely because there are 13 million cases, 74 per cent of which are pending for more than five years, but I want to raise a more basic issue. The basic issue is that wherever I have gone, Minister, we have taken great credit for the fact that India believes in the rule of law, that India has a fiercely independent judiciary, which is not going to be influenced by anybody, and, say, investors, you please believe in us because of the independence of the judiciary. Yet, how is it, Sir, that in a Report like the Ease of Doing Business, 2013, India ranks at the bottom on sanctity of contract, on issues of insolvency, on inordinate delay and something which the investors believe that notwithstanding all your claims, you have serious deficiency. What are these important deficiencies? Mr. Minister, while the economy has evolved in the last sixty years—some of it was very well brought out by the Leader of the Opposition when he spoke—our politics has become more complex, our federal structure has become more complex, our economy has not only evolved but it has also become globally much more interdependent, the judiciary, Sir, remains locked up and frozen in a time

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 95

wall. They have not evolved. One other thing, which I strongly recommend, Mr. Minister, is that you must increase the domain knowledge and the domain speciality of Judges who will really be in the High Courts or who will be in the Supreme Court. Let me give you a few examples. International investors have told me that it is not that your judges are suffering from economic illiteracy. Nobody accuses them of that but they certainly accuse them of the fact that when it comes to transfer pricing policy, when it comes to interpretation of Intellectual Property Rights, when it comes to fixation of tariffs, when it comes to allocation of scarce natural resources, the practices and judgements do not really suggest that there is a degree of appreciation of what the best international laws on those subjects are. Therefore, as we become increasingly much more inter-dependent, we need to blend a degree of always avoiding moral hazard but a degree of pragmatism, when it comes to such important decisions, for instance, allocation of natural resources on which, Mr. Minister, there is so much debate, when it comes to issues which have really made India an inter-dependent power of the global economy, and, till we are able to do that, Sir, investors in this country, investors all over the world, will not be able to be assured that India genuinely believes in a rule of law which is comforting, which is predictable, and, which is certain. Sir, I think, as we travel all along, of course, the Prime Minister outlined many considerations which have led to the tardy slowness of the Indian economy. The Leader of the Opposition dramatically brought out some other cases. But, I think, some of the decisions have really contributed to this kind of a sluggishness of the Indian economy. Indeed, while the fierceness and independence of our Judiciary is something which makes us proud, we need to make sure that this independent structure is not an impediment, but is an accelerator in India's economic progress. We need to look at from the prism of a different kind, whether the practices, process, judgements and pronouncements conform to what the rest of the world express and hope for what is going to be and what we pride ourselves to be a new economic engine of power on the globe. This, Minister, must be our overarching consideration. This must be the vision which must guide the important features and architecture of a new judicial reform process for which today's Bill is one very, very important consideration.

Finally, Mr. Vice-Chairman, I agree with the Leader of the Opposition that when a judgement is pronounced by any Judge, particularly a Judge of the hon.

[Shri N.K.Singh]

Supreme Court, there is only one Judge who is above that and that is the Lord Almighty, who is above us, who will look to this much beyond our life. But we know one thing that the road to heaven is always paved with good intentions, but let us not make that pavement so tortuous, so meandering that we lose our path to go to the heaven. Thank you very much, Sir.

SHRIMATI VASANTHI STANLEY (Tamil Nadu): Thank you Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, for giving me this opportunity to register my views on this discussion on the Judicial Appointment Commission Bill, 2013 and the Constitution 120th Amendment Bill, 2013.

Sir, when I wanted to speak on this Bill, I was searching for the judicial history before the British period. When the judicial history of India is searched, 200 years of history from the British period is only available. But my language, Tamil, never fails me. Our poet, Thiruvalluvar, says our judge should be like\*

It means, a judge should be like a needle in the scale who should not be partial to both the sides. He should be there like the scale.

Sir, a statue of Manuneedhi Cholan adorns the premises of High Court of Madras, which is a Charter Court, Sir. This king is believed to have killed his own son to render justice to a cow. He had hung a giant bell in front of his palace. Whoever needed justice, could go and ring the bell. One day, to his surprise, there was a cow who lost its own calf. It was killed by the King's son, of course, without his knowledge, it is specifically mentioned, in the rear wheel of his chariot. But the King was so specific that he should give justice to the cow. So, killed his own son by his own chariot. That is why his statue is there adorning the High Court of Chennai. This is there in our epics Silappathikaram and Periya Puranam also. There is a mention about judges in English literature also when Shakespeare mentions about this in the Merchant of Venice. There is a reference in King James Version Bible in the Daniel 5.14. This is referred to by Shakespeare through his character Shylock in Merchant of Venice.

It says, "A Daniel come to judgement! Yea, a Daniel! O wise young judge, how I do honour thee!" Like this, we also have references. But we have failed in

<sup>\*</sup> Hon. Member spoke in Tamil.

recording how we were providing justice to our people before the British came here. The rulers were revered, revered in idolatry. Their verdict was the ruling whether it was the local panchayat leader or a town leader or a king himself. They were the Judges during those days. They were the protectors also. The redressal also was quick through them. But during the British period, the members of civil services, the employees of the Executive also served as Judges. Seeing the undesirable degree of vulnerability to executive influence, the Constituent Assembly accorded judicial independence the highest priority in the construction of the Constitution. As far as our judiciary is concerned, so far, it has not misused the full independence given to it by the Indian Constitution. They are considered largely fair and incorruptible. Articles 124(2) gives power to the President to appoint every Judge of the Supreme Court. Article 217 confers the authority to appoint High Court Judge on the President in consultation with the Chief Justice of India and the Governor of the State. In 1981, the Chief Justice of India initiated the appointment of Supreme Court Judges in consultation with other senior colleagues. For High Court Judges, the recommendation was made through the Governor. In 1982, we had the S.P. Gupta case. We have heard about it here. In this case, the seven-Judge Bench said that both for the Supreme Court and the High Court, only consultation is required and not the concurrence. During that period, judiciary's intervention became less. But in 1993, there was this Advocate-on-Record case before the nine-Judge Bench. It overturned the judgement in S.P. Gupta case, ensuring the role of the Chief Justice of India in the selection of Judges of the Supreme Court and the High Courts. In Special Reference No.1998, it reaffirmed the 1999 decision and added a few more points to that like 'not two Judges but four Judges.' Very often it is felt that the current system of appointment is not open to public scrutiny. The current system is faced with lack of accountability and transparency. It is not getting people of adequate ability. There is a significant delay in the appointment of High Court Judges. We felt that there was a need for these two Bills. For the first time in history, we have evolved a clear concept of how Judges of the Supreme Court and the High Court are going to be appointed.

The Judicial Appointments Commission Bill seeks to change the manner of appointment of Judges of the Supreme Court and the High Court. The Bill sets up a Judicial Appointments Commission (JAC) to appoint and transfer Judges of the Supreme Court and the High Courts. It would be headed by the Chief Justice of

[Shrimati Vasanthi Stanely]

India. In addition to it, the JAC would be composed of two judges of the Supreme Court, the Union Minister of Law and Justice and two eminent persons. The Law Secretary would be its convenor.

A Committee would be set up to nominate two eminent persons. It comprises the Chief Justice of India, the Prime Minister and the Leader of the Opposition.

At present, under the Collegium system of appointment of Judges, the Chief Justice and a few senior Judges of the Court make appointments. This system was evolved through three Supreme Court judgements. We have seen that.

The Constitution (One Hundred and Twentieth Amendment) Bill inserts a new Article 124A in the Constitution which proposes to constitute a Judicial Appointments Commission for making recommendations with respect to appointment of Judges of the Supreme Court and the High Court. It will also look at the transfer of Judges from one High Court to another. The amendment empowers the Parliament to make a law providing for the composition of the JAC, their appointment and tenure, functions of the JAC and the procedure to be followed for the selection of judges.

Here there is a provision for eliciting views of the Governor and the Chief Minister of the State for appointing High Court Judges. I would like to ask the Minister, when the Union Law Minister is part of the Commission at the national level, is it not natural that the State Law Minister should be made part of the process of the selection of the High Court Judges for his own State? Slowly this will be taking away the powers of the States. There is only a provision that the views of the Governor and the Chief Minister of the State will be taken. As of now, the Governors are making recommendations. If there is no provision for the State Law Ministers to be consulted before appointing Judges to the High Courts, that power also will be taken away. We are afraid of that. When the Prime Minister, along with the Leader of the Opposition, is to select two executives, I hope he will agree that the Chief Ministers of States should also have a say when there is a selection of High Court Judges. I would like the Minister to make some provision to ensure this. The same point was raised by my hon. friend, Mr. Balagopal and Mr. Satish Mishra too.

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 99

Regarding reservation in the judiciary, there has been a demand to consider appointing Judges from the Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribe and OBC categories. I would like to ask for reservation for women and also the minorities in the process of selection of judges.

The bill is being objected by the Bar Council of India and Advocates because they do not like the interference from the Executive in the process of selection. They suggest some seminars for this subject to be discussed between Judges and the media. But as Mr. N.K. Singh has pointed out, England and Wales, Canada, New York State, France, Germany, South Africa have laypersons as members in the Judicial Appointment Commissions. They have specifically mentioned that these laypersons should not be Members of Parliament, practising lawyers, judicial officers. So, I would like to ask the Minister who are going to be the Executives. There is a mention about this in the Bill. When they are going to frame the rules, I want them to be very specific about who these Executives are going to be. There is a provision in the Bill for two Executives. I suggest that instead of two Executives it should be three with one woman in the Commission. I hope the Minister will consider that. The Government should ensure that our demand for 33 per cent reservation for women is implemented in respect of the Commission also.

With these observations, on behalf of my DMK Party, I support this Bill.

SHRI SHASHI BHUSAN BEHERA (Odisha): Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, I thank you for giving me an opportunity to speak on the Judicial Appointments Commission Bill, 2013. This Bill is a very important piece of legislation. The way in which the Law Minister spoke on the Bill in his initial remarks; and the way in which the Leader of the Opposition and former Law Minister spoke so brilliantly, I saw, for the first time, in my four years as a Member of this House, a very interesting debate. It is the rarest of the rare debates. The Leader of the Opposition appreciated many of the points made by the Law Minister; and the Leader of the Opposition also appreciated many of the points made by the Law Minister in his initial remarks. Members of different political parties may have some differences on supporting the Bill, but that is immaterial. Today we are discussing about the Bill. The other eminent Members of this House discussed about the judicial system in the country. Nobody is ready to spare the lacuna in the judicial system. Even after 66 years of our Independence, all the three pillars of our democracy need reforms, whether it is the

# [Shri Shashi Bhushan Behera]

Executive, or the Legislative or the Judiciary. The fourth pillar, which does not come under the Constitution, is the media. They are getting satire not only from the public, even the Press Council also speaks of the paid news. The former Chief Justice of India, Justice S.P. Bharucha, is of the strong opinion that out of five judges, one judge must be a corrupt one. These are all comments from the same tribe. Many of the legislators also speak in that way. Many of our statesmen also say what wrong is being done to the nation. It is a long process. This Bill has undergone a long process. The NDA has been talking about the Judicial Commission since 1993 onwards. Today, we are in 2013. Twenty years have already passed. As the hon. Minister stated, this has been consulted with the Law Commission, stakeholders, the Bar Council and others. This Bill may still require more consultations in order to get better results. So far as judicial reforms are concerned, or a constitutional amendment is concerned, these things involve a lengthy process which takes time. But so far as judicial appointments are concerned, there is no need of big changes. As per the present system, the Judges of the Supreme Court are appointed by the President under Clause (2) of Article 124 of the Constitution while the Judges of the High Courts are appointed by the President under Clause (1) of Article 217 of the Constitution. Then the transfer of judges is made under Clause (1) of Article 222. This system changes with a new collegium system. The collegium will consist of the Chief Justice, the Prime Minister and two other senior members will be chosen for doing these things. This is a not a very big change. I think it should have been done earlier. It has already been delayed a lot. As is said ' justice delayed is justice denied'. So many lawyers have spoken about many things, lacuna, a number of ills that clog the judicial system, pendency of cases for years together, vacancy of judges, etc. I am not an advocate, but being a client, I am also a sufferer. A civil suit continued for more than 40 years. The first appeal itself took 30 years, two generations, in the High Court. It is still pending in the Supreme Court. Thousands and thousands of cases are pending in different courts for years together. So, the Judiciary needs reforms. It needs changes. We have to expedite the reforms. We have to reform it in such a manner that justice becomes easier and accessible. As Shri Satish Chandra Misra said, 30 lakhs cases are still pending in different courts. Out 160 posts, 80 posts always remain vacant. In short, in all States, especially in my State, Odisha, though it is a small State, always five to six posts of

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 101

judges remain vacant. No judges are available for civil courts to deal with the civil cases.

And the bare truth has been discussed here as to how judges are having lobbies for their appointments in High Courts as well as in the Supreme Court. They have their own lobbies. But, even then, having such an independence in the appointment process and with a Collegium having no interference, when we are still lagging much behind in the judicial process, in the system to reach out to the poorer people, the Bill is very important. So, it should be passed. The total reforms of the judicial system may take more time, and a detailed, comprehensive Bill should be brought forward. Thank you, Sir.

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI BHUBANESWAR KALITA): Shri D.P. Tripathi. Not present. Shri Parasaran.

SHRI K. PARASARAN: Sir, through you, I would like to raise a few aspects for the consideration of the distinguished Members of this hon. House. The hon. Law Minister said that the Supreme Court had re-written the Constitution. In supplement thereof, I would like to point out a few aspects. The power of appointment is only in the Executive under article 124. But, as a check, as a participation process, the article says, "After consultation with such of the judges of the Supreme Court and of the High Courts of States..." So, the High Courts' consultation has now been dispensed with by the judgement. For appointing Supreme Court Judges, President shall consult, "as the President may deem it necessary for the purpose". So, the President may consult such judges as he deems fit of the Supreme Court and the High Court in the State, and not Judge Nos.(2), (3) and (4) as per the judgement of the Supreme Court. By a Presidential Reference, it became Judges (2), (3), (4) and (5). What is important is the proviso which says that the Chief Justice of India shall always be consulted if you are appointing a judge other than the Chief Justice. The Supreme Court interpreted Chief Justice of India as the judiciary and constituted a Collegium. If that is the interpretation, then, article 124 (2), the main part is to consultation of judges, is rendered redundant. All the Collegium judges come under the proviso as per the interpretation. This is contrary to the speech made by Dr. Ambedkar, the architect of the Constitution who said, "With regard to a question of concurrence of the Chief Justice-it seems to me that those who advocate that proposition seem to rely implicitly both on the impartiality

[Shri K. Parasaran]

of the Chief Justice and the soundness of his judgement. I, personally feel, no doubt, that the Chief Justice is a very eminent person. But, after all, the Chief Justice is a man with all failings, all the sentiments and all the prejudices which we, as common people, have." So, he was referring to individual Chief Justice as persona designata and not judiciary. He said, ".... and I think to allow the Chief Justice, practically, a veto upon the appointment of judges is really to transfer the authority to the Chief Justice which you were not prepared to give even to the President of India. Therefore, the process of consultation has to be really a consultative process and a joint deliberation. This is the first aspect of the matter. Secondly, what has been overlooked is that there has to be an accountability with regard to appointments. When the Executive appoints, it has an accountability to the Legislature, and the Legislature also has its accountability when going to polls. But when no Executive is involved, the accountability too is not there. More importantly, in appointments, by implication, the Legislature is involved because of the accountability of the Executive to the Legislature. The consultation is also a check by judiciary because the power is not vested in the Government of the day. The Constitution contemplates advice to President only under article 74 of the Constitution by the council of Ministers.

Similarly, when we come to the removal of judges under Article 124, which is very important, the Constitution provides that a judge of the Supreme Court shall not be removed from his office except by an order of the President passed after an address by each House of Parliament, supported by the majority of the total membership of that House and by a majority of not less than two-thirds of the Members of the House present and voting has been presented to the President in the same Session for such removal on the ground of proved misbehavior or incapacity and under Clause 124(5) Parliament follows a similar procedure for the presentation of the address as in Article 368. Therefore, what is important is, in the appointment process the Executive and the Judiciary are involved but power is in the Executive. It is a power of check given to the Judiciary. When you want to remove them again, all the three limbs of sovereign power are involved because by the Act passed by the Judges Inquiry Act, the power is given to either not less than 50 Members of the Rajya Sabha to give notice in the Council of States or not less

than 100 Members of the Parliament to give notice in the House of the people and then the Chairman or Speaker after consulting such persons as he thinks fit and the materials as may be available to him to admit or refuse the motion. If the motion is accepted by the Speaker of the Lok Sabha or by the Vice-President , then, the process of inquiry starts.

#### [MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN in the Chair.]

The Committee which is appointed will consist of members nominated by the Chief Justice of India, the chief justice or a judge of the Supreme Court, a Chief Justice of a High Court and a jurist. Therefore, it is like appointing ad hoc judges to Supreme Court. We had such a precedent when Hyderabad became part of the Indian Union. At that time, two judges of the Andhra Pradesh High Court were appointed as ad hoc judges of the Supreme Court and one judge of the Supreme Court sat at Hyderabad with them as the Bench of Supreme Court. The process starts from the two Houses of Parliament and from the Vice-President or the Speaker and then there is a judicial inquiry on his misconduct. Then it comes before both the Houses for address and for voting. Unfortunately, the Supreme Court, in the case of Justice V. Ramaswamy, in Sarojini Ramaswamy's case, holds that there cannot be a judicial review against the decision or the findings of the Committee before the address in Parliament but the Supreme Sourt may be moved for judicial review only after the address in both the Houses are over. So much so, even the removal of judges by an address by both the Houses is by a special majority. It cannot be subjected to judicial review after the address by both the Houses. The result is power of appointment and final say in removal by judicial review is vested in the judiciary. There is no advice by the Council of Ministers and whether you call it advice, concurrence, consultation, in truth it is only an advice. The Constitution contemplates only one type of advice under Article 74 and that is an advice by the Council of Ministers present. The advice of the judges is binding on the President. This is the way the Constitution has been re-written. Therefore, power of appointment has been vested and power of transfer has been vested in the judiciary. The removal of a judge after address is subject to judicial review by the Supreme Court. Therefore, it becomes a self-appointing machinery, a self-transferring machinery, a self-removal machinery. Therefore, I supplement what the hon. Law Minister said that it is rewriting the Constitution. What is more, I am not saying this

[Shri K. Parasaran]

as a lawyer, but I will only quote one of the outstanding retired judge of the Supreme Court who said this while delivering the V.M. Tarkunde Memorial Lecture. She says, "The insulation of the judiciary from executive interference in the matter of appointment and transfer of judges is now almost complete."

But the question remains has this almost complete insulation achieved the object for which the constitutional interpretation was strained to an extent never witnessed before or after?" Immediately, in fact, steps should have been taken to bring a Bill before this House. We have woken up exactly after twenty years—after 1993 to 2013. This is a statement made not by anybody else, because if somebody says it, they say, 'you are a politician.' All politicians join together. When I was nominated to this august House, a friend of mine jocularly said, 'You have become a politician.' I said, 'Yes; I take this as a compliment.' Politics is political science though word "politics" has acquired an odium. If somebody misbehaves, everybody is blamed. In every walk of life somebody misbehaves. Anyway, that has become the position. To continue what the retired judge said, she said, "One of the criticisms of the earlier law, to quote the Supreme Court: 'the mystique of this process (of appointments) is kept secret and confidential between just a few individuals, not more than two or four as the case may be, and the possibility cannot therefore be ruled out that howsoever highly placed may be these individuals, the process may on occasions result in making of wrong appointments and transfers and may also at times, though fortunately very rate, lend itself to nepotism, political as well as personal and even trade-off." This is what a retired Supreme Court Judge observed. The learned Judge further says, "The same criticism may be made with equal justification of the present procedure for appointment and transfer of judges." She further said, "As I have said elsewhere the process by which a judge is appointed to a superior court is one of the best kept secrets in this country. The very secrecy of the process leads to an inadequate input of information as to the abilities and suitability of a possible candidate for appointment as a judge. A chance remark, a rumour or even third-hand information may be sufficient to damn a judge's prospects. Contrawise a personal friendship or unspoken obligation may colour a recommendation. Consensus within the Collegium is sometimes resolved through a trade-off resulting in dubious appointments and disastrous consequences for the litigants and the credibility of the judicial system. Besides, institutional

#### 5.00 P.M.

independence has also been compromised by growing sycophancy and 'lobbying' within the system.' What is important, as has been said by the learned Judge, is that lobbying which also leads to sycophancy. The learned Judge further says, "The solution as I see it lies not in a reversal to a status quo ante but in the setting up of a judicial commission with all the powers now vested with the Chief Justice of India and the Collegium of Supreme Court judges. This is at present the subject matter of intense public debate but the suggestion is not new. In 1981 the Supreme Court itself after noting the setting up of judicial Commissions by Australia and New Zealand to consider all judicial appointments including appointment of High Court judges." I don't want to waste the time of the House by reading the quotation further. Therefore, now, the House will see that a former Chief Justice of great repute, two outstanding Judges of the Supreme Court were all in the Commission for Review of the working of the Constitution. Justice Sarkaria, Justice Jeevan Reddy were there in the Commission. Justice Venkatachaliah was the Chairperson. And, there was a retired Judge of the Andhra Pradesh High Court. They were all Judges. I am not talking about any politicians news. And, now, a retired Judge of the Supreme Court who is respected very greatly and one of the most outstanding Judges very frankly she mentioned it. She was also a member of the Collegium for a short time. She says that it leads to sycophancy. And, I have personally seen that a Judge who is in the line of consideration receiving a Collegium Judge at the ladder of aircraft when he descends. The Constitution has been rewritten, both with regard to appointment as well as removal. There should not be a judicial review after the process of removal of a Judge after the address by both the Houses resulting in removal of the Judge. The address is by a similar majority as in Article 368. This is the exercise of constituent power. The removal under Article 124 also is exercised by the same procedure in Article 368.

I, therefore, strongly support the Bill. Thank you.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Thank you very much. Now, Shri D. Raja.

DR. YOGENDRA P. TRIVEDI (Maharashtra): Sir...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I will call you after Shri D. Raja has finished.

SHRI D. RAJA (Tamil Nadu): Thank you, Sir.

[Shri D. Raja]

The previous speaker is an eminent lawyer. Earlier, there were several eminent lawyers who took part in the discussion. Sir, I am an ordinary political activist representing the Communist Party of India.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You are not very ordinary, Mr. Raja; you are extraordinary. How can a 'king' be ordinary?

SHRI M. VENKAIAH NAIDU: How can 'Raja' be ordinary? 'Raja' and the expression 'ordinary' do not go together.

SHRI D. RAJA: Thanks!

So, I am representing the Communist Party of India which is fighting for the interests of the poor and the toiling people of this country. How I look at these Bills is more important.

Sir, I agree with the intent of these two Bills. I would like to make a few observations on the content of these Bills and how we are going to move forward on these.

Sir, Judiciary is one of the pillars of our democracy. A balanced, swift, affordable and a fair justice delivery system is central to the promotion of law and order in our society and in ensuring its stability and coherence.

Sir, in 1930s, Mahatma Gandhi, Father of our Nation, prepared a programme called the Non-Violent Mass Action. He wrote, "Reformation of Judiciary for giving quick and inexpensive justice to people is a part of the Non-Violent Mass Action programme." Establishment of Fast-track Courts embodies the vision of Gandhiji.

Sir, at this point of time, thanks to Dr. Ambedkar and the galaxy of leaders, we have the Constitution. Ours is a republican Constitution. Our Constitution gives us a vision of India, of new India. "We the people should strive for achieving justice—social, political and economic." There, I understand, the Legislature, the Executive and the Judiciary, as also the media, will have to work within their defined spaces to strive for achieving the larger goal which the Constitution has set before us.

In this regard, I think we have been talking about the judicial reforms for quite some time. Sir, my Party agrees to the fact that India should have a National Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 107

Judicial Commission, as it is there in several other countries, for instance, South Africa which fought against apartheid, which became a democratic republic after it has its National Judicial Commission, whereas India does not have.

Sir, this is right time when we should think of this and we should make all efforts to have a National Judicial Commission. Sir, when we talk of Judiciary, I think I agree with the LoP in one respect where he meant how Judiciary is now changing in tune with the time of the neo-liberalism. Sir, when we discuss the judicial reforms, we should discuss the situation before the '90s and the situation after the '90s. After the '90s, the Judiciary tried to interpret the laws in tune with the neo-liberal economic policies.

This is what created the problems. The Parliament, the Executive and the Judiciary, if we consider these three as three pillars of democracy, all these three draw power from the very same Constitution, but the Parliament occupies a unique position. Parliament has the power because it represents the will of the people to amend the laws, to make the laws, and even to amend the Constitution. There the Parliament has a unique place in our democracy. Now, what the Judiciary has been doing is this. In the name of interpreting the laws made by the Parliament, the Judiciary stretches itself. One may call it judicial activism, whether it is positive activism or negative activism, it is for people to judge. But in the recent days, the Judiciary made several pronouncements. For instance, after 1992, after the demolition of the Babri Masjid, when the whole question of Hindutva became a central theme in national discourse, the Judiciary tried to give a definition for Hindutva. I do not think it is the job of the Judiciary to give definition of a way of life. The Judiciary can interpret laws, the Judiciary can oversee how the Constitutional provisions are upheld by the Executive, by the Legislature. But, how can the Judiciary enter into defining certain life styles or ideological political positions because the Judiciary will have to work within the parameters of the Constitution? The Judiciary made pronouncements against the strikes. Many judgements are there. It said, 'strikes are immoral, illegal and they should be banned.' I do not think courts can give such pronouncements. The strikes are part of our Constitutional provisions. The people can express their dissent, and the Constitution provides that right to the people, and how come the Judiciary goes on to the extent of calling them illegal and immoral? That is one thing, Sir.

[Shri D. Raja]

Now, there is the recent Supreme Court judgement on reservation. It was a case between the Union Government and the AIIMS. But the judgement goes on to cover all the areas, all specialties, super-specialties of all Departments. It does not confine to AIIMS, but it goes to engineering, physical sciences and even to mathematics, I am telling you. There is no place for reservation and merit only matters. This is what the Judiciary says. How the merit is determined in Indian society, it is a different thing. I will not argue on that point. But I can say about the Chennai IIT. There is absolute discrimination against SCs, STs and OBCs. The Supreme Court judgement talks about mathematics. There is a woman mathematician, an outstanding mathematician. She has produced 81 books so far; more than 60 books were printed in the United States of America, and she has become one of the outstanding mathematicians in one particular area of mathematics, i.e., how to divide zero. We all think zero cannot be divided. But she invented a theory how zero can be divided. I can take her name. She is Vasantha Kandasamy. She was denied promotion, and the case went to Chennai High Court. Then, the Chennai High Court ordered CBI inquiry. So, what I am trying to say is, let us discuss these matters. This Supreme Court judgement on reservation, in fact, denies reservation to SCs, STs and OBCs. Is it the job of the Judiciary to decide the policy of reservation?

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You can correct it by legislation. Why don't you correct by legislation? You can do that.

SHRI D. RAJA: I think the policy of reservation is in the domain of Parliament. The quantum of reservation should be decided by Legislature. It is in the domain of Parliament and Legislatures. How can Judiciary enter such matters? That is where, I think, judicial accountability matters. Now this Bill addresses a limited question, that is, the Judicial Appointments Commission. Sir, when I say the Judges must know the social reality of our country, that is where the current Supreme Court Chief Justice before he took oath, made a statement that judiciary needs more representation from the oppressed sections and from women. This is the statement made by the present Chief Justice of India. Let me finish, Sir. But even before that this Parliament took note of that problem. The Standing Committee on Law and Justice when it was headed by the present Minister, Mr. Sudarsana Natchippan, gave a Report in 2007 which is known as the 21st Report of the Committee on Law

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 109

and Justice. The Committee says, "Such a coveted institution should also exhibit the reality of social milieu in which the Judiciary has been created. It cannot live in isolation, in ivory tower and remain outside the ambit of the Constitutional provision." (Time-bell) It goes on to say, "Judiciary is manned and operated by learned Judges and other judicial officers. When Executive and Legislature are brought under the ambit of Constitutional reservation, it is but natural that the Judiciary, the third pillar of democracy, should also be covered by the principle of reservation.' That is where I agree with my friend, Shri Satish Chandra Misra, who raised this issue and he referred to Uttar Pradesh as to how many Judges are there, how many Judges from SC are there, or not there, etc. It is a serious issue, Sir. The Government cannot ignore this point because after all we are an Indian society. We suffer from the problems of caste system, the pernicious, retrograde caste system which has to be fought. As Ambedkar said, 'the annihilation of the caste must be the task of all political parties.' In such a society, the Judiciary must be more sensitive. I think the Judicial Appointments Commission may do a lot of things in this regard. Finally, Sir, we had a discussion in the BAC on how to dispose of these Bills. To my knowledge, I understand the Constitutional (Amendment) Bill can be passed by the House and there is consensus. There is consensus if this can be passed. But on the Judicial Appointments Commission, it has been agreed that it can be referred to the Standing Committee. But I do not know whether there is any contradiction or any conflict, whether it will lead to some kind of Constitutional crisis in the appointments and transfers of Judges in this period. This point should be explained by the hon. Law Minister. He should clear this point. (Time-bell rings) You strive for a consensus among the Members of the House because all political parties agreed on this as a matter of principle. There are some differences and technicalities of dealing with this. Let there be a consensus on how the House can move about this Bill. Thank you.

DR. YOGENDRA P. TRIVEDI: Thank you, Sir, for giving me this opportunity to speak even though late.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Better late than never.

DR. YOGENDRA P. TRIVEDI: My name was overlooked. Sir, according to me today is the golden day in our Parliament. The level of debate, the high erudition, scholarships and overall oratorical skills will satisfy all those who are watching our proceedings from a distance that we are not always fighting.

[Dr. Yogendra P. Trivedi]

And, when we are not fighting, what an excellent intellectual arena we create amongst ourselves. Thanks to the Law Minister, who had to face a dilemma of what he had argued before the court and what he is canvassing now as a Minister, but he rose to the occasion. I think, it is very uncommon for the lawyers. I once appeared with Mr. Nani Palkhivala. And, when he was arguing something, a Judge told him that in your book you have written the other way. He said that that was his view as an author and this was his view as a lawyer. So, the lawyers know how to get over all these things. The Leader of the Opposition was also, as is usual, the best to demarcate the respective areas of the Judiciary, the Executive, and the Legislature as supreme under our Constitution. The Supreme court is not supreme merely because it is styled as 'supreme'. It is supreme in its own area, nothing more than that. 'Supreme' is not always supreme when it travels beyond its lakshman rekha. If I borrow an analogy from Ayurveda, there are vata, pitta and kapha in a man's body. If there is an imbalance amongst the three, one falls ill. And, if the Supreme Court also overlaps its own area or boundary, then, there is likelihood of a collapse. Now, let us have a closer look at the problem that has been created. It was a sad day for all of us and for our Judicial system when one Chief Justice reversed some of the orders of his immediate predecessors. These days the Judiciary or the courts very often criticize the parliamentary decisions. It is necessary to see that such criticisms come from a totally independent and unbiased forum. What we need is a totally unbiased and independent Judiciary. We have heard about corruption, nepotism and favouritism in the Judiciary. For appointment of Judges, we know, lobbying is taking place in a very big way. The hon. Law Minister mentioned about preference of some of the lawyers before some of the Judges. There are son-in-laws, there are cousins, there are sons who appear before the courts. But I can also tell you one thing, sometime it has a negative effect also. I know about some of the Judges who are very adamant in not giving adjournments. The best way to get adjournments was to appoint his own son-in-law as one of the advocates. The moment he appears the Judge will say in all humility, "I am sorry, I can't hear the case." The case is automatically adjourned. So, what I am pointing out is that all these types of favouritisms and nepotisms have to come to a halt. The issue became very hot in our midst when in this very House we impeached Justice Sen. A need was felt at that time that the method of appointing Judges should be made more transparent.

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 111

This Bill has been introduced to tackle this problem and my party heartily welcomes this Bill, especially the Constitution (Amendment) Bill and the Judicial Appointment Bill. The Collegium, envisaged in the Bill, is quite representative. There is the Chief Justice, the Law Minister, two Judges and two eminent Jurists. In the Bill, which was envisaged by Mr. Jaitley, there was only one eminent person to be appointed in the Collegium. Now, this number is six. But the Law Ministry has not provided as to who will have the casting vote if there is a tie. If there were five people, then, the majority would have prevailed. But, when there are six, there is every likelihood of being a tie there. If a tie happens, then, who is going to decide ultimately. The Law Minister should apply his mind to this. A selection of eminent members has also to be made. How would these eminent members be chosen? The Prime Minister, the Chief Justice and the Leader of the Opposition, and there he has made the Leader of the Opposition from the Lower House. I think, he is not right. He should say, "From either of the two Houses". It should be left to the discretion of the Opposition whether they want the Leader of the Opposition from the Rajya Sabha or the Lok Sabha.

### MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Why not the Upper House?

DR. YOGENDRA P. TRIVEDI: Okay, the Lower House and the Upper House. There should also be personal interviews. I think, as pointed out by Shri Arun Jaitley, they must take into consideration how many papers he has written, what his judicial background is, whether he has attended legal seminars, how many juniors he has trained and what the level of his income is. All this is very necessary; otherwise, we will have a level of judges who are not worth talking about. There is also a story which I remember. In a small district, somebody went to the Magistrate and said कि साहब एक पिटिशन लिखवाना है, तो क्या आप ज़रा मदद करेंगे? मजिस्ट्रेट ने कहा कि तुम बाहर जाओ, 10-10 रूपए में तुमको लॉयर मिल जाएगा। वह बाहर गया और एक लॉयर को पकड़ कर बोला कि जज से ऐसा कहा है, तो उस लॉयर ने कहा कि जज को जाकर बोलो कि 10-10 रूपए वाले सब जज बन गये। इसलिए मेरा यह कहना है कि we don't want such types of judges. I am telling you that things are horrible in our courts. They are talking about three crore cases. I know about one judicial room in which one magistrate is sitting in Mumbai, in Ballard Pier, and there are 70 lakh cases and there is no place to keep the files. I think if this is the position, then, I think it is very necessary that the Law Minister, after this exercise is over, should apply his mind in

[Dr. Yogendra P. Trivedi]

having a Judicial Reforms Bill. Judicial reforms are very necessary in our country. We are talking about the judges and how they are to be appointed. Many criteria have been given. Misraji gave a long list of criteria about integrity and incorruptibleness. He also talked about intelligence and the type of erudition he has got. I think we need not go very far. I would like to say that in Maharashtra, we had the case of Justice Ramshastri who halted the entire army of Peshwas, because he fought for his principles. We require such bold judges, not the judges who cow down. (Time-bell) He was a very famous judge. So, what is required is that the Bill must be passed. But, at the same time, I am saying that the Constitutional (Amendment) Bill should be passed immediately. As far as the other Bill is concerned, I agree that it should be referred to the Select Committee because there is a demand that there are certain clauses that need to be changed. The same Bill can also be converted into a Bill which lays down certain judicial standards, which are very necessary. Nothing has been laid out therein as to how the judges are to be selected. So, with these remarks, my Party support the first Bill fully. As far as the second Bill is concerned, we believe that it should go to the Standing Committee.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, Shri Ravi Shankar Prasad.

SHRI PRAVEEN RASHTRAPAL (Gujarat): Sir, how has the order of the speaker been decided?

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The order of the speakers is according to the order.

SHRI PRAVEEN RASHTRAPAL: From Congress, only one speaker has spoken.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Yes.

SHRI PRAVEEN RASHTRAPAL: Incidentally he was a Minister. I want to know the rule under which he has been allowed to speak.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: You will speak after me.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Your party had given his name, so, I had to call him.

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 113

SHRI PRAVEEN RASHTRAPAL: That is all right. Now, he is the second speaker from the BJP.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is like that only.

SHRI PRAVEEN RASHTRAPAL: What about the second speaker from Congress?

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You wait and see. If you don't know how it works, I am sorry. First, BJP will speak. Only after that, Congress will be called. That is the tradition here. You should know that.

SHRI PRAVEEN RASHTRAPAL: Mr. Deputy Chairman, I am withdrawing my name.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Why? Nobody has changed your chance.

SHRI PRAVEEN RASHTRAPAL: All right. I am here for voting.

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI (Rajasthan): Sir, ...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Ram Jethmalaniji, I will give you time.

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: You will give me time, but kindly bear one thing in mind that, today, I am a loner who is the only one who seems to be determined to oppose this Bill. Please allow me to speak.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Yes, I will, surely, allow you.

Now, Mr. Rashtrapal, since you have directly criticised the Chair, you should know that we have not completed one cycle. Only just now, one cycle has been completed. See, I am showing the courtesy to explain you and even then you are creating problem. See, the cycle starts with BJP, the main Opposition. Then, one cycle will be complete. Only one cycle has completed now. Then, the second cycle starts with Shri Ravi Shankar Prasad. The next speaker is from Congress, and if you are the speaker – here you are the speaker – I will call you. So, you must understand the procedure. Without knowing the facts, you don't ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Sir, ...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, no; I will tell you. Your name in the 'Others' list is at No. 2. That means, in the 'Others' list, your name is last in the second

[Mr. Deputy Chairman]

cycle. However, there are not many speakers. We have Shri Ravi Shankar Prasad, Shri Praveen Rashtrapal, Shri H.K. Dua, and then you will be called.

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Of course, everybody has supported this Bill. They can go on .

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, I can only go by order. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: I am the only one who is opposing ...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, I cannot give you preference because of that. No, No. You are a very senior lawyer. Simply because you are opposing the Bill, I cannot give you preference nor can I give you preference because you are supporting the Bill. That is no concern for the Chair. I go by the order only. Now, Shri Ravi Shankar Prasad. ...(Interruptions)... I will call you when your chance would come. I have not changed it. I will not change it unless I take your permission. Please. Yes, Mr. Ravi Shankar Prasad.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Sir, I am grateful that you have given me the chance to speak on such a historic Bill. Since morning, the debate on this Bill is of great calibre and scholarship, a fine blend of forensic ability and earthly wisdom. We saw the forensic wisdom of the Law Minister, of the LoP, which was also of great statesmanship, of my esteemed friend, Satish Chandra Misraji, and the earthly wisdom of Ram Gopal Yadavji whom I respect very much because it was a blend of his political experience and administration both.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: What about Shri Rajeev Shukla?

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: I leave it to you. ...(Interruptions)...

Sir, we are talking about Judiciary, the mode of appointment. We all stand up here to declare in categorical terms that we stand for independence of Judiciary, which we all respect, which should not be compromised.

Sir, before I come to other points, let me state one thing. Amidst all the degeneration and decay, this institution of Judiciary still retains its high respect among the people of the country. We have got murderers, mafiosis, terrorists who are given capital punishment by an Additional District Judge or a District Judge.

And when he retires and goes in the market with his wife, why is it that terrorist or his gang never tries to kill him? Maybe, some exceptions are there. Is it because of the power of law, is it because of power of contempt that they are there? It is the moral authority which the institution commands in our society, and we need to respect that moral authority. The Founding Fathers ensured that the constitutional power and the moral authority must blend together. Sir, when I stand up here, let me appreciate the leaders of the Government from 1950 onwards who respected the independence of Judiciary. I can name Pandit Jawaharlal Nehru as the Prime Minister who laid the foundation of that institution. Therefore, we have such eminent Judges from Kania to Patanjali Sastri to Gajendragadkar to Hidayatullah. They had no problem. He also adored the Chair as the Chairman of this House, being the Vice-President. There was never any problem. The problem arose post-1967 when the Golaknath case judgment was given, a wrong judgment in my view, that the Parliament can never amend the Fundamental Right. That would have been taken care of. But that was made a ground to oppose the Judiciary and it changed the concept of 'committed judiciary'. While going through the 1993 judgement, hon. Deputy Chairman, Sir, we find, there is a mention that the Executive's influence was sought to be created as the primacy of the Executive, so that people close to the ideology of the Ruling Party make a judicial appointment, and hence, the need to have primacy of the Judiciary; that is the reasoning given. We have already heard about the '70s, \*-they were all superseded.\* was then the Chief Justice, a Chief Justice of questionable intellectual integrity.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, please.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: I am sorry, Sir.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I am expunging the names.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: All right, Sir. I withdraw the names.

He was a Chief Justice of questionable integrity, intellectually speaking. Now, I said, intellectual integrity. Why did I say so? In the JP Movement–Ram Kripalji is here; he was with me there–fighting the Emergency, Sir, I remember, a judgement had come in the ADM, Jabalpur *Versus* Shukla case. A great Judge, H.R. Khanna, asked the then Attorney-General, 'if an accused is killed inside the jail, do you have any

<sup>\*</sup> Expunged as ordered by the Chair.

[Shri Ravi Shankar Parshad]

remedy?' The Attorney General said that the question weighed on his conscience, but he had no remedy. And in that judgement, while the Supreme Court upheld the argument, the dissent was that of H.R. Khanna. At that time, when the dissent came, we were all activists opposing the Emergency, the supersession of Judges, and fighting for freedom. The New York Times wrote a brilliant editorial saying, "If at all freedom will return to India, the Indians must erect a great golden statue for this great Judge, H.R. Khanna."

We have seen those times. Then, we saw the judgement in the S.P. Gupta case followed by the 1993 judgement. Hon. Law Minister, I was reading some literature on it when an interesting comment came to my notice. The S.P. Gupta judgement came when you had a powerful Government with a powerful Prime Minister. I need not say who the Prime Minister was during 1982-83. The 1993 judgement came when we had a weak Government with a weak Prime Minister. I don't know, what the commentators said, but I am very happy to, at least, declare it today that in a coalition government, Mr. Arun Jaitley took the first step towards having a collegium. I am sure, in a coalition Government, an attempt is being made to undo the impact of the 1993 judgement. I think, that is also one of the lessons from history that we need to know.

Sir, let me now come to specifics. The collegium system has been talked about. I went through the 1993 judgement and I would only quote paragraph 486 of the judgement. Now, why did the Supreme Court take over the power? The Supreme Court said that they need to select the best and the most suitable person as the Judge. It listed out the qualities. Hon. Satish Misraji made a reference to it; the qualities that the person must possess are—I want this to come in the record of this Parliament, Sir—high integrity, honesty, skill, high order of emotional stability, firmness, serenity, legal soundness, ability and endurance. Besides that, he must have moral rigor, ethical firmness, impervious to corruption or venal influences, etc.

Sir, as the system has been working today—hon. Law Minister, kindly correct me if I am wrong – now there is no Judge in India who has been appointed under the old system. All the Judges today, be it in the Supreme Court or in the High Courts of India, have been appointed as per the 1993 judgement, through a collegium system. Can we say that only the best have been appointed? Can we say

that people with high moral callibre, intellectual soundness and integrity have been appointed? No. Mr. Parasaran quoted what Justice Ruma Pal had said, in the same para from the lecture: "There is a belief nowadays that corruption in the Judiciary also is as damaging for the credibility in the independence of the Judiciary as the act of corruption."

Now, hon. Deputy Chairman, we need to ask this question—how is it that the collegium of the Supreme Court under one Chief Justice says that a particular Judge is not fit to be promoted to the Supreme Court, and when that Chief Justice retires, the next Chief Justice says, no, he is fit to be promoted to the Supreme Court? How can there be such different yardsticks? In this judgement, Sir, there is a provision that the entire proposal shall be initiated by the Chief Justice of the High Court and the Supreme Court.

I remember when I was handling this portfolio in the Law Ministry in the NDA Government for some time, there was a Judge of a High Court, who was the Chief Justice, who had a problem with his friend who was in the Supreme Court. For three years, he did not initiate any proposal. मैं नाम नहीं भेजूंगा। And, for three years, that High Court had no appointments at all. This judgment says that the appointment process must be started one month before the vacancy arises. I would request Satish Misraji to kindly tell me if this is the mandate of law, why the Allahabad Chief Justices are not following it. Who is stopping them? Therefore, maybe we, politicians, commit some mistake, but there is a judicial mandate that should be followed. It has not been followed. There have been a large number of other infirmities and other inconsistencies. And, today, let us introspect very honestly. Do we have the best Judges in the country who have been appointed? We cannot say that. We have got senior Supreme Court Judges. We have got senior Chief Justices, eminent Judges who have retired, who have said that today, there are corruption allegations, substantially credible, not only in the High Court but, in some case, in the Supreme Court also. Surely, all of them have been nominees of the collegium system. Therefore, this system has not worked.

There is one issue I would like to flag here. At least, on two issues, our Judiciary need to be appreciated. Why are people trusting them in spite of all these weaknesses? The institution of PIL has been respected, though it has been abused also. As the Supreme Court has said, it has become 'paisa interest litigation'. But, in

#### [Shri Ravi Shankar Parshad

exposing many of the infirmities, in having a kind of a check on corruption, the Judiciary has played a role and we need to respect the Judiciary for that because we have to be very honest about ourselves. India of 2013 is not the India of 60s and 70s. Today, no politician can dare impose emergency in India regardless of foreign majority. No politician can dare curb media and impose Press censorship. No politician or Prime Minister can dare supersede Judges. That is the stability of India and when we have this stability, we need to have a proper system which is transparent, which is accountable.

Sir, let me raise one important issue, which the hon. LoP has indicated. We need to respect the Judges. We need to respect their authority. We want the Judiciary to control corruption of Executive and politicians, and politicians must learn to respect that. But, the Judiciary also needs to understand certain clear dos and don'ts. One day, I learnt to my dismay that the Delhi High Court, by an order, had taken over the functioning of the Municipal Corporation of Delhi. They had appointed a retired Commissioner. They made lawyers as penal Commissioners and the argument given was that the Corporation was not functioning properly. I had an occasion to address a seminar. I said, "Fine, then, don't confine to Corporation only." You may recall, at that point in time, the Health Minister and the Director of the All India Institute of Medical Sciences were having a big fight. If Right to Health is a Fundamental Right, then appoint lawyers to run the All India Institute of Medical Sciences. The planes are not flying on time. Appoint a team of lawyers to oversee that flights are on time. Executive actions cannot be monitored by Judges. How many monitoring committees, sub-committees, super committees the Judiciary, all over the country, have taken upon themselves? In Gurgaon toll tax matter, I learnt that the Punjab and Haryana High Court wasted two months' time कि गुड़गांव में toll tax लगेगा या नहीं लगेगा। Ultimately, they had to say that it was beyond their capacity. Everything cannot be good. But, the Constitution has given an institutional mechanism as to how those wrongs will be set right. And, if the Judiciary thinks that we have to set right everything, I am sorry, that is not what the Constitution has given. Sir, I have last two-three points and I will quickly conclude.

Ram Gopalji talked about accountability. We are also talking about accountability. We, politicians, have been condemned and for good measures. Many of our actions or inactions deserve to be condemned.

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 119

But, Sir, let me say something today in favour of my community, to which I belong. ..(Interruptions).. Here, I am talking as a Member of Parliament. Sir, we, who are in politics, suffer accountability at how many processes. We win elections, we lose elections. We have accountability in the Parliament. We have accountability in the media. We have accountability in the courts; the courts can haul up for our wrongs including having an investigation done under their monitoring. We suffer accountability before the Election Commission. We suffer accountability before the CAG, and, lastly, if we do not do well, after five years, we are defeated by the people. There are seven, eight layers of accountability, yet it is talked about that we are not accountable. Maybe, there is a scope for improvement. We, the politicians, also need to understand it and I would like to quote a very eminent journalist of India. I need not take his name here but what he told me was very moving. He said, "Amidst all the chaos and confusion in India, it is the politician alone who keeps on giving access to people, it is the Parliament, the biggest panchayat of India, which raises the voice of people and leads to a self-correcting mechanism, which sustains the very polity and democracy of India". And, when democracy was not there during Emergency, Sir, we have seen what has happened to India. Therefore, we, who are in politics in this democratic republican governance, should not be so uncomfortable when people raise these questions.

## MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: I am concluding, Sir. My last plea is, and, it is the point from where the hon. Leader of the Opposition began. Sir, we send to a Standing Committee even a smaller legislation. There have been recommendations by the Law Commission, by many other Commissions. We are going to have a Constitutional amendment of historic import, maybe for coming 50, 60 years. I would suggest that in the shortest possible time, let the main Constitution Amendment and the Bill go before the Standing Committee. Let us have the benefit of more consultation of Bar Council, Bar Associations, jurists, retired Chief Justices, law professors, people and media so that this Bill may get reinforced again and again. Therefore, my plea would be to kindly ensure this. I would appeal to the hon. Law Minister to ensure that this happens. It is not a matter of ego. I am sorry, I must clarify what Satish ji said. We all want to support this Bill, whether it is Mr. Kapil Sibal, Mr. Arun Jaitley or myself. When Mr. Jaitley brought the Bill, the Bill was sent to the Standing Committee but the House got dissolved. Therefore, there is a need

[Shri Ravi Shankar Parshad

to consider that, and, I am sure, the Law Minister will consider it with an open mind, and, lastly, Sir, I am really grateful to you for having given me time to speak. Thank you.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Now, Shri Praveen Rashtrapal.

SHRI PRAVEEN RASHTRAPAL: Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, I withdraw my name in favour of next speaker from Congress Party.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Okay. Next is Mr. Shadi Lal Batra.

श्री शादी लाल बत्रा (हरियाणा): उपसभापित महोदय, कांस्टीट्युएंट असेम्बली ने हमें 24 नवम्बर 1949 को एक संविधान दिया और पार्लियामेंट, जुिडिशयरी तथा एक्जिक्यूटिव, ये तीनों संविधान के अंग थे। पार्लियामेंट सुप्रीम थी, पार्लियामेंट जनता की रिप्रेजेंटेटिव थी और जुिडिशियरी को इंडिपेंडेंट बनाना था, जुिडिशियरी को अपॉइंट करना था।

## [ उपसभाध्यक्ष (श्रीमती रेणुका चौधरी) पीठासीन हुईं ]

आज हमारे सामने एक समस्या यह आ रही है कि यह अपॉइंटमेंट किस तरीके से हो? पहले जो कोलिजियम काम कर रहा था, वह ठीक था या आज जो जुिडिशियल कमीशन आ रहा है, यह ठीक होगा हम ज़रा गौर से देखें कि वह कोजिलियम क्या था। उसमें तीन जजेज़ हाई कोर्ट के और पांच जजेज़ सुप्रीम कोर्ट के थे, जो जिसको चाहे अपॉइंट कर लें, पारदर्शिता बिल्कुल नहीं थी। एप्लिकेशंस आती थीं, वे अपने-आप डिसाइड कर लेते थे कि यह आपका, ये मेरा और इस तरह से जजेज़ अपॉइंट हो जाते थे। तब जजेज़ की क्वलिफिकेशंस क्या थीं? उनाका एक्सपीरिएंस क्या था? क्या उन्हें देश, संविधान या कानून की कोई चिन्ता थी या सिर्फ अपनी चिन्ता थी?

एक टाइम था जब जजेज़ को यंग इंडियन विडो से कम्पेयर किया जाता था। यंग इंडियन विडो का मतलब था कि अपने घर में अकेले रहो। उस समय उनकी कोई सोशल लाइफ नहीं थी, लेकिन जब जजेज़ चेंज हुए, तब उनकी सोशल लाइफ शुरू हो गई और हर शाम को पार्टी होने लगी। अगर वहां जज़ अंकल आ रहे हैं और जज़ अंकल से कल स्टे लेना है, तो वहां क्लाइंट को भी बुला लिया गया। कल क्लाइंट को ऑफिस में बिठा दिया गया, जज़ अंकल अंदर आए, उसको अटेंड किया और सवेरे स्टे मिल गया। ऐसे वकीलों की, ऐसे साथियों की क्या सहायता हुई, वे और ओवरनाइट मिल्टी मिलिनियर भी हो गए, सीनियर एडवोकेट भी हो गए और जजेज़ बनने की लाइन में भी आ गए, क्योंकि अंकल जज ने अपॉइंट करना था, वे एप्लीकेंट थे। बात और हो गई। बात यहां भी खत्म नहीं होती कि कितनी चली। बात तो बहुत आगे चलती है कि जजेज़ अंकल ने जो अपॉइंट किए, उनका क्या प्रोसीजर था,

Bills

उनके लिए वह कौन सी भावना थी और उनकी कितनी काबलियत थी, किसी ने जज नहीं किया। यह एक बात हुई। यहां बात हाई कोर्ट की कर लें, सुप्रीम कोर्ट की कर लें लेकिन आओ शुरू करें ट्रॉयल कोर्ट से। ट्रॉयल कोर्ट में क्या पोजिशन हो रही है? ट्रॉयल कोर्ट में जो जज़ जाते हैं, बनते हैं, आज देखिए कि जज को या तो 2 हिन्दी में, इंगलिश में उनके बयान रिकार्ड हो रहे हैं तो जज को बोलना होगा, बोल कर रिकार्ड करवाना होगा। लेकिन अगर हिन्दी में लिख रहे हैं तो अकेले जज को अपने हाथ से लिखना होगा, लेकिन जज 10 मिनट बैठकर रिटॉयरिंग रूम में चले जाते हैं, वहां दूसरे जजेज़ भी आ जाते हैं। वहां चाय, कॉफी का काम शुरू हो जाता है और क्लर्क लिखना शुरू करता है। तो यह बात हुई। यह जड़ है भ्रष्टाचार की, यह जड़ है उस क्लर्क की, उस अहलमद की जिसने लिखा, क्योंकि गांव के जो आदमी आते हैं वे अनपढ़ होते हैं, वे समझते नहीं कि क्या है। उन्होंने कहीं हां लिख दिया और कहीं ना लिख दिया, आगे चलते गए। उसके बाद लंच में भी यही होता है और शाम को चले जाते हैं। महीने में कितनी जजमेंट देनी होती हैं, 30 जजमेंट देनी होती हैं और ये जजमेंट कौन सी होती हैं, जो कन्फेशनल स्टेटमेंट होती हैं, जिसमें लिखना नहीं पड़ता, कंटेस्टेड केस की जजमेंट नहीं आती और कंटेस्टेड केस की जजमेंट नहीं आती तो फिर क्या होगा? मैडम, जब वे जज फैसला कर देते हैं तो वह जज एकाउंटेबल नहीं हैं, उसके अगेंस्ट जो सेकंड अपील जाती है, वह सेकंड अपील हाई कोर्ट में जाती है, हाई कोर्ट में वह एडिमट नहीं होगी, एडिमट होगी तो वह बीस साल तक पड़ी रहेगी। इसका मतलब क्या हुआ कि जो पीछे पार्टी थी, उसने किसी भी कंसीडरेशन से जज को अपने साथ सहमत कर लिया था, तो उसके लिए वह प्रॉपर्टी को बीस साल तक एन्जॉय करेगा। प्रॉपर्टी आई, फिर बहस भी नहीं होगी और फिर वह यह देखेगा कि इस जज अंकल का भतीजा कौन सा है, भाई कौन सा है, उनको कुछ नहीं करना, सिर्फ वकालतनामा सबिमट करना है। वकालतनामा सबिमट करके वे कितनी फीस मांग लें, वह फीस हो जाती है तथा केस ट्रांसफर हो जाता है। केस एक बार भी ट्रांसफर नहीं होता, कई बार ट्रांसफर होता है। मैं इसके साथ एक अनुरोध करुंगा कि जहां में उनका वेलकम कर रहा हूं, उनकी सराहना कर रहा हूं कि वे बड़ी हिम्मत से जो यह बिल लाए हैं, यह बिल ठीक है, मगर थोड़ी इंक्वायरी करा लें कि क्या ऐसे केसेज हैं जो सिर्फ वकालतनामा देने से केस ट्रांसफर हो जाते हैं। और क्या ऐसे केसेज हैं जिसमें सारे केस में किसी जज ने अपने हाथ से एक बयान भी नहीं लिखा। तो कहां होगा? हम चाहते हैं कि हमारी जुडिशियरी इंडिपेंडेंट हो, हम चाहते हैं कि वे जो फैसला करें, क्योंकि भगवान के बाद वे ही होते हैं, वह फैसला जायज हो, लीगल हो और एज पर लॉ हो। लेकिन कहां हो रहा है? वह हो तो नहीं रहे, लेकिन गरीब आदमी चूप करके बैठ जाता है और वह इसलिए सूप्रीम कोर्ट में नहीं आ सकता, क्योंकि वहां का खर्चा वह बर्दाश्त नहीं कर सकता। अगर ऐसे हालात हो गए, तो जो तीन करोड़ के ऐरियर्स हैं, तो क्या हम अनार्की की तरफ तो नहीं जा रहे हैं? जब उनको सोच आ जाएगी तो हमारे देश के क्या होगा? आज अगर हम देखें कि यह जो बिल लाए हैं, बिल में क्या है? आज ही मैं कहता हूं कि चीफ जिस्टिस ऑफ इंडिया और

[श्री शादी लाल बत्रा]

दो सीनियर जजेज मेंबर होंगे और उसके बाद प्राइम मिनिस्टर, लीडर ऑफ दि अपोजिशन और चीफ जस्टिस तीनों मिलकर दो ऐमिनेंट आदमी अपॉइट करेंगे। जो 125 करोड़ लोगों का देश हो, उसमें जो प्राइम मिनिस्टर हो, लीडर आफ दि अपोजिशन हो, उनके पास कोई ऐसी पॉवर नहीं होनी चाहिए कि दो ऐमिनेंट आदमी, जज तो नहीं होंगे, कोई लॉयर कह दें या ऐमिनेंट पर्सनिलिटि, वे इस बात के लिए दे दें कि आपको भी इस जुडिशियल कमीशन में पार्ट एंड पॉर्सल बनना है, और इस जुडिशियल कमीशन के माध्यम से आपने अपॉइंट करना है। जैसे मेरे सीनियर साथियों ने अभी कहा कि हमारे ऊपर बहुत ही प्रश्न चिन्ह लग चुके हैं। प्रश्न चिन्ह किस बात के लगे हैं? हम एकाउंटेबल हैं इसलिए लगे हैं? हम ओपनली बात करते हैं इसलिए लगे हैं? हम हर पांच साल बाद जनता के पास जाते हैं, उनका सहयोग, समर्थन और आशीवाद लेकर आते हैं, इसलिए लग रहे हैं? आज अगर मैं कहूं कि ये जो पार्लियामेंट के मेंबर बैठे हैं, इन्होंने अपनी जीवन कला में कितना संघर्ष किया होगा, जनता की कितनी सेवा होगी और किस तरह उनका सहयोग और समर्थन लेकर आए हैं। इनका हर काम जो 14 लाख, 19 लाख, 20 लाख की जनता है, वह देख रही है। तो ऐसी जो फोटो स्टेट कॉपीज आती हैं, वे ऐसी नहीं हो सकती जिसमें कोई त्रृटि हो। लेकिन आज हमें कोई शंका नहीं है। तो फिर इस कोलिजियम की क्या महानता थी ओर इस जुडिशियल कमीशन बिल के लिए क्या कमी है?

वही जज वहां थे, वही जज यहां होंगे। इस तरह एडीशन सिर्फ लॉ मिनिस्टर की हुई व प्राइम मिनिटर और एलओपी के ओपीनियन की हुई। अगर हमं प्रजातंत्र में विश्वास है और हम समझते हैं कि हमारे लीडर वाकयी पब्लिक के नुमाइंदे हैं, पब्लिक की भावनाओं की रक्षा करते हैं तो यह जरूरी हो जाता है कि एमिनेंट पर्सनलिटीज के नोमिनेशन के लिए प्राइम मिनिस्टर ओर एलओपी की राय भी ली जाए।

में एक बात और कहना चाहता हूं। अगर हम चाहते हैं कि हमारी जुडिशियरी इंडिपेंडेंट हो तो उसके साथ थोड़ी कॉम्पिटेंसी भी होनी चाहिए। उनके पास जज बनने के लिए काबलियत भी होनी चाहिए। जज बनाने के पहले उनका रिकॉर्ड तो देखना ही चाहिए कि उनकी कोर्ट्स में पार्टिसिपेशन कितनी है, उन्होंने कितने ऐसे केस कंटेस्ट किए हैं, जिस से हम समझ सकें कि वे वाकयी लॉयर थे। उन्होंने इनोवेटिव आर्ग्यूमेंट्स किए और लॉ को इंटरप्रेट कर के केस अपने हक में कराए, लेकिन यह नहीं देखा जाता क्योंकि वहां चाचा-भतीजावाद चल रहा था। इसे खत्म करने के लिए यह जरूरी था कि यह बिल आए। अब इस के माध्यम से जो 5-6 आदमी बैठेंगे, वे वाकयी देखेंगे कि उनमें कितनी काबलियत है। वे लोअर कोर्ट, हाई कोर्ट या सुप्रीम कोर्ट में जज बनने के लायक हैं या नहीं? आप जानते हैं कि यूनियन पब्लिक सर्विस किमशन इसलिए बना था कि वहां से आईएएम पास केंडीडेट्स निकलेंगे। फिर चाहे यूनियन पब्लिक सर्विस किमशन हो, जुडिशियरी हो या एक्जीक्यूटिव हो, वहां से एक एक्जाम

पास किया, एक इंटरच्यू दिया और उसके बाद बन गए, लेकिन यहां हमारे राजनीतिक भाई तो हर पांच साल बाद इंटरव्यू देते हैं, हर पांच साल बाद देखते हैं कि हमारी जनता की भावना कया है, हमारा देश किस तरफ जा रहा है और हमें क्या करना है। इसलिए मैं समझता हूं कि यह बिल हर तरीके से महान है। यह जुडिशियरी को इंडिपेंडेंट बनाने के लिए और जनता का विश्वास अर्जित करने के लिए मील का पत्थर साबित होगा। यह इस देश के विकास के लिए मील का पत्थर साबित होगा। सर, अंग्रेजी में कहा जाता है कि justice should not only be done but it should also be seen to be done. अगर प्रिसाइडिंग ऑफिसर्स जो जज बनकर आए हैं, वे किस के समर्थन से आए हैं? उसके लिए एक चीज देखनी होगी कि जब कोई लिटीगेंट कोर्ट में आता है, तो वह सोचता है कि इसे किस ने जज बनाया है, मैं क्यों न इसे जज बनाने वाले के चहेते आदमी को वकील कर लूं। यह एक शुरूआत होती है और फिर वह उसे लॉयर अपॉइंट कर लेता है। उससे वह जज भी खुश होता है। इस तरह वह लॉयर नहीं है, वह लाइजिनंग ऑफिसर है। उस के माध्यम से वह लिटीगेंट भी हर तरफ से सेफ हो जाता है। फिर उनकी अपील का मतलब नहीं होता। अगर अपील करते भी हैं तो केस डिसाइड होने में कई साल लग जाते हैं। आज हमारी अनेक कोटर्स में 3 करोड़ केसेज पेंडिंग हैं। उसमें हमें उन पार्टीज के बारे में सोचना चिहए जिनके केस पेंडिंग हैं और जिनकी करोड़ों की प्रापेटी इनवॉलवड़ है, लेकिन फैसला नहीं हो पा रहा है। हमें सोचना चाहिए कि फैसला न होने के पीछे क्या कारण हैं? सर, इसका कारण एक ही है कि जजेज की अकाउंटेबिलिटी नहीं है। जजेज़ फैसला नहीं करते और डेट लगाते रहते हैं जिस से एक पार्टी को फायदा होता है।

मैडम मैं यह भी कहना चाहूंगा कि जो लोग इस जुडिशियल कमीशन में आएं, मैं लॉ मिनिस्टर से दरख्वास्त करूंगा कि आप जहां उनके अपॉइंटमेंट के लिए सोच रहे हैं. वहां जब उनकी डिस्क्वालिफिकेशन हो जाती है, तो उसे हटाने के बारे में भी सोचना होगा। उसके लिए कांस्टीट्युशन में इम्पीचमेंट प्रोवाइडेड है, उसमें इतना डिफिकल्ट प्रपोजीशन है कि इम्पीचमेंट हो नहीं सकती और वह इसलिए नहीं हो सकती क्योंकि वे जज भी उस लेवल तक जाने तक काफी कोशिश कर लेते हैं। अब वे यहां आते भी हैं, तो यहां आने के बाद उनकी डिफरेंट आपिनियन हो जाती है। अब अगर इस सदन की ओपिनियन एक हो और हम अपनी राजनीति छोड़कर, सिर्फ देश के लिए काम करें, तो मैं समझता हूं कि दुनिया की कोई भी संसद इस से ताकतवर नहीं होगी और अगर इम्पीचमेंट होनी हे. तो निश्चित तौर पर होगी। मैंने दो केसेज़ में देखा है कि इम्पीचमेंट रास्ते में रुक गयी, नहीं हुई क्योंकि हम इकट्ठे नहीं हो सके। हरेक की अपनी अलग-अलग ओपिनियन थी। इसलिए इस जुडिशियल कमिशन में यह भी जोड़ देना चाहिए कि डिस्क्वलिफिकेशन के बाद ऐक्शन लिया जा सके क्योंकि उसमें भी चीफ जिस्टस हैं, हाई कोर्ट के सीनियर जजेज भी हैं और एमीनेंट पर्संस भी हैं। अब और कौन आएगा? इसलिए आज में इतना ही कहना चाहूंगा कि आने वाले समय में यह बात बहुत जरूरी हो जाती है कि हम देश को कैसी जुडिशियरी दें, देश को कैसे जुडिशियल ऑफिसर दें और उसके लिए कैसी व्यवस्था करें।

[श्री शादी लाल बत्रा]

एक बात यह भी सामने आती है कि जो जज बनते हैं, उनके दिमाग में ऐसा होता है कि हम कुछ भी जजमेंट दे देंगे, हमारी जजमेंट पर कोई अकाउंटेबिलिटी नहीं है, हमें कोई कुछ नहीं कहेगा। एज पर लॉ जो जजमेंट ठीक नहीं होते, उसमें हाई कोर्ट भी सेट एसाइड करती है, कोई एक्शन नहीं लेती और सुप्रीम कोर्ट भी कोई एक्शन नहीं लेती। तो इस जुडिशियल कमीशन के थ्र कोई न कोई वे आउट निकालना होगा। उसकी बोनाफाइड इंटरप्रिटेशन होनी चाहिए। यदि बोनाफाइड हो, तो समझ में आता है और उस जज को प्रोटेक्शन मिलनी चाहिए लेकिन बोनाफाइंड न हो और यह प्रव हो रहा हो कि यह जजमेंट बोनाफाइड नहीं है, तो उसके लिए आप एकाउंटिबिलिटी कहां से रखेंगे, किसके पास रखेंगे? मैं मंत्री महोदय से अनुराध करुंगा कि इसके लिए भी कोई न कोई प्रावधान आप देखें, ताकि जज की भी यह सोच बने कि अगर मैंने गलत जजमेंट दे दी. आउट ऑफ द वे जजमेंट दे दी. गलत इंटरप्रिटेशन की, तो मेरे ऊपर भी एक्शन हो सकता है, मैं लॉ के ऊपर नहीं हूं, मैं लॉ के नीचे हूं। हम सब आज लॉ के नीचे हैं, लेकिन जज सोचते हैं कि हम लॉ के ऊपर हैं, हम लॉ की इंटरप्रिटेशन करने वाले हैं। यह तो भावना आ रही है कि they are above law and we are under law, इस भावना को खत्म करना होगा। इस तरह की भावना को खत्म करने के लिए हमें कोई न कोई समाधान निकालना है। इसके लिए हमें क्या करना है? यह भी सोचना होगा।

मैडम, मैं एक मिनट में खत्म कर रहा हूं। आप थोड़ा इस पर भी सोचें कि मेम्बर ऑफ पार्लियामेंट भी रिटायर होते हैं और जज भी रिटायर होते हैं। ...(**व्यवधान**)... मैडम, आप देखिए, आज जजों के पर्क्स क्या हैं? इवेन आफ्टर रिटायरमेंट उनकी जो पकर्स हैं, वह हम सोच भी नहीं सकते। ऐसी पर्क्स क्यों हैं? इसलिए कि वे इंडिपेंडेंट हैं, उनके अपने बजट हैं, वे अपने आप डिसाइड कर लेते हैं। वे यह भी नहीं चाहते कि प्राइम मिनिस्टर या नेता विपक्षी दल उस ओर झांक लें या देख लें कि उनके ये पर्क्स ठीक नहीं हैं। इवेन आफ्टर रिटायरमेंट उनको कोठी मिलेगी, कोई बात नहीं, उनको पर्सनल असिस्टेंट मिलेंगे, कोई बात नहीं, उनको विदेश यात्रा के लिए सुख-सुविधा मिलती हैं, स्टेनों मिलते हैं, ये किस बात के लिए मिलते हैं? में समझता हूं कि लाइफ में अगर कोई एक बार जज बन जाता है, तो वह सारी उम्र का जज होता है, उस पर कोई भी हस्तक्षेप नहीं कर सकता, उसके खिलाफ कोई भी कुछ नहीं कह सकता। आप उनकी छुट्टियां भी देखें, तो जो अंग्रेजों के जमाने से छुट्टियां मिलती थीं वहीं आज भी मिल रही हैं। हम 1947 से आजाद हुए हैं, लेकिन आज भी अंग्रेजों के समय में जज के जो चाल-चलन थे, उनकी सोच थी, उनकी जो भावना थी, उसी को वे आज भी अपना रहे हैं। मैं समझता हूं कि जब यह जुडिशियल कमीशन बनेगा, या उनके अपॉइंटमेंट की बात होगी, तो उनके पर्क्स पर, उनकी छुट्टियों पर भी चर्चा हो जाएगी कि उन्हें भी आम इंडियन की तरह ट्रीट करके सुविधा मिलें और व इंडिपेंडेंटली फैसला करें, जो उनकी ड्यूटी है।

इस शब्दों के साथ आपका धन्यवाद।

6.00 P.M.

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI RENUKA CHOWDHURY): Thank you, Batraji. Next speaker, Mr. H.K. Dua. I have to request you to keep it crisp and short because of the time constraint.

SHRI H.K. DUA (Nominated): Madam Vice-Chairperson, I thank you for giving me an opportunity to speak although I wish you had not minded the clock too much. Nevertheless, Madam, kachehri is the last hope of the people. When other institutions fail and often they fail, Parliament, Executive even media, the lower judiciary fail the common man; he goes to the kachehri with some hope. I am afraid, the court also has developed all the weaknesses which mark the decline of the other institutions. Three crore cases are pending in the courts in the lower judiciary, High Courts and the Supreme Court. These are not just cases. Actually, three crore families are affected, that means, nearly 12 crore people are affected because of delay in justice. There also must be crores of people waiting outside for justice who do not go to the courts simply because they are not expecting fast justice. Or, because it is also costly. They do not have resources even to seek justice. It is not only the cases but the quality of justice is also important. Lately, the people are feeling disappointed with the courts for the kind of quality of justice that has come out. I will cite just a few notable cases the Jessica Lal case, the Priyadarshini Mattoo case. They have disappointed the people. They were raked up only because the media protested.

I cannot understand how a BMW car becomes a truck as the trial proceeds. There can't be greater travesty of justice. Six people killed by a BMW car, and the culprits get away with very light punishment after the lawyers were able to prove that it was not a BMW car, it was a truck. I don't think these people or witnesses were suffering from some kind of optical illusion that they can't make out a difference between a car and a truck. But that is what has happened during the trial. In many cases, it is happening like that. Recently, a Supreme Court Chief Judge retires, simply passes orders on the eve of his retirement and a new Chief Justice takes over and reverses those orders. Now reversal often happens in the Courts, but not after such a short duration. But the remarks of the now Chief Justice reversing the predecessor's orders were interesting: we are aware of the circumstances in which those orders were passed. Now it is not the media reporting, it is the remark

[Shri H.K.Dua]

of a new Chief Justice on the orders passed by a Bench headed by the previous Chief Justice. Now, which orders should the people believe? This is the kind of quality of justice which shakes the faith of the people in the Court, which is the last court of appeal. As the Leader of Opposition was saying, well, there is a finality about what the Supreme Court decides and after that there is God who is the final authority. If the peoples' faith gets shaken in a major institution, a watchdog-like court, I am afraid, they will be disappointed with the entire system. Like other institutions, the judicial system needs reform, a serious reform from top to bottom, and the reform must start from the top. The Collegium system is where the Judiciary has acquired for itself the power to appoint judges, which is very rare in the world's judicial system. I still cannot understand and many cannot understand, as it has been pointed out in the House earlier, the vocabulary; it is not the semantic difference, there is a vast difference between concurrence and consultation. If consultation is interpreted by the Court, there is self-interest of the Judiciary that was involved. Certainly, the Judiciary was fed up with the Executive's appointment of the judges to the Court. But so far as the new Bill is concerned, I am glad the Law Minister has changed his view he had held 20 years ago. Now he is on the other side. But I am very happy he has developed second thoughts. And second thoughts are also a fundamental right of the Law Minister, like it is of all of us. Now, he has interpreted, correctly, that we need to evolve a system where the Executive can't interfere with the appointment of judges and get away, as well as the Judges don't appoint themselves. We cannot give the right to the Generals in the Army to appoint their own colleagues at the top. He has to be appointed by the Executive. Here is a system that is being evolved where a Judicial Appointments Commission is being set up for appointment of judges to the Supreme Court and the High Courts. There is the Executive, the Chief Justice, there are two eminent judges from outside who will be selected by the Prime Minister and the Leader of the Opposition, etc. Everybody here knows the provision in the Bill by now. This system can provide us more independent-minded judges. This is an opportunity which needs to be utilized for judicial reform, but the Law Minister's Constitution Amendment Bill, which I will support, has only one aspect of the reform i.e. appointment of judges which is very important. I hope the Courts will take steps to reform the working of the High Courts. The image of the High Courts is very, very bad in the States. The image of

the lower Judiciary where touts are roaming around is worse. They are ready to do anything you want them to do. Justice is often bought and sold by them. Reform of lower Judiciary is urgently needed. I wish the Law Minister undertakes these reforms fast. I will now draw the attention of the Law Minister and the House to another Bill. A few months ago, I had brought a Private Members' Constitution Amendment Bill, which the entire House supported from each side of the House, every Party supported and that was on the Removal provision of an errant judge. Even Shri Ram Jethmalani supported that Bill although he said he is going to oppose the Law Minister's present Bill on the appointment of judges. I am very thankful to him for supporting my Bill on the removal of corrupt judges. This House almost unanimously approved of my Motion to remove Justice Soumitra Sen of the Kolkata High Court from the Bench. And it was unanimous in supporting the motion for his removal. Before the Motion could go to the Lok Sabha, Justice Sen resigned. Now where does the impeachment or removal provision stand when any judge, who is sought to be impeached by one House frustrates the entire removal process and gets away simply by resigning? Justice P.D. Dhinakaran, who was waiting for being impeached, judged the mood of Parliament and he also resigned. Now, since there was a removal provision, the entire House supported my Bill and Mr. Sibal's predecessor had no option but to promise that the Government would bring an official Bill forward on the Removal provision. I wish the new Law Minister could tell us as to when he is going to live up to the governmental promise and bring a Bill where the impeachment power of the President is translated into action. Sir, I support the present Bill before the House irrespective of what he says. Thank you, Madam Vice Chairperson.

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI RENUKA CHOWDHURY): Now, Dr. Bharatkumar Raut.

श्री एम. वेंकेया नायडु: मैडम, 6 बज गये हैं।

उपसभाध्यक्ष (श्रीमती रेणुका चौधरी): बस हो गया। आप लोग जल्दी से संक्षेप में बोल दीजिए।

SHRI M. VENKAIAH NAIDU: Madam, the normal practice is that when we sit up to 6 o'clock and, beyond that, the sense of the House is taken. If you want to extend the time, then, I have no problem. But the House should agree to it. And that will be for this Bill only.

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI RENUKA CHOWDHURY): I would like to take the sense of the House. If everyone agrees, we will extend the time and finish this business today. Dr. Bharatkumar Raut, you may start now. But please remember that you have a limited time.

DR. BHARATKUMAR RAUT (Maharashtra): Madam, I do remember that I have a limited time. But I would like to remind you that all my predecessor speakers, who are the front-benchers, had exceeded their time. However, I will not take a minute more than what is required.

Madam, at the outset, let me welcome the Bill because it was long, long overdue. Ever since I was a college-going student, I have been hearing repeatedly that a Judicial Commission is supposed to come. But it never saw the light of day. I thank Shri Kapil Sibal that, finally, he could bring the Bill before this House. Madam, this Bill is very important because nowadays the picture is that there is a bout between judiciary and legislature, between judiciary and bureaucracy and between judiciary and judiciary. So, at some point, it should stop. Perhaps, this Bill relating to judicial appointments will be a step forward towards that. It has been said by the Leader of the Opposition, the hon. Minister and many other speakers that each institution has its duties as well as limitations. When the Executive crosses their limits, it is the Judiciary which controls and checks. When the Legislature crosses its limits, it is the Judiciary which controls them. But when the Judiciary itself crosses the limits, which, more often than not, they do, then, who is there to control them? There is no mechanism in our Indian system which can control Judiciary. If that is so, then, God save us because there will be a time when instead of democracy there will be the Judiciary which will be ruling the nation. And that is happening now. Judiciary is not only interpreting the law but it is also making the law and executing it as well. The recent Judgement about the Legislators being unseated, that is execution of law, which is what the Judiciary is doing. Anyway, I do not want to get into that.

Madam, I would like to raise certain moot questions and then I will conclude. One question is, if judiciary is an important function, then, why does the cream of legal talent not get into the judiciary? Why is it that big lawyers, eminent lawyers, successful lawyers and I would say, with a pinch of salt, honest lawyers, do not like to enter judiciary? It is because to be called Mr. Justice is definitely more prestigious

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 129

than to be called Mr. Counsel or Mr. Advocate. But they do not want to be judges because of financial remuneration. I know a couple of cases, a barrister in Maharshtra—who is no more, I don't want to name him—was so named as judge of Bombay High Court. Within a year-and-a-half, he resigned the post and went back to legal practice. In a Press Conference he said, he was an Advocate-General before that in Maharashtra. He said that the salary which he earned as judge was his daily earning as a law practitioner. Sir, if we are paying such meagre salaries to judges, then, how do you expect talent to come? Talent will not come. This is one aspect. If a judge is found guilty, not in his judgment, but in corrupt practices, what types of punishment do they undergo? Just now, Mr. Dua gave reference on impeachment cases. Nothing happened. Why did they reach the stage of impeachment? It is because they were near found to be guilty in the cases. Nothing happened to the resigned people. That was all. In Maharashtra, senior lawyers would remember that four senior judges of Mumbai High Court were found guilty of corrupt practices. The media was agog with stories. That time television was not there, but media was full of stories about those four judges. Out of the four judges, one retired during this period and three resigned their posts. Once they resigned, everything was covered up. Everything was covered up and there was no action taken against them. I would like to ask the Law Minister what prevents the law from taking action against the guilty judges. If a Minister resigns on the charges of corruption, still a case goes on. If an MP resigns from his seat, the case goes on. If a bureaucrat resigns from his post or retires from his post, still the case goes on. When a judge resigns from his position, why should not the case of corruption continue? In the Judicial Commission, if at all there is a Clause by which we say that a judge is also a human being, then, he is a citizen and he should also abide by the law of the land. If that does not happen, then, it is not going to keep the judiciary in order. A judge in Maharashtra who was instrumental in unseating a Chief Minister of Maharashtra took the job so seriously that on a rainy day he went to the slum areas when the Chief Minister had ordered clearance of slums. He went to slum areas with an umbrella in his hand. Photographs appeared in all newspapers and he stopped the Government action against the slum dwellers. What happened later? Two weeks later, there was a landslide and twenty people died in the same slum. Who was responsible for it? Is it the Government, the municipal authorities or the judge who prevented the slum clearance operation? Nothing happened to the judge! He was

[Dr. Bharatkumar Raut]

sitting quietly in his Malabar Hill residence. What happens to them? My last point, Madam is, stop giving the olive branch of post-retirement jobs to the judges because, as LoP has mentioned, that affects their in-service duties also. So, there could be an enactment by which you should say that a judge after retirement for five years should not take any Government, semi-Government assignment because anyway they go as consultant in private institutions, in private business houses. Beyond that, they want to go on to Commissions. Many retired judges, though they go on to various commissions right from Information Commissioner to whatever...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI RENUKA CHOWDHURY): Please conclude.

DR. BHARATKUMAR RAUT: I am completing, Madam.

In that case, I think, this Constitutional amendment is a must. I am happy that it has been brought in. Though it is too late, but it has come. I am happy about it. There is a Bill that also provides for 'dos' and 'donts' of the Commission.

My suggestion is: Let the Judicial Appointments Commission Bill go to the Standing Committee. The rest of the business we should pass today. Thank you.

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Madam, thank you; better late than never.

Sir, I wish to make two preliminary suggestions. If there is an assurance that the Constitution (Amendment) Bill as well as the subsidiary Bill will both be referred to a Select Committee of Parliament, I do not propose to address this House at all. But, I do not consider it suitable or proper that only the second Bill should be referred to a Select Committee. Both should be sent. And, I will give my reasons.

Sir, the second suggestion that I have to make is this. My main contention, which I am going to make, is that the Constitution (Amendment) Bill is wholly unconstitutional and, if passed, it will undoubtedly be set aside by the Supreme Court, because it interferes with a basic feature of the Constitution. Such amendments of the Constitution are outside the jurisdiction of this House. The amendment process prescribed by the Constitution requires 2/3rd majority and so on and so forth. That applies only to those amendments of the Constitution which do not touch what are called the basic features of the Constitution as understood in the

Kesavananda Bharati case. This Constitutional amendment, certainly, interferes with a basic feature of the Indian Constitution and it will not be sustained ever. But, if it is said that even if you pass it, it will not be brought into force until a Reference is made to the Supreme Court and the Supreme Court answers the question of the validity of this Constitution amendment in the affirmative. If that is done, I, again, need not speak. But, Sir, since I don't expect both these reasonable suggestions to be accepted, I intend to speak and speak my mind.

Sir, first of all,

AN HON. MEMBER: It is not 'Sir'; it is 'Madam.'

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI RENUKA CHOWDHURY): If you don't mind.

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: We address our female Judges as 'My Lord.'

DR. NAJMA A. HEPTULLA (Madhya Pradesh): Don't call her 'my lady.'

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: I could, with some justification; but, I won't.

Sir, at my age of ninety, I know that I am, today, living in the departure lounge of an airport waiting for the divine flight to be called.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: No, no. We want that divine flight be delayed, indefinitely.

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: It is lucky that the flight is delayed for sometime. But, I can assure this House that I have no political ambitions of any kind.

Kapil is my great friend and is one of the Ministers in the Government whose work as the Law Minister I keep supervising and I am happy the manner in which he conducts his Ministry. But, Sir, I must declare today that my conscience, understanding and my duty towards the people of this country, which I regard as my paramount obligation, do not permit me to submit to this kind of legislation. Both the Bills, according to me are evil. The evil, first of all, consists in the misleading Statement of Objects and Reasons. You ought to have said with complete honesty that what you are trying to demolish is the Collegium System, which seems to be the object, and which is apparent to anyone. Some of the persons who have spoken have spoken on the assumption that that is the purpose of this particular piece of legislation.

## [MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN in the Chair.]

Sir, the first point that I propose to make is that the 1993 judgment of Nine Judges is a judgment based upon the discovery of the basic feature of the Constitution, and upon devising a system to sustain that basic feature. Madam, I have myself appeared in that litigation and I claim that I had a tremendous contribution to make to the success of that judgment. In a sense, I claim to be the founder of the Collegium System. But that does not mean that I am an unmixed admirer of the Collegium System. The Collegium System has, doubtless, some faults. But the Collegium System came into existence on the basis of one main argument. That one main argument that we advance, and advance with great vigour and force, is that there is one article of the Constitution, article 50 of the Constitution, which is the shortest article in the Constitution, consisting of only one sentence. That article says that the Government shall strive to keep the Judiciary separate from the Executive.

Sir, we argued before the Supreme Court that this article does not mean that Judges and Ministers should not socially meet. This does not mean that they should live in separate towns, or that they should not live even in adjoining bungalows. The purpose of this article is to ensure that in the appointment of Judges, the Executive has no role to play, except the advisory role. In other words, the doctrine of primacy of the Executive in the appointment process was irksome to us because the whole nation of India has been the victim of the Judges appointed in the earlier system. I have been a refugee from my own country during the Emergency. Why was it? It was because four Supreme Court Judges-I am not talking of the fifth who earned the New York Times praise that the Indian nation will have to build a monument to his memory; I am talking of the other four who-disgraced the Judiciary, disgraced the Supreme Court and were parties to the destruction of Indian democracy and the demolition and the debasement of the whole Constitution of India. Sir, of which system were they the product? They were the product of that system which, in 1981, was ultimately supported by the Gupta Judgment but, after some time, there were people, intellectuals, who spoke up that this system would not work; the system requires change. Sir, the Indian democracy has been saved not by intellectuals; Indian democracy at its most crucial hour has been saved by the poor illiterates of this country.

"सितम के दौर में वे अहलेदिल ही काम आए, जबां पे नाज था जिनको, वे बेजुबां निकले"

That is the tragedy of our country.

That is the tragedy of our country. Sir, the intellectuals of this country have continuously failed, and I regret to say that they are failing even today.

Sir, when ultimately the realization dawned on the Bar of this country, it is the Bar of this country, which went to the Supreme Court and said that the present system must go. The present system is a system in which the Executive has the greatest influence in the appointment process. It has the primacy, said the 1981 judgement. And we said; please discover the basic feature of India's Constitution, according to the Keshvanand Bharti Case. The nine judges sat; they heard arguments, and that I am proud of the fact that I made that argument that the separation of the Judiciary from the Executive means under the 50th Article of the Constitution that the Judiciary, under no circumstances, depends for its appointment on the will and the prerogative and the primacy of the Executive. The Supreme Court upheld it, and overruled the original judgment of 1981, the Gupta Judgment, and the nine judges delivered a judgment, which I want this House to know that the Collegium may be the creation of the Judiciary, it is the creation of judicial interpretation, again, of the Constitution, but whatever be the faults of the Collegium, the Collegium today represents some system which is consistent with the basic features of the Constitution, namely, the supremacy of the Judiciary and its freedom from any influence of the Executive in the appointment process.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, please conclude.

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: What, Sir? ...(Interruptions)... Sir, I am very sorry that this is not done. Everybody has exceeded his time, and I am the lone speaker in this House. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI T. K. RANGARAJAN: Sir, allow him to continue. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI KIRANMAY NANDA (Uttar Pradesh): Sir, he should be allowed. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Sir, I am speaking for those who are not irrevocably committed to voting for this amendment. There are some people who

[Shri Ram Jethmalani]

must have kept their minds still open. I am appealing to those minds today only. Those who are irrevocably committed are committed to the destruction of Indian democracy.

Sir, the key passage in the judgment of the Supreme Court of 1993 is the passage which I wish to share with the House. The question of primacy to the opinion of the Chief Justice of India in the matters of appointment and transfer and their justifiability should be considered in the context of the independence of the Judiciary as a part of the basic structure of the Constitution to secure the rule of law essential for preservation of the democratic system. The broad scheme of separation of powers adopted in the Constitution together with the Directive Principles of separation of the Judiciary from the Executive, even at the lowest strata, provides some insight to the true meaning of the relevant provisions of the Constitution relating to the composition of the Judiciary. The construction of these provisions must accord with these fundamental concepts in the Constitutional scheme to preserve the vitality and promote the growth of the essential of retaining the Constitution as a vibrant organism".

Sir, the Constitution cannot survive, human freedom cannot survive, citizens' human rights cannot survive, no development can take place unless, of course, the judges are independent first of the Executive power because don't forget that every citizen has a grievance against the corrupt members of the Executive, or, errant bureaucracy, public officers misusing power, indulging in corruption, making wrong and illegal orders. The citizen goes to the court, knocks the door of the court and says, "Please give me a mandamus against this corrupt official, against this corrupt Minister". And, Sir, the judges are supposed to decide upon the claims of the poorest who go to the Supreme Court... ...(Interruptions)... ...and to the judges. It may be, and I am conscious... ...(Interruptions)... Sir, this is not a laughing matter. Please listen, and then decide for yourself. ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please. ...(Interruptions).. Order, please. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Sir, first of all, let me say this now that the whole judgement of nine Judges is based upon this principle that in the appointment

process, the Executive can never have primacy. This is principle number one. It has now become the basic feature of India's Constitution. My grievance today against this Constitution (Amendment) Bill is that you are slowly, slowly now creating a new method by which ultimately you will revert to the system which existed prior to 1993. In other words, the same system would produce those four Judges who destroyed the Indian democracy, human rights and freedom. Sir, kindly see, why. The Constitution Amendment looks very innocent. All that it says is that we shall have a new article 124(a) in the Constitution and article 124(a) merely says that there shall be a Judicial Appointments Commission. It lays down that the Judicial Appointments Commission will have these functions. It leaves at that. But, kindly see that after the first sentence, every thing is left to a Parliamentary will. After saying that there will be a Judicial Appointments Commission, every thing will be left, according to the second part of 124(a), to a parliamentary legislation which is capable of being removed if the ruling party has one Member majority in both Houses of Parliament. Not only that, I understand that Parliament is not likely to do it, but it can do it and by a majority of one in both Houses, you can demolish the whole thing and substitute it with a Judicial Commission which will consist of only the Law Minister.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You have taken double the time. Please finish.

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: So, Sir, my first objection is that this Bill is a Bill which is intended to deal with the basic structure of the Constitution and, therefore, this Bill is void. (Time-bell rings) Second, if a Constitutional Amendment is not good enough for this purpose, surely, an ordinary piece of legislation cannot do it, which ordinary piece of legislation can be removed only by a majority of one in each House. It can be removed like the 30th July Food Security Ordinance and you can pass an Ordinance on that day and say that the whole Act is repealed and now the system will be that Judges will be appointed for the next six months by only the Law Minister of India. If there was Mr. Kapil Sibal, ...(Interruptions)... If Mr. Kapil Sibal becomes the Law Minister for ever, Sir, I will allow this Bill to go. (Time-bell rings) But I am not prepared to accept it for the future Law Ministers. ...(Interruptions)... Sir, let me take two more minutes and tell all those Members that this Bill is not intended to ensure the judicial character. This Bill has nothing to do with the improvement of the judicial character. So long as the Judges are also human, there will be some Judges who will go wrong, who may go wrong. But a great Bar can

## [Shri Ram Jethmalani]

control them. Let me give you one illustration in my own life. Sir, having appeared in a case in the Supreme Court, a judgement was delivered—I do not wish to name the Judges— which I could not sleep with. I said, my God, how can two Judges of the Supreme Court say so? One of the decisions of that Court was that police can beat up a person to get the truth out of him which is an offence under the Indian Penal Code. I said that it may be the Supreme Court but I will make all sacrifice, I am prepared to face the law of contempt, but this must be exposed. I wrote an article in which I said that these two Judges deserve to be impeached for intellectual deficiency.

And, I sent that article first to those two Judges in the hope that they will take some contempt action against me. But they realized that what Jethmalani was saying was right. They kept quiet. (Time-bell rings) I say ...(Interruptions)... a copy of the judgement to every Judge of the Supreme Court, including the Chief Justice. Nothing happened. ...(Interruptions)... No action was taken. ...(Interruptions)... Then, I published it in the Asian Age, but no action was taken. That is the kind of intellectual that is required in this country to speak the truth. And, the Bill, which you want to refer to the Select Committee, which you are willing to, is a thoroughly useless ...(Interruptions)... A simple Bill passed by the Parliament can never take away ...(Interruptions)... the crux of the Constitution, the core of the Constitution.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Okay. Thank you. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Sir, I hope, people will avoid this kind of a tragedy in the life of this country. You are today digging the grave of the Constitution of India and the freedom of this country. ...(Interruptions)... That's all I wished to say. ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Thank you very much. Now, the hon. Minister.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, I, first of all, want to extend my gratitude to all the distinguished Members of this House who have participated in this debate, especially the Leader of the Opposition who has, in principle, fully supported both, the contents of the Constitutional Amendment and its purpose. Very distinguished Members have made very eloquent speeches in this House and because this discussion has been going on for too long, I will cut short my

comments and would just make some clarifications to set the record straight. I also thank Mr. Jethmalani for his impassioned plea, this evening. I know that he was also one of our counsel at that time when we argued this matter. The real problem with that Advocates on Record Association's judgement is that the appointment process of a Judge is considered to be a part of the basic feature of the Constitution because it impacts on the independence of the Judiciary. Now, the appointment of a Judge is an Executive act. The independence of the Judiciary applies only to judicial acts. And, this is the heart of the problem. The very assumption of that judgement was wrong because the appointment process has nothing to do with what the Judges say in the course of their judgements. Judges must have complete independence when they are deciding a particular case. But Judges cannot, invoking the principle of independence of the Judiciary, decide who should be appointed and who should not be appointed as a Judge. That's the problem with the case. And, that answers what my very senior and good friend Jethmalani mentioned just now. Secondly, a lot of debates have gone on in this House on the power of Judicial Review. This is a very limited Constitutional Amendment. It has nothing to do with the Judicial Review. What are we doing? There was a process under the Constitution, which stood the time of day till 1993. The power was with the Executive. That, through a process of judicial interpretation, has been changed. The power has been taken away from the Executive. And, the Judiciary, through a process of interpretation, has said, "We have the power to appoint Judges". All we are doing today is to set the clock right. We don't want to go back to the prior 1993 position. We want a participative process with the Judiciary to make sure that the right kind of people are appointed to the higher Judiciary of this country, which is the Supreme Court of India and the High Courts. That's all. What powers the Judiciary has in terms of the Judicial Review is not our concern today. We will discuss that on another day whether the extent of power that they have exercised is beyond the scope of their constitutional rights. That's not the debate today. We will have that debate on some other day. But, at the moment, we are only talking about an appointment process. So, I don't see why we have to talk about all these other things. Secondly, my very learned colleague, Mr. Jaitley, mentioned that the Judiciary has started asserting itself because of the Collegium system. And, that happened ever since 1993. We have seen these acts of assertion of the Judiciary over a period of time. They have expanded their right of judicial review because of the 1993

[Shri Kapil Sibal]

judgement. Well, quite frankly, the greatest act of assertion was the 1993 judgement itself where they re-wrote the Constitution. There was no collegium system at that time. The collegium system came much later. The reason why they asserted themselves in 1993 was because they believed that the process of how judges were being appointed by the Executive was not consistent with the highest standards of appointment that were expected of the Executive when they made those appointments. The Leader of the Opposition mentioned that from 1950, through the 60's the system worked very well. The system worked very well even though the power was with the Executive. So, there was nothing wrong with the provisions of the Constitution; there was something wrong with us that having that power with the Executive, we did not exercise that power in the manner and in accordance with the standards expected of us, maybe, after the 70's and in the 80's. Whatever system you put in place today will also be subject to the same frailties. Why? Because it will all depend on the men who exercise that power. The Constitution worked well till the late 60's. Why? Because the men who exercised that power exercised it with responsibility. It did not work in the 70's and 80's, because the men who exercised power did not act responsibly. It did not work after 1993, because those members of the Judiciary who exercised that power have not exercised it responsibly. And, it may not work after 2013 even if we have the change in the Constitution, because we may still have men in power who may still not exercise this power responsibly. The problem, Sir, is not with the Constitution, the problem is with us. We need to make sure that the right people are in the right place to do the right thing. ...(Interruptions).. That is the heart of the problem, Sir. It is not a question of us changing our wisdom over the years. It is a question of us realising, as we evolve, that we need to improve the system. This is yet one attempt in the hope that the system will improve. I cannot offer a dream or a panacea but I can only tell you that we in Government intend to improve the system and I think this House must speak in one voice. The message to the outside world will be that we are here not to interfere in the independence of the Judiciary, but to participate with the Judiciary to have a better tomorrow. ...(Interruptions).. Therefore, I beseech the Leader of the Opposition it is not the time to seek an adjournment here. You criticize the courts for seeking adjournments from time to time and for trials not taking place for years. We

have, for 20 long years, tried to correct the system. At the end of the 20 years, please don't seek another adjournment. Because you will be then doing exactly what you castigate courts do on a daily basis. There has been some talk about a fear that we are trying to push this Constitutional Amendment and there will be a legislative hiatus because the other Bill will not be passed. I make a firm assurance in this House that once the Constitutional (Amendment) Bill is passed in this House and in the Lok Sabha, under Article 368 of the Constitution, it has to go to all the States for their consent. Unless half the States consent, it cannot become a law. Then, it has to be sent by the Government, after half the States' consent, to the President of India for his assent. I make an assurance on the floor of this House that I will not send those papers to the President of India till the composition of the Judicial Commission and the Bill relating to that is passed. ...(Interruptions).. Therefore, there is no question of any hiatus and there is no issue that can arise in that regard. I do believe that this will happen much earlier. Why? Because ratification by the States is going to take six months or eight months.

By that time, as you have indicated already that the Standing Committee shall give its Report within one month, the House will meet in the Winter Session and we will pass that Bill and both will be done coterminus.

# SHRI M. VENKAIAH NAIDU: Then, what is the hurry?

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: There is no hurry at all. We don't want to waste another six months, and things may change in between. History has a way of changing that neither you nor I can predict. As the Leader of the Opposition mentioned, 'who knows, there may be a dissolution of Parliament.' Well, they have been hoping for that for the last five years, and I wish him well, because I want him to continue to be the Leader of the Opposition, at least, till the end of 2013, and even afterwards. Why not?

Sir, the point that I am making is, the time has come for us to act collectively. We have seen the sense of the House. We have actually noticed that the will of the House is to actually get this done and send a message to the outside world. I want those on the other side to be equal participants so that the message outside is, 'we are together and we shall win.' Thank you very much.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I shall now ...

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: Sir, as we had said in the course of the debate, my Party has always been fully supportive of the idea of a National Judicial Commission and along with some of the Left parties, we have been in the forefront for the last two decades advocating it. While being fully committed to it, we do believe that this is a Bill of extraordinary importance. We are switching over a system, and when we switch over from one system to the other, it is extremely important that all stakeholders also participate in the parliamentary process. Now that participation of the stakeholders is a well-established mechanism of Standing Committees. In Standing Committees, you will have Bar Associations, Bar Councils, former Judges, litigants, everybody heard. We may exactly come to the same conclusion; we may come to some different conclusion. We may come to some improvement. We may even go to the extent of accepting a suggestion which has been only made by one solitary Member, Mr. Jethmalani, that the composition itself should be reflected in the Constitution, and not by an ordinary legislation. Now, these are all options which are open to a Standing Committee when they hear all stakeholders because to hear people and then improve is a part of a parliamentary process. And all that we are suggesting is, you have a Standing Committee, a Member of the Ruling Party chairs it, please have the Standing Committee get into motion. Today, you don't have a Standing Committee Report on the Constitution Amendment; you don't have a Standing Committee Report on the Bill itself. The two are intrinsically linked. Speaking for myself, I have repeatedly said, I am in favour of both. My Party, with or without some amendments, may be in favour of both. But why are we denying ourselves the privilege of a procedure which Parliament has set up for the last two decades where all stakeholders are to be heard? The Minister made this entire argument. The Minister says, 'I give you a personal assurance that this will not be sent to the President.' Now, kindly appreciate, we are today in September, 2013. The Standing Committee ordinarily should discuss it and come up with the Report before the Winter Session. Since he is very confident that we will continue to be in the Opposition and he will continue to be in power, God bless him, I feel sorry for this country if that were to continue to happen. But that apart, assuming the Winter Session doesn't clear the Bill, we go by his scheme; we pass the Constitution Amendment. The Bill is not ready by the Winter Session and thereafter we go into an election.

Let Mr. Sibal not be so sure that he will still be the Law Minister, that this

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 141

assurance will hold valid for future parliaments. You will then have a situation, and I am reaffirming it without fear of any serious contradiction, where you would have amended the Constitution of India. The Constitution of India says, 'in consultation with the Chief Justice of India'. We would have taken away that power, but not created the alternative mechanism of a commission which is to be created by a Legislature. As a responsible body, Parliament should not legislate in a manner which is capable of creating a possible constitutional hiatus, where you repeal the existing body and you don't create the alternative set-up. All we are saying is, the requirement of a proper and effective legislation is to do it simultaneously. Do it simultaneously; do it in November. You have two months for the Standing Committee to function. So, do it simultaneously. As far as we are concerned, we are going to cooperate in the passage of both. You are a neo-convert to this idea; we have been traditional supporters of this idea. And, therefore, whatever suggestions come, even if they come from solitary exceptions, let the Standing Committee consider them. Why must the Government say that today is the day when I must take away this power? We are committed to this whole concept of a National Judicial Commission. We are saying so. So, the Minister's words, "take my assurance" even though State Assemblies will clear it, even though Parliament will clear it, the Executive withholds the consent of Parliament. Sir, constitutional amendments are not dealt with in this manner. Therefore, my respectful request once again would be—to use his words, I would be seech him, since he has be seeched us—do both of these simultaneously. That would be responsible constitutional conduct by this House. Don't do it in a piecemeal manner, which is capable of creating a constitutional hiatus. Maybe, the Standing Committee come to a conclusion that Mr. Jethmalani's suggestion that if you have to make an amendment, with or without alteration in the character of the collegium, put the collegium itself and its composition in the Constitution, is correct; Members may feel it that way. Why should we deprive ourselves of that great opportunity?

Therefore, we are not saying, wait till the cows come home. You have to wait only till the next Session, and I am sure, with your level of confidence, you will be here till the next Session of Parliament to make this amendment.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Sir, I thank the Leader of the Opposition for his intervention and I would like to clarify some of the points that he has raised.

Let us deal with the last point first. Let us assume for a moment that we pass

[Shri Kapil Sibal]

this Bill, it is ratified by the States and the other Bill does not get passed. That is the scenario that you painted before us. Well, as you know, after the constitutional amendment is ratified by the States, it has to come back to the Government. The Government has to send it to the President for his assent. It does not automatically become law. I would like to read article 368 of the Constitution. Article 368 of the Constitution is quite clear on this and there should be no misgivings. It says, "The amendment shall also require to be ratified by the legislatures of not less than one-half of the States by Resolution to that effect passed by those legislatures before the bill-making provision for such amendment is presented to the President for assent."

That presentation has to be done by us. And I am giving an assurance, not as the Law Minister, but as the Government. My assurance is that of the Government; it is the Government's assurance, that that Bill will not be presented till the other Bill is passed.

श्री भगत सिंह कोश्यारी (उत्तराखंड): सर, हम लॉयर नहीं हैं .....(व्यवधान)

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Just one second....(Interruptions) Please, do not interfere. I did not interfere. ...(Interruptions)...

श्री उपसभापति: कोश्यारी जी, प्लीज आप बैठिए। .....(व्यवधान)

श्री भगत सिंह कोश्यारी: मैं पार्लियामेंटेरियन हूं .....(व्यवधान)

**श्री उपसभापति**: कोश्यारी जी, आप बैठिए। .....(व्यवधान) आप बैठिए। .....(व्यवधान) Let the Minister finish.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Therefore, with the greatest respect to the hon. Leader of the Opposition, there will be no constitutional hiatus. Even the President is aware of the Constitutional provision. The President is quite experienced, as far as the Constitution is concerned. There is no way that any assent can be given to this Bill till the composition of the Judicial Commission is taken forward. So, this particular objection of his is a red herring because he has always said that this Bill should be passed in the terms that he wanted it to pass. We have had a discussion amongst the political parties. This has been placed before all political parties. No such suggestion ever came. It was agreed in the Business.....

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 143

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Sir, I conveyed to the Minister this morning...

SHIR KAPIL SIBAL: No, this morning, I know because...

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Please, the Minister should not make a statement which is wrong. I have conveyed to him.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: In the Business Advisory Committee, we all were there. You said that the Constitutional Amendment will be passed and the other should be...(*Interruptions*)... This is all that I have to say.

SHRI M. VENKAIAH NAIDU: There seems to be a hidden agenda. Otherwise, there is no meaning of this rushing through. We cannot be a party to this. We don't want to be a party to this. ...(Interruptions)... The message will go that the politicians are rushing through. That message is going and it is not acceptable to us at all. There seems to be some hidden agenda. We cannot be a party to this hidden agenda.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Let me make one point clear.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Sir, we are walking out.

(At this stage, some hon. Members left the Chamber)

SHRI DEVENDER GOUD T. (Andhra Pradesh): Sir, we are also walking out because we do not want to be a party to this. Our Party, TDP, clearly states that this should be sent to the Standing Committee.

(At this stage, some hon. Members left the Chamber)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, please...(*Interruptions*)... When they walk out, don't say anything. Walking out is an instrument of Opposition that they are using. Don't create problem. Now, please, Mr. Ram Jethmalani, don't stand in the passage.

Is the Minister of Parliamentary Affairs going to say anything? However, I would like to make the position clear that if a Bill is to be sent to the Standing Committee, it is the prerogative of the Chairman. It is the Chairman who has to take that decision. Now, the Chairman has not referred it to the Standing Committee because in the BAC, there was a discussion and on the basis of that consensus in

#### 7.00 P.M.

the BAC, the Chairman did not refer it to the Standing Committee. Now, the Bill has already been moved here. Since it is already moved, unless the mover withdraws it, we have to dispose of the Bill. So, I am proceeding with this.

#### SHRI RAM JETHMALANI:\*

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, you can't say that. That is expunged. That is an indirect aspersion on the Chairman. So, that is expunged.

I shall now put the motion for consideration of the House. The question is:

That the Bill further to amend the Constitution of India, be taken into consideration.

The House divided.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Ayes: 132

Noes: 0

Ayes - 132

Abraham, Shri Joy

Achuthan, Shri M. P.

Adeeb, Shri Mohammed

Agrawal, Shri Naresh

Ali, Shri Sabir

Anand Sharma, Shri

Ansari, Shri Ali Anwar

Antony, Shri A. K.

Arjunan, Shri K. R.

<sup>\*</sup> Expugned as ordered by the Chair.

Ashk Ali Tak, Shri

Ashwani Kumar, Shri

Azad, Shri Ghulam Nabi

Bachchan, Smt. Jaya

Baghel, Prof. S. P. Singh

Baidya, Smt. Jharna Das

Baishya, Shri Birendra Prasad

Balaganga, Shri N.

Balagopal, Shri K. N.

Balmuchu, Dr. Pradeep Kumar

Bandyopadhyay, Shri D.

Batra, Shri Shadi Lal

Behera, Shri Shashi Bhusan

Bhattacharya, Shri P.

Bora, Shri Pankaj

Budania, Shri Narendra

Chatterjee, Shri Prasanta

Chaturvedi, Shri Satyavrat

Chiranjeevi, Dr. K.

Chowdhury, Smt. Renuka

Daimary, Shri Biswajit

Dalwai, Shri Husain

Darda, Shri Vijay Jawaharlal

Deora, Shri Murli

Dua, Shri H. K.

Dwivedi, Shri Janardan

Fernandes, Shri Oscar

Ghosh, Shri Kunal Kumar

Gill, Dr. M. S.

Gupta, Shri Prem Chand

Gupta, Shri Vivek

Haque, Shri Md. Nadimul

Hashmi, Shri Parvez

Jain, Shri Ishwarlal Shankarlal

Jinnah, Shri A.A.

Jugul Kishore, Shri

Kalita, Shri Bhubaneswar

Kanimozhi, Smt.

Kannan, Shri P.

Karan Singh, Dr.

Karimpuri, Shri Avtar Singh

Kashyap, Shri Narendra Kumar

Keishing, Shri Rishang

Khabri, Shri Brijlal

Khan, Shri Mohd. Ali

Khuntia, Shri Rama Chandra

Kidwai, Smt. Mohsina

Kshatriya, Prof. Alka Balram

Kujur, Shri Santiuse

Mahendra Prasad, Dr.

Mahra, Shri Mahendra Singh

Maitreyan, Dr. V.

Masood, Shri Rasheed

Miri, Prof. Mrinal

Misra, Shri Satish

Mukut Mithi, Shri

Mungekar, Dr. Bhalchandra

Naik, Shri Shantaram

Nanda, Shri Kiranmay

Nandi Yellaiah, Shri

Narayanan, Shri C. P.

Natarajan, Smt. Jayanthi

Natchiappan, Dr. E. M. Sudarsana

O Brien, Shri Derek

Pande, Shri Avinash

Parasaran, Shri K.

Parida, Shri Baishnab

Patel, Shri Ahmed

Pathak, Shri Brajesh

Patil, Smt. Rajani

Raja, Shri D.

Bills

Rajeeve, Shri P.

Ram Prakash, Dr.

Ramalingam, Dr. K.P.

Rangarajan, Shri T.K.

Rao, Dr. K.V.P. Ramachandra

Rao, Shri V. Hanumantha

Rapolu, Shri Ananda Bhaskar

Rashtrapal, Shri Praveen

Rathinavel, Shri T.

Ratna Bai, Smt. T.

Reddy, Dr. T. Subbarami

Reddy, Shri Palvai Govardhan

Roy, Shri Mukul

Roy, Shri Sukhendu Sekhar

Sadho, Dr. Vijaylaxmi

Sahani, Dr. Anil Kumar

Sahu, Shri Dhiraj Prasad

Saini, Shri Rajpal Singh

Saleem, Chaudhary Munavver

Sanjiv Kumar, Shri

Seelam, Shri Jesudasu

Seema, Dr. T.N.

Selvaganapathi, Shri T.M.

Sen, Shri Tapan Kumar

Sharma, Shri Satish

Shukla, Shri Rajeev

Singh, Dr. Kanwar Deep

Singh, Shri Amar

Singh, Shri Arvind Kumar

Singh, Shri Bashistha Narain

Singh, Shri Birender

Singh, Shri Ishwar

Singh, Shri N. K.

Singh, Shri Ramchandra Prasad

Singh, Shri Veer

Singhvi, Dr. Abhishek Manu

Soni, Smt. Ambika

Soz, Prof. Saif-ud-Din

Stanley, Smt. Vasanthi

Syiem, Smt. Wansuk

Tariq Anwar, Shri

Thakur, Dr. C.P.

Thangavelu, Shri S.

Tiwari, Shri Alok

Trivedi, Dr. Yogendra P.

Tyagi, Shri K.C.

Vasan, Shri G.K.

Vora, Shri Motilal

Waghmare, Dr. Janardhan

Yadav, Prof. Ram Gopal

Yadav, Shri Darshan Singh

Yadav, Shri Ram Kripal

#### Noes - 0

The motion was carried by a majority of the total membership of the House and by a majority of not less than two-thirds of the Members present and voting

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, I shall take up clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill. The question is:

That clause 2 stand part of the Bill.

The House divided

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Ayes: 132

Noes: 0

Ayes - 132

Abraham, Shri Joy

Achuthan, Shri M.P.

Adeeb, Shri Mohammed

Agrawal, Shri Naresh

Ali, Shri Sabir

Anand Sharma, Shri

Ansari, Shri Ali Anwar

Antony, Shri A.K.

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 151

Arjunan, Shri K. R.

Ashk Ali Tak, Shri

Ashwani Kumar, Shri

Azad, Shri Ghulam Nabi

Bachchan, Smt. Jaya

Baghel, Prof. S. P. Singh

Baidya, Smt. Jharna Das

Baishya, Shri Birendra Prasad

Balaganga, Shri N.

Balagopal, Shri K.N.

Balmuchu, Dr. Pradeep Kumar

Bandyopadhyay, Shri D.

Batra, Shri Shadi Lal

Behera, Shri Shashi Bhusan

Bhattacharya, Shri P.

Bora, Shri Pankaj

Budania, Shri Narendra

Chatterjee, Shri Prasanta

Chaturvedi, Shri Satyavrat

Chiranjeevi, Dr. K.

Chowdhury, Smt. Renuka

Daimary, Shri Biswajit

Dalwai, Shri Husain

Darda, Shri Vijay Jawaharlal

Deora, Shri Murli

Dua, Shri H.K.

Dwivedi, Shri Janardan

Fernandes, Shri Oscar

Ghosh, Shri Kunal Kumar

Gill, Dr. M.S.

Gupta, Shri Prem Chand

Gupta, Shri Vivek

Haque, Shri Md. Nadimul

Hashmi, Shri Parvez

Jain, Shri Ishwarlal Shankarlal

Jinnah, Shri A.A.

Jugul Kishore, Shri

Kalita, Shri Bhubaneswar

Kanimozhi, Smt.

Kannan, Shri P.

Karan Singh, Dr.

Karimpuri, Shri Avtar Singh

Kashyap, Shri Narendra Kumar

Keishing, Shri Rishang

Khabri, Shri Brijlal

Khan, Shri Mohd. Ali

Khuntia, Shri Rama Chandra

Kidwai, Smt. Mohsina

Kshatriya, Prof. Alka Balram

Kujur, Shri Santiuse

Mahendra Prasad, Dr.

Mahra, Shri Mahendra Singh

Maitreyan, Dr. V.

Masood, Shri Rasheed

Miri, Prof. Mrinal

Misra, Shri Satish

Mukut Mithi, Shri

Mungekar, Dr. Bhalchandra

Naik, Shri Shantaram

Nanda, Shri Kiranmay

Nandi Yellaiah, Shri

Narayanan, Shri C.P.

Natarajan, Smt. Jayanthi

Natchiappan, Dr. E.M. Sudarsana

O Brien, Shri Derek

Pande, Shri Avinash

Parasaran, Shri K.

Parida, Shri Baishnab

Patel, Shri Ahmed

Pathak, Shri Brajesh

Patil, Smt. Rajani

Raja, Shri D.

Rajeeve, Shri P.

Ram Prakash, Dr.

Ramalingam, Dr. K.P.

Rangarajan, Shri T.K.

Rao, Dr. K.V.P. Ramachandra

Rao, Shri V. Hanumantha

Rapolu, Shri Ananda Bhaskar

Rashtrapal, Shri Praveen

Rathinavel, Shri T.

Ratna Bai, Smt. T.

Reddy, Dr. T. Subbarami

Reddy, Shri Palvai Govardhan

Roy, Shri Mukul

Roy, Shri Sukhendu Sekhar

Sadho, Dr. Vijaylaxmi

Sahani, Dr. Anil Kumar

Sahu, Shri Dhiraj Prasad

Saini, Shri Rajpal Singh

Saleem, Chaudhary Munavver

Sanjiv Kumar, Shri

Seelam, Shri Jesudasu

Seema, Dr. T.N.

Selvaganapathi, Shri T.M.

Sen, Shri Tapan Kumar

Sharma, Shri Satish

Shukla, Shri Rajeev

Singh, Dr. Kanwar Deep

Singh, Shri Amar

Singh, Shri Arvind Kumar

Singh, Shri Bashistha Narain

Singh, Shri Birender

Singh, Shri Ishwar

Singh, Shri N. K.

Singh, Shri Ramchandra Prasad

Singh, Shri Veer

Singhvi, Dr. Abhishek Manu

Soni, Smt. Ambika

Soz, Prof. Saif-ud-Din

Stanley, Smt. Vasanthi

Syiem, Smt. Wansuk

Tariq Anwar, Shri

Thakur, Dr. C.P.

Thangavelu, Shri S.

Tiwari, Shri Alok

Trivedi, Dr. Yogendra P.

Tyagi, Shri K.C.

Vasan, Shri G.K.

Vora, Shri Motilal

Waghmare, Dr. Janardhan

Yadav, Prof. Ram Gopal

Yadav, Shri Darshan Singh

Yadav, Shri Ram Kripal

#### Noes - 0

The motion was carried by a majority of the total membership of the House and by a majority of not less than two-thirds of the Members present and voting.

Clause 2 was added to the Bill.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, I shall take up Clause 3. In Clause 3, there is one Amendment (No. 1) by Shri K.N. Balagopal. Do you want to move the Amendment?

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: Sir, I want to say one thing. While making the Judicial Appointments Commission, there should be specific provision about the criteria for selection. Some guidelines also should be there. I am saying that the manner and guidelines of selection should be there in the Judicial Appointments Commission Bill. And, since this is the enabling Act, it should be here. Otherwise, rule-making is the prerogative of the Executive. Executive will decide that these are the qualifications for appointment of judges.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Okay, okay. The Minister can react. He understood. ..(*Interruptions*)..

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: And tomorrow with the rules they can manage. So, it should be assured through the Bill itself. That is my point, Sir.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Through you, Sir, I want to tell the distinguished Member of the House that that is already provided for in the Bill. In fact, the regulations in the Bill suggest the procedure for short listing candidates, the manner

in which the appointments are to take place; the short listing of those candidates will all be set up in the regulations and the regulations are going to be placed in Parliament. So, these are not rules. The regulations will be placed in the Parliament. Then only will the procedure move further.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: So, Mr. Balagopal, are you moving the amendment?

SHRI K.N. BALAGOPAL: No, Sir, I am not moving.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I shall now put clause 3 to vote. The question is:

That clause 3 stand part of the Bill.

The House divided

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Ayes: 132

Noes: 0

Ayes - 132

Abraham, Shri Joy

Achuthan, Shri M.P.

Adeeb, Shri Mohammed

Agrawal, Shri Naresh

Ali, Shri Sabir

Anand Sharma, Shri

Ansari, Shri Ali Anwar

Antony, Shri A.K.

Arjunan, Shri K. R.

Ashk Ali Tak, Shri

Ashwani Kumar, Shri

Azad, Shri Ghulam Nabi

Bachchan, Smt. Jaya

Baghel, Prof. S.P. Singh

Baidya, Smt. Jharna Das

Baishya, Shri Birendra Prasad

Balaganga, Shri N.

Balagopal, Shri K.N.

Balmuchu, Dr. Pradeep Kumar

Bandyopadhyay, Shri D.

Batra, Shri Shadi Lal

Behera, Shri Shashi Bhusan

Bhattacharya, Shri P.

Bora, Shri Pankaj

Budania, Shri Narendra

Chatterjee, Shri Prasanta

Chaturvedi, Shri Satyavrat

Chiranjeevi, Dr. K.

Chowdhury, Smt. Renuka

Daimary, Shri Biswajit

Dalwai, Shri Husain

Darda, Shri Vijay Jawaharlal

Deora, Shri Murli

Dua, Shri H.K.

Dwivedi, Shri Janardan

Fernandes, Shri Oscar

Ghosh, Shri Kunal Kumar

Gill, Dr. M.S.

Gupta, Shri Prem Chand

Gupta, Shri Vivek

Haque, Shri Md. Nadimul

Hashmi, Shri Parvez

Jain, Shri Ishwarlal Shankarlal

Jinnah, Shri A. A.

Jugul Kishore, Shri

Kalita, Shri Bhubaneswar

Kanimozhi, Smt.

Kannan, Shri P.

Karan Singh, Dr.

Karimpuri, Shri Avtar Singh

Kashyap, Shri Narendra Kumar

Keishing, Shri Rishang

Khabri, Shri Brijlal

Khan, Shri Mohd. Ali

Khuntia, Shri Rama Chandra

Kidwai, Smt. Mohsina

Kshatriya, Prof. Alka Balram

Kujur, Shri Santiuse

Mahendra Prasad, Dr.

Mahra, Shri Mahendra Singh

Maitreyan, Dr. V.

Masood, Shri Rasheed

Miri, Prof. Mrinal

Misra, Shri Satish

Mukut Mithi, Shri

Mungekar, Dr. Bhalchandra

Naik, Shri Shantaram

Nanda, Shri Kiranmay

Nandi Yellaiah, Shri

Narayanan, Shri C.P.

Natarajan, Smt. Jayanthi

Natchiappan, Dr. E.M. Sudarsana

O Brien, Shri Derek

Pande, Shri Avinash

Parasaran, Shri K.

Parida, Shri Baishnab

Patel, Shri Ahmed

Pathak, Shri Brajesh

Patil, Smt. Rajani

Raja, Shri D.

Rajeeve, Shri P.

Ram Prakash, Dr.

Ramalingam, Dr. K.P.

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 161

Rangarajan, Shri T.K.

Rao, Dr. K.V.P. Ramachandra

Rao, Shri V. Hanumantha

Rapolu, Shri Ananda Bhaskar

Rashtrapal, Shri Praveen

Rathinavel, Shri T.

Ratna Bai, Smt. T.

Reddy, Dr. T. Subbarami

Reddy, Shri Palvai Govardhan

Roy, Shri Mukul

Roy, Shri Sukhendu Sekhar

Sadho, Dr. Vijaylaxmi

Sahani, Dr. Anil Kumar

Sahu, Shri Dhiraj Prasad

Saini, Shri Rajpal Singh

Saleem, Chaudhary Munavver

Sanjiv Kumar, Shri

Seelam, Shri Jesudasu

Seema, Dr. T.N.

Selvaganapathi, Shri T.M.

Sen, Shri Tapan Kumar

Sharma, Shri Satish

Shukla, Shri Rajeev

Singh, Dr. Kanwar Deep

Singh, Shri Amar

Singh, Shri Arvind Kumar

Singh, Shri Bashistha Narain

Singh, Shri Birender

Singh, Shri Ishwar

Singh, Shri N. K.

Singh, Shri Ramchandra Prasad

Singh, Shri Veer

Singhvi, Dr. Abhishek Manu

Soni, Smt. Ambika

Soz, Prof. Saif-ud-Din

Stanley, Smt. Vasanthi

Syiem, Smt. Wansuk

Tariq Anwar, Shri

Thakur, Dr. C.P.

Thangavelu, Shri S.

Tiwari, Shri Alok

Trivedi, Dr. Yogendra P.

Tyagi, Shri K.C.

Vasan, Shri G.K.

Vora, Shri Motilal

Waghmare, Dr. Janardhan

Yadav, Prof. Ram Gopal

Yadav, Shri Darshan Singh

Yadav, Shri Ram Kripal

The motion was carried by a majority of the total membership of the House and by a majority of not less than two-thirds of the Members present and voting.

Clause 3 was added to the Bill.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, we shall take up clauses 4 to 6. The question is:

That clauses 4 to 6 stand part of the Bill.

The House divided.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Ayes: 132

Noes: 0

Ayes - 132

Abraham, Shri Joy

Achuthan, Shri M.P.

Adeeb, Shri Mohammed

Agrawal, Shri Naresh

Ali, Shri Sabir

Anand Sharma, Shri

Ansari, Shri Ali Anwar

Antony, Shri A.K.

Arjunan, Shri K. R.

Ashk Ali Tak, Shri

Ashwani Kumar, Shri

Azad, Shri Ghulam Nabi

Bachchan, Smt. Jaya

Baghel, Prof. S.P. Singh

Baidya, Smt. Jharna Das

Baishya, Shri Birendra Prasad

Balaganga, Shri N.

Balagopal, Shri K.N.

Balmuchu, Dr. Pradeep Kumar

Bandyopadhyay, Shri D.

Batra, Shri Shadi Lal

Behera, Shri Shashi Bhusan

Bhattacharya, Shri P.

Bora, Shri Pankaj

Budania, Shri Narendra

Chatterjee, Shri Prasanta

Chaturvedi, Shri Satyavrat

Chiranjeevi, Dr. K.

Chowdhury, Smt. Renuka

Daimary, Shri Biswajit

Dalwai, Shri Husain

Darda, Shri Vijay Jawaharlal

Deora, Shri Murli

Dua, Shri H.K.

Dwivedi, Shri Janardan

Fernandes, Shri Oscar

Ghosh, Shri Kunal Kumar

Gill, Dr. M.S.

Gupta, Shri Prem Chand

Gupta, Shri Vivek

Haque, Shri Md. Nadimul

Hashmi, Shri Parvez

Jain, Shri Ishwarlal Shankarlal

Jinnah, Shri A.A.

Jugul Kishore, Shri

Kalita, Shri Bhubaneswar

Kanimozhi, Smt.

Kannan, Shri P.

Karan Singh, Dr.

Karimpuri, Shri Avtar Singh

Kashyap, Shri Narendra Kumar

Keishing, Shri Rishang

Khabri, Shri Brijlal

Khan, Shri Mohd. Ali

Khuntia, Shri Rama Chandra

Kidwai, Smt. Mohsina

Kshatriya, Prof. Alka Balram

Kujur, Shri Santiuse

Mahendra Prasad, Dr.

Mahra, Shri Mahendra Singh

Maitreyan, Dr. V.

Masood, Shri Rasheed

Miri, Prof. Mrinal

Misra, Shri Satish

Mukut Mithi, Shri

Mungekar, Dr. Bhalchandra

Naik, Shri Shantaram

Nanda, Shri Kiranmay

Nandi Yellaiah, Shri

Narayanan, Shri C.P.

Natarajan, Smt. Jayanthi

Natchiappan, Dr. E.M. Sudarsana

O Brien, Shri Derek

Pande, Shri Avinash

Parasaran, Shri K.

Parida, Shri Baishnab

Patel, Shri Ahmed

Pathak, Shri Brajesh

Patil, Smt. Rajani

Raja, Shri D.

Rajeeve, Shri P.

Ram Prakash, Dr.

Ramalingam, Dr. K.P.

Rangarajan, Shri T.K.

Rao, Dr. K.V.P. Ramachandra

Rao, Shri V. Hanumantha

Rapolu, Shri Ananda Bhaskar

Rashtrapal, Shri Praveen

Rathinavel, Shri T.

Ratna Bai, Smt. T.

Reddy, Dr. T. Subbarami

Reddy, Shri Palvai Govardhan

Roy, Shri Mukul

Roy, Shri Sukhendu Sekhar

Sadho, Dr. Vijaylaxmi

Sahani, Dr. Anil Kumar

Sahu, Shri Dhiraj Prasad

Saini, Shri Rajpal Singh

Saleem, Chaudhary Munavver

Sanjiv Kumar, Shri

Seelam, Shri Jesudasu

Seema, Dr. T.N.

Selvaganapathi, Shri T.M.

Sen, Shri Tapan Kumar

Sharma, Shri Satish

Shukla, Shri Rajeev

Singh, Dr. Kanwar Deep

Singh, Shri Amar

Singh, Shri Arvind Kumar

Singh, Shri Bashistha Narain

Singh, Shri Birender

Singh, Shri Ishwar

Singh, Shri N. K.

Singh, Shri Ramchandra Prasad

Singh, Shri Veer

Singhvi, Dr. Abhishek Manu

Soni, Smt. Ambika

Soz, Prof. Saif-ud-Din

Stanley, Smt. Vasanthi

Syiem, Smt. Wansuk

Tariq Anwar, Shri

Thakur, Dr. C.P.

Thangavelu, Shri S.

Tiwari, Shri Alok

Trivedi, Dr. Yogendra P.

Tyagi, Shri K.C.

Vasan, Shri G.K.

Vora, Shri Motilal

Waghmare, Dr. Janardhan

Yadav, Prof. Ram Gopal

Yadav, Shri Darshan Singh

Yadav, Shri Ram Kripal

Noes - 0

The motion was carried by a majority of the total membership of the House and by a majority of not less than two-thirds of the Members present and voting.

Clauses 4 to 6 were added to the Bill.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, we shall take up clause 1, the Enacting Formula and the Title. The question is:

That clause 1, the Enacting Formula and the Title stand part of the Bill.

The House divided.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Ayes: 132

Noes: 0

Ayes - 132

Abraham, Shri Joy

Achuthan, Shri M.P.

Adeeb, Shri Mohammed

Agrawal, Shri Naresh

Ali, Shri Sabir

Anand Sharma, Shri

Ansari, Shri Ali Anwar

Antony, Shri A.K.

Arjunan, Shri K. R.

Ashk Ali Tak, Shri

Ashwani Kumar, Shri

Ayes - 132

Azad, Shri Ghulam Nabi

Bachchan, Smt. Jaya

Baghel, Prof. S.P. Singh

Baidya, Smt. Jharna Das

Baishya, Shri Birendra Prasad

Balaganga, Shri N.

Balagopal, Shri K.N.

Balmuchu, Dr. Pradeep Kumar

Bandyopadhyay, Shri D.

Batra, Shri Shadi Lal

Behera, Shri Shashi Bhusan

Bhattacharya, Shri P.

Bora, Shri Pankaj

Budania, Shri Narendra

Chatterjee, Shri Prasanta

Chaturvedi, Shri Satyavrat

Chiranjeevi, Dr. K.

Chowdhury, Smt. Renuka

Daimary, Shri Biswajit

Dalwai, Shri Husain

Darda, Shri Vijay Jawaharlal

Deora, Shri Murli

Dua, Shri H.K.

Dwivedi, Shri Janardan

Fernandes, Shri Oscar

Ghosh, Shri Kunal Kumar

Gill, Dr. M.S.

Gupta, Shri Prem Chand

Gupta, Shri Vivek

Haque, Shri Md. Nadimul

Hashmi, Shri Parvez

Jain, Shri Ishwarlal Shankarlal

Jinnah, Shri A.A.

Jugul Kishore, Shri

Kalita, Shri Bhubaneswar

Kanimozhi, Smt.

Kannan, Shri P.

Karan Singh, Dr.

Karimpuri, Shri Avtar Singh

Kashyap, Shri Narendra Kumar

Keishing, Shri Rishang

Khabri, Shri Brijlal

Khan, Shri Mohd. Ali

Khuntia, Shri Rama Chandra

Kidwai, Smt. Mohsina

Kshatriya, Prof. Alka Balram

Kujur, Shri Santiuse

Mahendra Prasad, Dr.

Mahra, Shri Mahendra Singh

Maitreyan, Dr. V.

Masood, Shri Rasheed

Miri, Prof. Mrinal

Misra, Shri Satish

Mukut Mithi, Shri

Mungekar, Dr. Bhalchandra

Naik, Shri Shantaram

Nanda, Shri Kiranmay

Nandi Yellaiah, Shri

Narayanan, Shri C.P.

Natarajan, Smt. Jayanthi

Natchiappan, Dr. E.M. Sudarsana

O Brien, Shri Derek

Pande, Shri Avinash

Parasaran, Shri K.

Parida, Shri Baishnab

Patel, Shri Ahmed

Pathak, Shri Brajesh

Patil, Smt. Rajani

Raja, Shri D.

Rajeeve, Shri P.

Ram Prakash, Dr.

Ramalingam, Dr. K.P.

Rangarajan, Shri T.K.

Rao, Dr. K.V.P. Ramachandra

Rao, Shri V. Hanumantha

Rapolu, Shri Ananda Bhaskar

Rashtrapal, Shri Praveen

Rathinavel, Shri T.

Ratna Bai, Smt. T.

Reddy, Dr. T. Subbarami

Reddy, Shri Palvai Govardhan

Roy, Shri Mukul

Roy, Shri Sukhendu Sekhar

Sadho, Dr. Vijaylaxmi

Sahani, Dr. Anil Kumar

Sahu, Shri Dhiraj Prasad

Saini, Shri Rajpal Singh

Saleem, Chaudhary Munavver

Sanjiv Kumar, Shri

Seelam, Shri Jesudasu

Seema, Dr. T.N.

Selvaganapathi, Shri T.M.

Sen, Shri Tapan Kumar

Sharma, Shri Satish

Shukla, Shri Rajeev

Singh, Dr. Kanwar Deep

Singh, Shri Amar

Singh, Shri Arvind Kumar

Singh, Shri Bashistha Narain

Singh, Shri Birender

Singh, Shri Ishwar

Singh, Shri N. K.

Singh, Shri Ramchandra Prasad

Singh, Shri Veer

Singhvi, Dr. Abhishek Manu

Soni, Smt. Ambika

Soz, Prof. Saif-ud-Din

Stanley, Smt. Vasanthi

Syiem, Smt. Wansuk

Tariq Anwar, Shri

Thakur, Dr. C.P.

Thangavelu, Shri S.

Tiwari, Shri Alok

Trivedi, Dr. Yogendra P.

Tyagi, Shri K.C.

Vasan, Shri G.K.

Vora, Shri Motilal

Waghmare, Dr. Janardhan

Yadav, Prof. Ram Gopal

Yadav, Shri Darshan Singh

Yadav, Shri Ram Kripal

#### Noes - 0

The motion was carried by a majority of the total membership of the House and by a majority of not less than two-thirds of the Members present and voting.

Clause 1, the Enacting Formula and the Title were added to the Bill.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, the Minister to move that the Bill be passed.

Government [5 SEPT., 2013] Bills 175

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Sir, I move:

That the Bill be passed.

The House divided.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Ayes: 132

Noes: 0

Ayes - 132

Abraham, Shri Joy

Achuthan, Shri M.P.

Adeeb, Shri Mohammed

Agrawal, Shri Naresh

Ali, Shri Sabir

Anand Sharma, Shri

Ansari, Shri Ali Anwar

Antony, Shri A.K.

Arjunan, Shri K. R.

Ashk Ali Tak, Shri

Ashwani Kumar, Shri

Azad, Shri Ghulam Nabi

Bachchan, Smt. Jaya

Baghel, Prof. S.P.Singh

Baidya, Smt. Jharna Das

Baishya, Shri Birendra Prasad

Balaganga, Shri N.

Balagopal, Shri K.N.

Balmuchu, Dr. Pradeep Kumar

Bandyopadhyay, Shri D.

Batra, Shri Shadi Lal

Behera, Shri Shashi Bhusan

Bhattacharya, Shri P.

Bora, Shri Pankaj

Budania, Shri Narendra

Chatterjee, Shri Prasanta

Chaturvedi, Shri Satyavrat

Chiranjeevi, Dr. K.

Chowdhury, Smt. Renuka

Daimary, Shri Biswajit

Dalwai, Shri Husain

Darda, Shri Vijay Jawaharlal

Deora, Shri Murli

Dua, Shri H.K.

Dwivedi, Shri Janardan

Fernandes, Shri Oscar

Ghosh, Shri Kunal Kumar

Gill, Dr. M.S.

Gupta, Shri Prem Chand

Gupta, Shri Vivek

Haque, Shri Md. Nadimul

Hashmi, Shri Parvez

Jain, Shri Ishwarlal Shankarlal

Jinnah, Shri A.A.

Jugul Kishore, Shri

Kalita, Shri Bhubaneswar

Kanimozhi, Smt.

Kannan, Shri P.

Karan Singh, Dr.

Karimpuri, Shri Avtar Singh

Kashyap, Shri Narendra Kumar

Keishing, Shri Rishang

Khabri, Shri Brijlal

Khan, Shri Mohd. Ali

Khuntia, Shri Rama Chandra

Kidwai, Smt. Mohsina

Kshatriya, Prof. Alka Balram

Kujur, Shri Santiuse

Mahendra Prasad, Dr.

Mahra, Shri Mahendra Singh

Maitreyan, Dr. V.

Masood, Shri Rasheed

Miri, Prof. Mrinal

Misra, Shri Satish

Mukut Mithi, Shri

Mungekar, Dr. Bhalchandra

### [Mr. Deputy Chairman]

Naik, Shri Shantaram

Nanda, Shri Kiranmay

Nandi Yellaiah, Shri

Narayanan, Shri C.P.

Natarajan, Smt. Jayanthi

Natchiappan, Dr. E.M. Sudarsana

O Brien, Shri Derek

Pande, Shri Avinash

Parasaran, Shri K.

Parida, Shri Baishnab

Patel, Shri Ahmed

Pathak, Shri Brajesh

Patil, Smt. Rajani

Raja, Shri D.

Rajeeve, Shri P.

Ram Prakash, Dr.

Ramalingam, Dr. K.P.

Rangarajan, Shri T.K.

Rao, Dr. K.V.P. Ramachandra

Rao, Shri V. Hanumantha

Rapolu, Shri Ananda Bhaskar

Rashtrapal, Shri Praveen

Rathinavel, Shri T.

Ratna Bai, Smt. T.

Reddy, Dr. T. Subbarami

Reddy, Shri Palvai Govardhan

Roy, Shri Mukul

Roy, Shri Sukhendu Sekhar

Sadho, Dr. Vijaylaxmi

Sahani, Dr. Anil Kumar

Sahu, Shri Dhiraj Prasad

Saini, Shri Rajpal Singh

Saleem, Chaudhary Munavver

Sanjiv Kumar, Shri

Seelam, Shri Jesudasu

Seema, Dr. T.N.

Selvaganapathi, Shri T.M.

Sen, Shri Tapan Kumar

Sharma, Shri Satish

Shukla, Shri Rajeev

Singh, Dr. Kanwar Deep

Singh, Shri Amar

Singh, Shri Arvind Kumar

Singh, Shri Bashistha Narain

Singh, Shri Birender

Singh, Shri Ishwar

Singh, Shri N. K.

### [Mr. Deputy Chairman]

Singh, Shri Ramchandra Prasad

Singh, Shri Veer

Singhvi, Dr. Abhishek Manu

Soni, Smt. Ambika

Soz, Prof. Saif-ud-Din

Stanley, Smt. Vasanthi

Syiem, Smt. Wansuk

Tariq Anwar, Shri

Thakur, Dr. C.P.

Thangavelu, Shri S.

Tiwari, Shri Alok

Trivedi, Dr. Yogendra P.

Tyagi, Shri K.C.

Vasan, Shri G.K.

Vora, Shri Motilal

Waghmare, Dr. Janardhan

Yadav, Prof. Ram Gopal

Yadav, Shri Darshan Singh

Yadav, Shri Ram Kripal

#### Noes - 0

The motion was carried by a majority of the total membership of the House and by a majority of not less than two-thirds of the Members present and voting.

SHRI D. RAJA: Now, Sir, please adjourn the House for the day. ...(*Interruptions*)... Take the sense of the House.

SHRI P. RAJEEVE (Kerala): Sir, the next Bill should be introduced and sent to the Standing Committee.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, let us take up the next Bill. ..(*Interruptions*).. Would you like to introduce the Bill? ..(*Interruptions*).. Hon. Members, please be seated.

SHRI SATISH CHANDRA MISRA: Sir, what happens to the Judicial Appointments Commission Bill?..(Interruptions)..

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Sir, that goes to the Standing Committee. ..(Interruptions)..

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Okay. ..(Interruptions)... So, the position is that the Judicial Appointments Commission Bill goes to the Standing Committee. ..(Interruptions).. Yes, hon. Chairman is referring that Bill to the Standing Committee. Now, which is the next Bill? ..(Interruptions)... Now, let us take up the Representation of the People (Second Amendment and Validation) Bill, 2013. Shri Kapil Sibal to move. ..(Interruptions)...

### Representation of the people (Second amendment and Validation) Bill, 2013-Under Consideration

THE MINISTER OF COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND THE MINISTER OF LAW AND JUSTICE (SHRI KAPIL SIBAL): Sir, I move:

That the Representation of the People Act, 1951 be taken into consideration.

Sir, this Bill has a very limited scope and the issue has arisen because of a recent judgement of the Supreme Court in which the Supreme Court has stated that by virtue of Article 102 of the Constitution of India, the Parliament does not have the legislative competence to have enacted section 8(4) of the Representation of the People Act.

Let me come to the circumstances under which this arose before the Supreme Court. There was a Public Interest Litigation in which the issue raised was that there are many Members of Parliament who have a criminal background, trials against whom are pending, or, even where there is a conviction, after they are convicted, [Shri Kapil Sibal]

they continue to be Members of the House. In that context, the Supreme Court ruled that the issue of criminalization of politics is something that needs to be dealt with, and, in a sense, Sir, I believe that we in Parliament have not really addressed this issue very seriously.

Sir, what does section 8 of the Act state? I will briefly tell the distinguished Members of this House that section 8 says that a person shall stand disqualified if he is convicted of the offences set out in section 8(1), 8(2) and 8(3). The source of that is Article 102 of the Constitution. Article 102 of the Constitution says that Parliament may, by law, disqualify a person. That particular law is the Representation of the People Act, and, under this law, section 8 deals with the persons convicted for certain offences which are criminal in nature. For example, section 8(1) talks about offences under the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, the Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, Contravention of the Provisions of the Religious Institutions (Prevention of Misuse) Act, offence of promoting enmity. And, then, section 8(2) talks about persons convicted for the contravention of any law providing for the prevention of hoarding or profiteering, and, then, section 8(3) deals talks about persons convicted of any offence and sentenced to imprisonment for not less than two years [other than any offence referred to in sub-section (1) or sub-section (2)] shall be disqualified from the date of such conviction. (*Interruptions*)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Hon. Members standing in the passage, please. ..(*Interruptions*).. Order in the House, please.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: By virtue of the Constitution, if you have been convicted for an offence, you automatically lose your Membership of the House. There were situations in which a conviction took place but the person had to file an appeal. Now, if the disqualification is co-terminus with the conviction, then, there is no point filing an appeal because he loses the membership of the House automatically. Therefore, it is with that wisdom that section 8(4) was enacted.

Section 8(4) stipulates that if the convicted person file an appeal within a certain period of time, in three months' time, then till the final decision in the case, he will continue to be a Member of the House despite the fact that he has incurred a disqualification under sections 8(1), 8(2) and 8(3) of the Representation of the

People Act, 1951. In other words, it saves Members of Parliament from disqualification merely by filing an appeal. Now that appeal may be heard or may not be heard. If it is not heard in five years, the person who stands convicted continues to be a Member of the House for five years. The Supreme Court thought that this was not something that was salutary; this is not something that should happen that persons convicted continue to be Members of the House. Therefore, the Supreme Court stated that because under sections 8(1), 8(2) and 8(3), there is an automatic disqualification, Parliament does not have the power under section 8(4) to stay the disqualification merely by the Member filing an appeal, because the disqualification occurs pursuant to an Act by Parliament itself. How can that be stayed by Parliament itself? That was the conundrum that the Supreme Court faced. At the same time, the Supreme Court also said that if the individual gets a stay of conviction then it is okay. Then this disqualification will not operate from the time he gets a stay of conviction.

Sir, many distinguished Members of this House who have fought elections know that many a time elections are challenged on grounds of corrupt practice under section 123 of the Representation of the People Act. Many a time elections are also set aside on grounds of corrupt practice and one of the grounds is bribery for example. When the individual, who is disqualified on account of bribery, goes for appeal in the Supreme Court, the Supreme Court passes a usual order. And the usual order is that the Member of Parliament or the Member of State Legislative Assembly, as the case may be, shall continue to be a Member of the House either of the Legislative Assembly or of the Parliament, but he should not be entitled to vote and he should not be entitled to draw salary and allowances. This is the usual order passed by the Supreme Court. In other words, his disqualification remains and he is not entitled to the full rights, as a Member, of voting and of salary and allowances. All that he can do is participate in the proceedings of the House. So, we thought that it would be better if we amend section 4 to bring it in conformity with the usual order passed by the Supreme Court in cases of this nature when the appeal is filed by a Member of Parliament or of the Legislative Assembly whose election has been set aside on grounds of corrupt practice. So what we have done in this amendment is that we have incorporated the substance of the usual order in the amendment itself in section 8(4), so that we also don't fall foul of the judgement of the Supreme Court. The disqualification continues. The Member shall not vote. The Member shall [Shri Kapil Sibal]

not be entitled to draw salary and allowances but while the conviction is on and while his appeal is pending, he shall be entitled to participate in the proceedings of the House. I think that meets with the requirement of the Supreme Court. In fact, we had actually sought review of this judgement from the Supreme Court on the ground that the power to legislate by Parliament emanates from Articles 246 and 248 of the Constitution and does not emanate from Article 102. The Supreme Court rejected that review but having looked at the amendment observed—that is not part of their order and that is reported in many newspapers today—that the amendment proposed in Parliament seems to be consistent with its order. Therefore, Sir, I commend this Amendment Bill for the consideration of the distinguished Members of this House.

#### The question was proposed.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Shri Rangasayee Ramakrishna. We only have one hour, so be brief. ...(*Interruptions*)... It is only one hour for this Bill.

SHRI M. VENKAIAH NAIDU (Karnataka): What is this Bill? Why one hour, Sir, do it in five minutes? Then, dispose of every thing. Such an important consequential Bill, after the Supreme Court has rejected the review, you just want to pass it within one hour because simply the Government wants it.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: BAC allotted one hour. It is not the Chair. BAC allotted one hour, not me.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD (Bihar): BAC is subject to this House. You know that. I need not tell you. What Venkaiahji has said and what other hon. friends have said, this Bill being of some importance, let there be a large debate. If every Bill has to be passed in a hurried manner ..(Interruptions)... Yesterday, the Supreme Court rejected the review, we have something to say. Now here is a case, after amendments have this Bill in ten minutes, no discussion and then pass it in five minutes. I think, take a view of the House, thereby we also owe something to the people of the country. That is what we are saying. ..(Interruptions)...

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Please take up this Bill tomorrow. ..(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I have heard all of you. I want to bring to your notice two things. Number one, in the List of Business, this Bill is listed as the second one. Number two, the BAC has decided to pass it. BAC has allotted one hour. ..(Interruptions)... I agree that the House is supreme. I don't deny it. It is a fact. ..(Interruptions)...

श्री प्रकाश जावडेकर (महाराष्ट्र): सर, सभी लोग कह रहे हैं, इसलिए इसको कल करेंगे।

श्री नरेश अग्रवाल (उत्तर प्रदेश): उपसभापित जी, इसको कल कर लेंगे। इसको कल करें, आज महंगाई वाला पूरा होने दें। आपका एक बिल पास हो गया है, इसिलए बाकी बिल कर करेंगे। आज आपका एक बिल पास हो गया है, इसिलए ये सभी बिल इतनी जल्दी में डिस्कस मत कराइए। इसका मतलब है कि विंटर सेशन नहीं होना है। इसका क्या मतलब हुआ? यह बहुत इम्पोर्टेन्ट बिल है, इसमें एक-एक चीज पर डिस्कशन होना है।

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Please take it up tomorrow.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Where is the Parliamentary Affairs Minister? ..(*Interruptions*)... He should react.

DR. NAJMA A. HEPTULLA (Madhya Pradesh): Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, the Business Advisory Committee has taken a decision. But the BAC can't take a decision that we should sit beyond certain hours. If the House decides, we do not want to sit, we don't have to sit. The House is supreme, not the BAC.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Let me hear the Government's view. What you have said has a point. The House has to decide to sit beyond certain hours. I accept that. Let me hear the Government's view.

SHRI M. VENKAIAH NAIDU: We have accepted that Bill. Please be fair. Normally the House sits up to 6 o'clock.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: If the Parliamentary Affairs Minister is not there, some other Minister can react. ..(*Interruptions*)..

श्री थावर चन्द गहलोत (मध्य प्रदेश): उपसभापति जी, मेरा प्वाइंट ऑफ ऑर्डर है । मेरा 259 पर प्वाइंट ऑफ ऑर्डर है।

#### MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Okay, 259.

श्री थावर चन्द गहलोत: उपसभापित जी, जो संविधन संशोध्न विधेयक पारित किया है, उसके लिए बी.ए.सी. ने तीन घंटे निर्धारित किए थे, लेकिन आपने उनको बढ़ाकर छह घंटे कर दिये। आपने उस पर तो सदन में बी.ए.सी. के नियम का हवाला देने की कोशिश नहीं की और इस पर आप कह रहे हैं कि एक घंटे का समय है, इसलिए इसको एक घंटे में करेंगे। आपको व्यवस्था बनाए रखने का अधिकार है। जब आपने तीन से छह घंटे कर दिए, तो इसमें एक से दो घंटे कीजिए और कल सुनिए।

श्री उपसभापतिः सुनिए, now the hon. Minister, Shri Kapil Sibal has raised an important point. After this Bill is passed by the House, it has to go to the other House.

DR. V. MAITREYAN (Tamil Nadu): We are sitting on Saturday.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Minister, the demand from this section is that this Bill may be taken up tomorrow. For extension..(*Interruptions*)... Nobody from this side, Sir.

श्री थावर चन्द गहलोत: सभी लोग कह रहे हैं ..(व्यवधान)..

THE MINISTER OF STATE IN THE MINISTRY OF PARLIAMENTARY AFFAIRS AND THE MINISTER OF STATE IN THE MINISTRY OF PLANNING (SHRI RAJEEV SHUKLA): If Members do not want to take up this Bill today at 7.30 p.m., then; there is another Bill which can be passed in one minute because there is a consensus on it.

श्री नरेश अग्रवाल: पूरे देश में मंहगाई का मुद्दा चल रहा है, आप उसको नहीं देख रहे हैं, आपको बिल की चिंता है। हम चाहते हैं कि बिल पर पूरी चर्चा हो..(व्यवधान)..

श्री सतीश चन्द्र मिश्रा (उत्तर प्रदेश): उपसभापति जी, पहले उसको होने दीजिए।

श्री राजीव शुक्लः यह वह बिल नहीं है, जिसमें चेयरमैन लगना है, सिक्योरिटीज़ वाला बिल वह है। यह 'सेबी' बिल नहीं है।

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is Mr. Chidambaram's Bill.

THE MINISTER OF FINANCE (SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM): Sir, this has been discussed with the Leader of the Opposition. This is not the Bill Shri Agrawal is referring to. This Bill is only to add to the present qualification a Judge of the Supreme Court, a Chief Justice of a High Court, we are adding Judge of a High Court. That Bill has been passed in the Lok Sabha. Everybody has agreed. This can be passed. It will take one minute. Let us pass this Bill.

THE LEADER OF THE OPPOSITION (SHRI ARUN JAITLEY): As the Finance Minister says, this is a procedural Bill because for appointment to the Securities Appellate Tribunal, the qualification which was there, people were not available for that. So they have to relax the qualification. We have no difficulty because this does not require any serious discussion. But the other Bill, the Representation of the People Bill, that is a serious issue...(Interruptions)...

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: The other Bill you are talking about is ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: The other Bill requires a serious discussion. As far as this Bill on SEBI is concerned, there is no difficulty.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Therefore, as per the consensus in the House, the Bill moved by Shri Kapil Sibal will be taken up tomorrow.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: That should be the first item.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The next one is the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Amendment) Bill, 2013. There is consensus on this Bill. So we are going to pass this Bill without discussion. Yes Mr. Minister.

# THE SECURITEIS AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (AMENDMENT) BILL, 2013

THE MINISTER OF FINANCE (SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM): Sir, I beg to move:

That the Bill further to amend the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 as passed by Lok Sabha, be taken into consideration.

As I said, Sir, the Act as it stands today, provides that for the post of Chairman, only a retired or sitting Judge of the Supreme Court or a retired or sitting Chief Justice of the High Court is eligible. The post fell vacant about one-and-a-half years ago. Since then my predecessor, the previous Law Minister, the Present Law Minister and I have approached the Chief Justice of India several times to find a judge who fits the qualification. After several attempts, they said there was no judge who is willing and who fits the qualification. Therefore, the Supreme Court suggested why don't you add to the qualification a judge of the High Court. Therefore, after consulting the Chief Justice of India, we have now brought this Amendment to add, the original qualifications remain, as a third qualification we are adding a judge of the High Court. Now fortunately, after the Ordinance was promulgated, because the post was vacant, I could not keep the post vacant for so long, therefore, an Ordinance was promulgated, the Selection Committee met under a Judge of the Supreme Court. They have selected a Judge, Justice Devdhar, a very fine Judge. He has also assumed the office. Therefore, it is important that the Ordinance be replaced by the Bill. The Bill has been passed by the Lok Sabha. I request the House to pass this Bill.

The question was proposed.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The question is:

That the Bill further to amend the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 as passed by Lok Sabha, be taken into consideration.

Message from [5 SEP., 2013] Lok Sabha 189

The motion was adopted.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: We shall now take up clause-by-clause consideration of the Bill.

Clauses 2 and 3 were added to the Bill.

Clause 1, the Enacting Formula and the Title were added to the Bill.

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: Sir, I move:

That the Bill be passed.

The question was put and the motion was adopted.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Message from Lok Sabha ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI PRASANTA CHATTERJEE (West Bengal): Sir, the discussion on price rise may be taken up tomorrow.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD (Bihar): Sir, the discussion on price rise may be taken up tomorrow.

#### MESSAGE FROM LOK SABHA

The Appropriation (No. 4) Bill, 2013.

SECRETARY-GENERAL: Sir, I have to report to the House the following message received from the Lok Sabha, signed by the Secretary-General of the Lok Sabha:—

"In accordance with the provisions of rule 96 of the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha, I am directed to enclose the Appropriation (No. 4) Bill, 2013, as passed by Lok Sabha at its sitting held on the 5th September, 2013.

2. The Speaker has certified that this Bill is a Money Bill within the meaning of article 110 of the Constitution of India."

Sir, I lay a copy of the Bill on the Table of the House.

#### **SPECIAL MENTIONS - (contd.)**

# Demand to give approval for setting up of a central university at hetampur in Bhojpur district of Bihar

श्री अरिवन्द कुमार सिंह (उत्तर प्रदेश): उपसभापित महोदय, विहार का भोजपुर जनपद शैक्षणिक रूप से अत्यन्त पिछड़ा जिला है। भोजपुर के साथ बक्सर, आरा, छपरा, सीवान, सासाराम, भभुआ (कैमूर) आदि जनपद भी समुचित शैक्षणिक सुविधाओं से वंचित है एवं शैक्षणिक रूप से अत्यन्त पिछड़े हुए हैं। प्रतिभाओं से सम्पन्न होने के बावजूद यहां के विद्यार्थियों को उच्च शिक्षा के लिए वाराणसी, इलाहाबाद, दिल्ली या मुम्बई जैसे शहरों में पढ़ने के लिए जाना पड़ता है। सुविधा सम्पन्न लोग तो अपने बच्चों को दिल्ली, मुम्बई जैसे शहरों में पढ़ने के लिए भेज देते हैं, परन्तु अधिकांश स्थानीय आबादी कृषि पर आश्रित होने के कारण अपने बच्चों को बड़े शहरों में आर्थिक कठिनाइयों के चलते उच्च शिक्षा मुहेया नहीं करा पाती है।

भोजपुर जनपद के एतिहासिक जगदीशपुर के हेतमपुर--शिवपुर डिहरी अरैला में केन्द्रीय विश्वविद्यालय की स्थापना के लिए बक्सर के संत श्री जियर स्वामी जी ने भोजपुर जनपद में 300 एकड़ जमीन नि:शुल्क देने का प्रस्ताव केन्द्र सरकार को भेजा था। इस सम्बन्ध में लोक सभा एवं राज्य सभा के सत्ता पक्ष एवं विपक्ष के माननीय सांसदों ने केन्द्र सरकार को प्रतिवेदन भी दिया है। पिछले साल मानसून सत्र के दौरान कुछ सांसदों द्वारा हेतमपुर में केन्द्रीय विश्वविद्यालय की स्थापना का मुद्दा संसद में उठाया गया था, जिस पर तमाम माननीय सांसदों द्वारा सहमित जताई गई थी।

सरकार द्वारा वीर कुंवर सिंह की ऐतिहासिक जन्मस्थली में 300 एकड़ जमीन नि:शुल्क उपलब्ध कराए जाने के बावजूद न तो कोई सर्वे कराया गया और न ही इस दिशा में कोई समुचित ठोस कदम उठाया गया। अतः सरकार से मेरी मांग है कि भोजपुर के जगदीशपुर के हेतमपुर में केन्द्रीय विश्वविद्यालय की स्थापना के लिए सरकार कानूनी स्वीकृति प्रदान करे और शीघ्रातिशीघ्र इस सम्बन्ध में केन्द्रीय टीम भेजकर सर्वे कराया जाए। सरकार का यह कदम इस क्षेत्र के लाखों-करोड़ों कृषि आश्रित गरीब परिवार के बच्चों को समुचित उच्च शिक्षा मुहैया कराने की दिशा में सराहनीय कदम होगा। धन्यवाद।

### [उपसभाध्यक्ष (श्रीमती रेणुका चौधरी) पीठीसीन हुईं।

#### Demand to give reasonable amount of salary to the Imam of Masjid-e-Taj

चौधरी मुनव्बर सलीम (उत्तर प्रदेश): माननीय उपसभाध्यक्ष महोदया, मैं आपके माध्यम से भारत सरकार का ध्यान एक ऐसी सच्ची दास्तान की जानिब दिलाना चाहता हूँ, जिसको सुनकर न केवल सरकार बल्कि हिन्दुस्तान की यह महान संसद भी हैरत करेगी।

महोदया, इतिहास से सम्बन्धित इमारतें और लोग एक शोध का विषय होते हैं। पूरी दुनिया में हिन्दुस्तानी कला और मोहब्बत की पाकीजा दास्तान बनकर जो दुनिया वालों को हिन्दुस्तान में बुलाती है, उस इमारत का नाम ताजमहल है।

माननीय महोदया, 1648 में ताज के निर्माण के साथ ही मस्जिद-ए-ताज बनाई गई थी, जो आज भी ताज परिसर में स्थित है। इसमें नमाज अदा कराने वाले इमामे मस्जिद भी पीढ़ियों से आज तक नमाज अदा कराने की जिम्मेदारी निभाते चले आ रहे हैं, लेकिन पूरे सदन को हैरत होगी कि केन्द्र सरकार की ओर से मस्जिद ताज के इमाम को सिर्फ 50 पैसे रोज, यानी 15 रूपये महीना मानदेय दिया जाता है, जो यकीनन एक जानवर की एक दिन की खुराक से भी कम है।

महोदया, मैं सारी दुनिया के लोगों को अपनी ओर आकर्षित करके 50 करोड़ रूपये से अधिक कमाकर देश को देने वाले बुजुर्ग ताज की मस्जिद के इमाम को तत्काल सम्मानजनक तनख्वाह देने का केन्द्र सरकार से अनुरोध करता हूँ।

महोदया, ताज दुनिया का पहला अजूबा हो गया है और इससे जुड़ी हुई हर एक दास्तान दुनिया तक जाती है, इसलिए में अपने देश की मानवता, संवेदनशीलता और न्याय का ऐलान करने वाली सरकार से इमामे ताज मस्जिद के लिए एक बार फिर जिन्दगी गुजारने लायक तनख्वाह की अपील करता हूँ।

† چودھری منوّر سلیم (اتر پردیش): مانّئے اپ سبھا ادھیکش مہودیہ، میں آپ کے مادّھیم سے بھارت سرکار کا دھیان ایک ایسی سچی داستان کی جانب دلانا چاہتا ہوں، جس کو سن کر نہ صرف سرکار ہلکہ ہندوستان کی یہ مہان سنسد بھی حیرت کرے گی۔

مہودیہ، اتہاس سے سمبندھت عمارتیں اور لوگ، شودھہ کا وشئے ہوتے ہیں۔ پوری دنیا میں ہندوستانی کلا اور محبت کی پاکیزہ داستان بن کر جو ہندوستان میں دنیا والوں کو بلاتی ہے، اس عمارت کا نام 'تاج محل' ہے۔

ماننے مہودیہ، 1648 میں تاج کے نرمان کے ساتھہ ہی مسجد تاج بنائی گئی تھی، جو آج بھی تاج پریسر میں استھت ہے۔ اس میں نماز ادا کرانے والے امام مسجد بھی پیڑھیوں سے آج تک نماز ادا کرانے کی ذمہ داری نبھاتے چلے آ رہے ہیں، لیکن پورے سدن کو حیرت ہوگی کہ کیندر سرکار کی اور سے مسجد تاج کے امام کو صرف 50 پیسے روز، یعنی 15 روپے مہینہ ماندئے دیا جاتا ہے، جو یقینا ایک جانور کی ایک دن کی خوراک سے بھی کم ہے۔

مہودیہ، میں ساری دنیا کے لوگوں کو اپنی اور آکرشت کرکے 50 کروڑ روپے سے زیادہ کما کر دیش کو دینے والے بزرگ، تاج کی مسجد کے امام کو تتکال سمّان-جنک تنخواہ دینے کا کیندر سرکار سے انورودھہ کرتا ہوں۔

مہودیہ، تاج دنیا کا پہلا عجوبہ ہو گیا ہے اور اس سے جڑی ہوئی ہر ایک داستان دنیا تک جاتی ہے، اس لئے میں اپنے دیش کی مانوتا، سنویدنشیلتا اور نیائے کا اعلان کرنے والی سرکار سے امام تاج مسجد کے لئے ایک بار پھر زندگی گزارنے لائق تنخواہ کی اپیل کرتا ہوں۔

(ختم شد)

# Demand to amend the rules pertaining to cut off date for registration of names in electoral rolls

श्री भरतिसंह प्रभातिसंह परमार (गुजरात:) आदरणीय उपसमाध्यक्ष महोदया, आज में आपका ध्यान लोक प्रतिनिधित्व अधिनियम 1950 की ओर आकर्षित करना चाहता हूँ। इस अधिनियम के अनुच्छेद 14(डी) में 18 वर्ष की आयु के व्यक्ति को पहली बार मतदाता के रूप में पंजीकृत करने की प्रक्रिया की अन्तिम तिथि, कट-ऑफ-डेट का निर्देश दिया गया है। यहां अन्तिम तिथि का अर्थ मतदाता सूची के बनने अथवा संशोधित किये जाने के वर्ष के जनवरी माह की पहली तारीख से है। इन्हीं निर्देशों के कारण भारत के लाखों युवा 18 साल की आयु को प्राप्त करने पर भी मतदान करने के अपने मूलभूत अधिकार से वंचित रह जाते हैं। चुनाव आयोग चुनाव से एक महीने पहले मतदाता सूची जारी करता है, जिसमें उन्हीं व्यक्तियों के नाम शामिल होते हैं, जो कि चुनाव के वर्ष के जनवरी माह की पहली तारीख को 18 वर्ष की आयु को प्राप्त कर चुके हैं। अगर कोई व्यक्ति जनवरी माह की दूसरी तारीख को 18 वर्ष की आयु को प्राप्त होता है, तो वह व्यक्ति मतदान करने को अधिकारी नहीं रहता। संविधान

<sup>†</sup> Transliteration in Urdu script.

के अनुच्छेद 19 पर गौर करने से यह बात स्पष्ट होती है कि हमारे मतदाताओं के पंजीकरण की प्रक्रिया व्यक्ति के मूलभूत अधिकारों का हनन करती है। अत: मेरा आपसे अनुरोध है कि पंजीकरण की कट-ऑफ-डेट को 1 जनवरी तय न करते हुए उसे बढ़ाया जाए एवं चुनाव के समय 18 वर्ष की आयु के प्राप्त करने वाले सभी व्यक्तियों का समावेश मतदाता सूची में किया जाए।

- श्री तरूण विजय (उत्तराखंड): महोदया, मैं स्वयं को इस विशेष उल्लेख से सम्बद्ध करता हूँ।
- श्री पुरुषोत्तम खोडाभाई रूपाला (गुजरात): महोदया, मैं स्वयं को इस विशेष उल्लेख से सम्बद्ध करता हूँ।
- श्री आम प्रकाश माथुर (राजस्थान): महोदया, मैं स्वयं को इस विशेष उल्लेख से सम्बद्ध करता हूँ।
- श्री नतुजी हालाजी ठाकोर (गुजरात): महोदया, मैं स्वयं को इस विशेष उल्लेख से सम्बद्ध करता हूँ।
- श्री आयनुर मंजूनाथा (कर्णाटक): महोदया, मैं स्वयं को इस विशेष उल्लेख से सम्बद्ध करता हूँ।
- श्री वी. पी. सिंह बदनौर (राजस्थान): महोदया, मैं स्वयं को इस विशेष उल्लेख से सम्बद्ध करता हूँ।

# Demand for proper evaluation of the implementation of welfare schemes in Tribal areas of Andhra Pradesh

SHRIMATI T. RATNA BAI (Andha Pradesh): Sir, as the House may be well aware, the Government is implementing various schemes and welfare measures and lakhs of crores of rupees are being released for public purposes. Not only me, but the entire august House too will appreciate the flagship schemes.

I hail from tribal community and know the pulse of tribals. I realized the problems faced by tribals during my extensive tours in Andhra Pradesh. It seems that due to lack of sufficient staff and transparency, the desired fruits are not reaching the households of tribals in respect of most of the schemes. There is an

[Shrimati T. Raatna Bai].

acute shortage of staff in Horticulture Department. No engineers and other requisite staff have been posted to execute the works properly. For instance, not even a Panchayat Secretary was posted in the East Godavari district, A.P. No Revenue Secretary is posted and such situation has been obstructing the smooth functioning of works despite the release of funds. Funds have been released for schemes like livestock, MGNREGS, IAP, National Highways, *Anganwadi* Centres, Mid-day Meals, PHCs, etc. One veterinary doctor is posted for seven mandals in the East Godavari district. In PHCs, there are no adequate doctors, compounders and nursing staff. Road connectivity under Integrated Action Plan (IAP) has granted thousands of crores of rupees but there is no staff. Planning Commission of SC/ST Wing should interfere to assess and monitor the works on a quarterly basis. Vigilance Officers should be appointed to evaluate the works with 3rd party constitutionally in case of each and every work executed in tribal areas to maintain transparency and quality of work. ITDAs must be headed by officers belonging to IAS cadre only and the role of CAG should also be enhanced.

I would like to point out that not only in Andhra Pradesh but all over the country the situation remains the same. Such situation will hinder the progress of our country, particularly in tribal areas due to delay in posting of adequate staff in all Government posts. The Government should adopt a policy covering the entire country, particularly tribal areas, to ensure that the staff is posted immediately as and when vacancy arises.

Therefore, in view of the above factual circumstances, I request the hon. Prime Minister, through the Chair, to kindly intervene in the matter and give necessary instructions to the concerned departments/officials, not only at the Central level but also the State level to properly evaluate the implementation of each scheme thoroughly and, if need be, even through 3rd party evaluation so that justice is done to tribals while availing the schemes and credibility of the Government will also, in this way, be enhanced.

Thank you.

## Demand to take steps for promotion of Tamil language in schools and offices in North India and declare it the second official language of the country

SHRI TARUN VIJAY (Uttarakhand): It is the arrogance and the feeling of a self-styled supremacy of some of my fellows in the North that we have not been able to fathom the real glory and importance of one of our greatest languages - Tamil. Its glory and influence can be felt seven seas across, on the waves and caressing the highest peaks of the classical influence, since ages and in all times.

We have seen a great poet Subramanya Bharati, who wore the north Indian turban and became an immortal icon of national unity and cultural renaissance. But have we ever tried to give the high position, status and honour to the language that it deserves and that has become the vehicle of a new Indian renaissance and cultural change?

I demand, recognising the greatness of Tamil language, let a new and ambitious scheme be started to propagate Tamil in all North Indian schools, colleges and Government offices specially and in the rest of India too providing special scholarships, salary benefits and official promotions to those who learn Tamil and began working in this great language and establish National Tamil Chairs in all central universities. I also demand to declare Tamil a second official national language of India. Thank you.

- श्री ओम प्रकाश माथुर (राजस्थान): महोदया, मैं स्वयं को इस विशेष उल्लेख से संबद्ध करता हूं।
- श्री पुरूषोत्तम खोडाभाई रूपाला (गुजरात): महोदया, मैं स्वयं को इस विशेष उल्लेख से संबद्ध करता हूं।
- DR. V. MAITREYAN (Tamil Nadu): Madam, I strongly associate with the Special Mention made by my friend, Shri Tarun Vijay.

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI RENUKA CHOWDHURY): The House is adjourned to meet at 11.00 a.m. tomorrow.

The House then adjourned at forty-nine minutes past seven of the clock till eleven of the clock on Friday, the 6th September, 2013.